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 1               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Good evening.  Welcome
  

 2   to the Camden City Planning Board for the month of
  

 3   February 13, 2020.  We'll have the reading of the
  

 4   opening statement.
  

 5               MS. MILLER:  Adequate notice of this
  

 6   meeting has been provided in accordance with the Open
  

 7   Public Meeting Act.  The Camden City Planning Board
  

 8   adopted a Resolution approving the schedule of
  

 9   regular meetings to be held during the year of 2020
  

10   by, one, posting a copy thereof on the bulletin
  

11   boards reserved for such purpose in the Office of
  

12   City Clerk, City Hall, first floor, Camden, New
  

13   Jersey; two, transmitting a copy thereof to the
  

14   Courier Post and to the Philadelphia Inquirer.  These
  

15   newspapers have been designated by this Board to
  

16   receive same, and filing a copy thereof with the City
  

17   Clerk, City of Camden, New Jersey.  The subject
  

18   meeting was publicized on February 4, 2020.
  

19               CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  Roll call.
  

20               MS. MILLER:  Mayor Moran.  Fred Martin.
  

21               MR. MARTIN:  Present.
  

22               MS. MILLER:  Jose DeJesus.
  

23               CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  Present.
  

24               MS. MILLER:  Ulysses Baker.
  

25               MR. BAKER:  Present.



4

  

 1               MS. MILLER:  Councilwoman Reyes-Morton.
  

 2               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Present.
  

 3               MS. MILLER:  Director Walker.
  

 4               DIRECTOR WALKER:  Here.
  

 5               MS. MILLER:  Erin Crean.
  

 6               MS. CREAN:  Present.
  

 7               CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  Approval of Planning
  

 8   Board Minutes of January 9, 2020.
  

 9               MR. MARTIN:  So moved, Mr. Chairman.
  

10               MR. BAKER:  Second.
  

11               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Roll call.
  

12               ACTING CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  Roll call.
  

13               MS. MILLER:  Fred Martin.
  

14               MR. MARTIN:  Yes.
  

15               MS. MILLER:  Jose DeJesus.
  

16               ACTING CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  Yes.
  

17               MS. MILLER:  Ulysses Baker.
  

18               MR. BAKER:  Yes.
  

19               MS. MILLER:  Councilwoman Reyes-Morton.
  

20               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Yes.
  

21               MS. MILLER:  Director Walker.
  

22               DIRECTOR WALKER:  Yes.
  

23               MS. MILLER:  Erin Crean.
  

24               MS. CREAN:  Abstain.
  

25               MS. MILLER:  Thank you.
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 1               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Swearing in of all
  

 2   professionals and planning staff.
  

 3                         - - -
  

 4               DENA MOORE JOHNSON, P.E., C.M.E., having
  

 5   been duly sworn or affirmed, testified as follows:
  

 6                         - - -
  

 7               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Since the director is
  

 8   not here, we'll dismiss the report.  And we will now
  

 9   start with New Business.
  

10               Certificate of Appropriateness for Pablo
  

11   and Arin Reyes, 3071 Kearsarge Road.  The applicant
  

12   is proposing the installation of Solar Panels on a
  

13   pitched roof in the rear.  Is that person here, Pablo
  

14   and Arin Reyes?
  

15               MR. EINGORN:  Please come forward and
  

16   raise your right hand.  Do you swear or affirm that
  

17   the testimony that you will provide to the Board
  

18   tonight is true and accurate?
  

19                         - - -
  

20               UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Yes.
  

21               MR. EINGORN:  Chairman DeJesus will
  

22   translate for the record.
  

23               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  I asked him the same
  

24   question, is he swearing to tell the truth as he was
  

25   asked as requested.
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 1               MR. MARTIN:  Mr. Chairman, if I may.  By
  

 2   putting the solar panels on the back part of the
  

 3   roof, it's not facing the street and that is in
  

 4   compliance with Historic Preservation Guidelines for
  

 5   Fairview.  And I think the Historic Review Committee
  

 6   recommended the approval providing that was done that
  

 7   way.
  

 8               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  I will now translate
  

 9   what Fred just said.
  

10               (Chairman DeJesus is now translating from
  

11   English into Spanish of what Mr. Martin has just
  

12   stated.)
  

13               CHAIRMAN DeJesus:  So, I need a motion.
  

14               MR. BAKER:  So moved.
  

15               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Second.
  

16               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Roll call.
  

17               MS. MILLER:  Fred Martin.
  

18               MR. MARTIN:  Yes.
  

19               MS. MILLER:  Jose DeJesus.
  

20               ACTING CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  Yes.
  

21               MS. MILLER:  Ulysses Baker.
  

22               MR. BAKER:  Yes.
  

23               MS. MILLER:  Councilwoman Reyes-Morton.
  

24               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Yes.
  

25               MS. MILLER:  Director Walker.
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 1               DIRECTOR WALKER:  Yes.
  

 2               MS. MILLER:  Erin Crean.
  

 3               MS. CREAN:  Yes.
  

 4               MS. MILLER:  Motion carried to approve.
  

 5   Thank you.
  

 6               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Okay.
  

 7               (Chairman DeJesus now translating to the
  

 8   applicant.)
  

 9               MR. EINGORN:  Since this is an Open
  

10   Meeting Act, the record has to reflect what you're
  

11   saying it in Spanish.
  

12               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  This gentleman is not
  

13   Mr. Reyes.  So, now, we have to strike that because
  

14   it's not the same gentleman.
  

15               MR. EINGORN:  Let the record reflect that
  

16   the gentleman who was here was not appearing on the
  

17   Certificate of Appropriateness for Pablo and Arin
  

18   Reyes for Subject A of the agenda.  And as such, the
  

19   motion was void ab initio and, therefore, is of no
  

20   force and effect.
  

21               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Yes, that's correct.
  

22               So now we have one for Linden Waterfront,
  

23   LLC, 113 Linden Street.  Anyone here for that?
  

24   Hearing none, moving on.
  

25               Certificate of Appropriateness for Jose
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 1   Garcia, 1523 Collings Road.
  

 2               MR. GARCIA:  Good evening, Board Members.
  

 3               MR. EINGORN:  Please raise your right
  

 4   hand.
  

 5                         - - -
  

 6               JOSE A. GARCIA, having first been first
  

 7   duly sworn in/affirmed, was examined and testified as
  

 8   follows:
  

 9                         - - -
  

10               MR. GARCIA:  My name is Jose A. Garcia,
  

11   1073 Ironside in Camden, New Jersey.
  

12               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  The Certificate of
  

13   Appropriateness, you're applying for an exterior
  

14   modification?
  

15               MR. GARCIA:  Yes, sir.
  

16               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  You received a letter
  

17   from the Historical Review Committee?
  

18               MR. GARCIA:  Yes, sir.
  

19               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Do you agree to the
  

20   conditions of it?
  

21               MR. GARCIA:  Yes, sir.
  

22               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  You stated that they
  

23   met on December 19th, 2019 to review your
  

24   application.  The Historical Commission voted to
  

25   approval of your exterior modification from a
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 1   previous approval located at 1523 Collings Road and
  

 2   provided that said modifications are consistent with
  

 3   the Fairview Historical Guidelines for windows,
  

 4   doors, and other exterior treatments.
  

 5               MR. GARCIA:  Yes, sir.
  

 6               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  You're in agreement?
  

 7               MR. GARCIA:  Yes, sir.
  

 8               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  With that, any
  

 9   questions from the Board?
  

10               MR. MARTIN:  I'll move it when we're
  

11   ready, Jose.
  

12               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  I know.  Are there any
  

13   questions from the public?  Hearing none.
  

14               MR. MARTIN:  I move the granting of the
  

15   Certificate of Appropriateness for Mr. Jose Garcia,
  

16   1523 Collings Road.
  

17               MR. BAKER:  Yes.
  

18               CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  Roll call.
  

19               MS. MILLER:  Fred Martin.
  

20               MR. MARTIN:  Yes.
  

21               MS. MILLER:  Jose DeJesus.
  

22               CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  Yes.
  

23               MS. MILLER:  Ulysses Baker.
  

24               MR. BAKER:  Yes.
  

25               MS. MILLER:  Councilwoman Reyes-Morton.
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 1               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Yes.
  

 2               MS. MILLER:  Director Walker.
  

 3               DIRECTOR WALKER:  Yes.
  

 4               MS. MILLER:  Erin Crean.
  

 5               MS. CREAN:  Yes.
  

 6               MS. MILLER:  Motion carried to approve.
  

 7   Thank you and have a good night.
  

 8               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Street Alley Vacation,
  

 9   Spectrum Capital Camden, LLC, 1107 Penn Street, NS AD
  

10   WIL 74 E. of 11th Street, 1182 Linden Street,
  

11   1112-1156 Linden Street and SS Linden 418 E. 11th
  

12   Street.
  

13               MS. MOORE:  Mr. Chairman, before we get
  

14   the attorney's point of view on this project, I just
  

15   want to point out.  This is a project that's been
  

16   approved by the Zoning Board.  So, this Board may not
  

17   be aware of the construction of the hotel proposal.
  

18   And the Zoning Board did approve the hotel.
  

19               And what was outstanding from my review
  

20   letter was that alley way that needs to be vacated.
  

21   It could be one or two alleyways.  But it's the
  

22   vacation of alleyways that they just need to
  

23   finalize, were one or two points away from final plan
  

24   signature so they have to come to the Planning Board
  

25   for this.  This project was approved by the Zoning
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 1   Board probably in 2018 or  2019.
  

 2               MR. EINGORN:  This one was a while ago.
  

 3               MR. WEBSTER:  Good evening.  It's great
  

 4   to be back in Camden.  My name is Elnardo Webster.
  

 5   I'm an attorney for the applicant, Spectrum Capital
  

 6   Camden, LLC.  My law firm is Inglesino, Webster,
  

 7   Wyciskala & Taylor.  I also serve as General Counsel
  

 8   to the applicant.
  

 9               I have a couple of things that I just
  

10   want to hand out just to explain.  I think a picture
  

11   tells a thousand words and, I think, that makes life
  

12   a lot easier.  Please mark this as Applicant's A.
  

13   This is our site plan submission, architecturals.
  

14               MR. EINGORN:  Let the record reflect that
  

15   the Board has been distributed a package of
  

16   elevations and plans consisting of one, two, three --
  

17   four pages.  We will mark the packet as Exhibit 1 to
  

18   the application.
  

19               MR. WEBSTER:  I also have the engineering
  

20   renderings which I'd like to mark as Exhibit 2, and
  

21   this was the preliminary and final site plan that was
  

22   approved by the Zoning Board.
  

23               MR. EINGORN:  For the record, the Board
  

24   has been distributed a package containing nine pages
  

25   which is entitled:  Preliminary and Final Site Plan,



12

  

 1   Proposed Hotel.  We'll mark that as Exhibit 2 to the
  

 2   application.
  

 3               MR. WEBSTER:  For Exhibit No. 3, I have a
  

 4   survey prepared by G.L. 1 & Associates that lists
  

 5   Blocks 110, Lots 11, 16, 49, 51, 51-B01 and 67 which
  

 6   is Linden Street and North 11th Street, and it has
  

 7   some color renderings that have been superimposed on
  

 8   it.  And I'd like to mark that as Exhibit 3.
  

 9               MR. EINGORN:  Let the record reflect that
  

10   the document submitted by counsel consists of one
  

11   page.  It will be marked Exhibit 3 and is as
  

12   described as counsel.
  

13               MR. WEBSTER:  Thank you.  Just to
  

14   refresh the Board's recollection, this is a
  

15   four-story, 122-room hotel with meeting room, fitness
  

16   area, snack bar and 80 parking stalls and a bus
  

17   shuttle.  If you look at Exhibit 3 that I've just
  

18   handed out, you'll see on the survey an area that is
  

19   outlined in red.  That is the area that we're asking
  

20   the Board to vacate tonight.
  

21               The area highlighted with the yellow
  

22   highlighter is the sewer main.  And you'll see that
  

23   obviously that's not inside the easement.  So, what I
  

24   would ask is that the Board approve it with
  

25   conditions subject to the City Engineer approving.
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 1   And if your engineer so agrees, I think the City
  

 2   Engineer would still have to see it.
  

 3               MS. MOORE:  The City engineer approves
  

 4   vacations.
  

 5               MR. WEBSTER:  Right.  So, your approval
  

 6   subject to his signature, I think, would get us to
  

 7   where we need to be.
  

 8               MR. MARTIN:  Are you seeking to vacate
  

 9   the sewer line?
  

10               MR. WEBSTER:  No, we are not.  If you
  

11   look at Exhibit No. 1 and if you go to probably page
  

12   three, you can see the outline of the hotel.  And
  

13   you'll see it doesn't impact the sewer line.
  

14               MS. MOORE:  And the City Engineer did
  

15   provide an email on review which is in your packet.
  

16   So, he had a couple of questions just for
  

17   clarification purposes.  An email from him dated
  

18   February 5, 2020.
  

19               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  You want to start the
  

20   letter?
  

21               MS. MOORE:  You want me to read his email
  

22   on record?
  

23               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Yes.
  

24               MR. EINGORN:  I'll read it if you want.
  

25   I'm not finding a copy in the packet.
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 1               MS. MOORE:  I'll do it.
  

 2               MS. MILLER:  It's in your agenda packet.
  

 3               MS. MOORE:  He mentions that he received
  

 4   the Street Vacation application/submittal for the
  

 5   above-referenced project which included the survey,
  

 6   final site plan and then the application form.
  

 7               Based on the submittal provided, he
  

 8   offered the comments:  One, a copy of the metes and
  

 9   bounds description for the proposed right-of-way
  

10   vacation was not provided with the submittal.  Please
  

11   submit for review.
  

12               Number 2:  Plan does not clearly identify
  

13   the areas for proposed Vacation.  Please revise the
  

14   plan as needed to clearly identify the areas to be
  

15   vacated.
  

16               Number 3:  The applicant shall identify
  

17   any existing utilities within the requested limits of
  

18   the proposed vacation.  If applicable, the applicant
  

19   shall prepare an Alley/Street Vacation Plan
  

20   indicating said utility information prior to any
  

21   approval.  Number 3, there are no existing utilities.
  

22    Correct?         MR. WEBSTER:  That's correct.
  

23               MS. MOORE:  Number 4:  If applicable, the
  

24   applicant shall show on the Alley/Street Vacation
  

25   Plan, the size of all proposed easements for all
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 1   existing utilities to remain.
  

 2               MR. WEBSTER:  Not applicable.
  

 3               MS. MOORE:  Number 5:  If granted, the
  

 4   applicant shall at no cost to the City of Camden,
  

 5   file the Street Vacation Plan and Description
  

 6   at the Camden County Clerk's Office and provide proof
  

 7   and copy of the same to the City of Camden.
  

 8               MR. WEBSTER:  We will comply.
  

 9               MS. MOORE:  Number 6:  If granted, any
  

10   and all proposed easements shall be recorded by the
  

11   applicant and time and date stamp shall be submitted
  

12   prior to signing of the plans.
  

13               MR. WEBSTER:  We will comply.
  

14               MS. MOORE:  Number 7:  Applicant shall be
  

15   solely responsible for the abandonment and/or
  

16   relocation of City Utilities, i.e., water, sewer,
  

17   etc.  Impact by the proposed Street Vacation at no
  

18   cost to the City of Camden.
  

19               MR. WEBSTER:  No utilities are within the
  

20   proposed alley-vacation areas.
  

21               MS. MOORE:  And then an additional
  

22   comment:  The plans show an existing six-inch water
  

23   main crossing the property from Penn Street toward
  

24   Linden Street.  Please review and confirm.
  

25               MR. WEBSTER:  We have reviewed and I



16

  

 1   highlighted that in yellow highlighter.  We can
  

 2   confirm that exists.
  

 3               MS. MOORE:  And that's the City
  

 4   Engineer's review.
  

 5               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Thank you.  Any
  

 6   questions from the Board?  Any questions from the
  

 7   public in reference to this matter?
  

 8               MR. MARTIN:  Are you seeking to vacate a
  

 9   water main as well?
  

10               MR. WEBSTER:  I'm not.
  

11               MR. MARTIN:  Are you going to give an
  

12   easement for that?
  

13               MR. WEBSTER:  An easement exists already
  

14   for it.
  

15               MR. MARTIN:  Okay.
  

16               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Not hearing anything
  

17   from the public.
  

18               MR. MARTIN:  Mr. Chairman, I would move
  

19   the granting of the Street Vacation -- or approving
  

20   of the Street Vacation and informing City Counsel for
  

21   action for Spectrum Capital, LLC for the locations
  

22   identified in their application.
  

23               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  With the conditions of
  

24   what the engineer had stated?
  

25               MR. MARTIN:  Yes.
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 1               MR. EINGORN:  And on the condition that
  

 2   it's subject to further approval by the City
  

 3   Engineer.
  

 4               MR. MARTIN:  Right.
  

 5               MR. WEBSTER:  Agreed.
  

 6               CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  I need a second.
  

 7               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Second.
  

 8               CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  Roll call.
  

 9               MS. MILLER:  Fred Martin.
  

10               MR. MARTIN:  Yes.
  

11               MS. MILLER:  Jose DeJesus.
  

12               CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  Yes.
  

13               MS. MILLER:  Ulysses Baker.
  

14               MR. BAKER:  Yes.
  

15               MS. MILLER:  Councilwoman Reyes-Morton.
  

16               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Yes.
  

17               MS. MILLER:  Director Walker.
  

18               DIRECTOR WALKER:  Yes.
  

19               MS. MILLER:  Erin Crean.
  

20               MS. CREAN:  Yes.
  

21               MS. MILLER:  Motion carried to approve.
  

22               MR. WEBSTER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
  

23   Have a good night.
  

24               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Thank you.
  

25               Next is, Digno Taveras, 1584 Mt. Ephraim
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 1   Avenue, Block 1352, Lot 47.  The applicant is
  

 2   proposing to open up a retail store.
  

 3               MR. VIOLA:  Good evening, Mr. Chairman
  

 4   and members of the Board.  My name is Andrew Viola.
  

 5   I'm with the Law Firm of Albano & Viola.  I'm here
  

 6   representing Digno Taveras.  This is our application
  

 7   regarding the property located at 1584 Mt. Ephraim
  

 8   Avenue.  Our application -- our request actually for
  

 9   a site plan waiver.
  

10               Has the Board received my submission?  If
  

11   not, I have some extra copies.  I see some aren't in
  

12   color.  They might be helpful if anybody from the
  

13   Board would be interested.
  

14               MR. EINGORN:  Let the record reflect that
  

15   counsel for the applicant has brought forward an
  

16   additional set of submissions which I believe are
  

17   identical to those that the Board has except they are
  

18   in color.
  

19               MR. VIOLA:  The proposed retail space --
  

20   my client is seated to my left and he proposes
  

21   opening a retail store specializing in apparel and
  

22   footwear, discount prices.  It's a permitted use in a
  

23   C-1.  But the reason why site plan might otherwise be
  

24   required is because it had been a residential use.
  

25   Now, it's going to be used for it's conforming use as
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 1   a C-1.  So, this is our request for a site plan
  

 2   waiver.
  

 3               The proposal is very straightforward.
  

 4   The key word is low impact.  There's going to be --
  

 5   except for cosmetic changes to the facade, it's going
  

 6   to stay the same.  The interior, there's going to be
  

 7   some minor alterations but no serious construction.
  

 8   The property is going to be cleaned up.  It's going
  

 9   to be lighted for security.  It's going to be
  

10   properly secured.  There are going to be very low --
  

11   there's one to three employees; mostly foot traffic
  

12   or arrival from bus.
  

13               Most of the customers are going to be
  

14   from the neighborhood.  So, we're not talking about a
  

15   lot of traffic; we're not talking about a lot of
  

16   parking.  We're talking about very low impact.  The
  

17   photos that you see set forth, we tried to
  

18   demonstrate as best we can what it eventually is
  

19   going to look like.  We think it'll be a credit to
  

20   the neighborhood and ask for the Board's
  

21   waiver.
  

22               MR. MARTIN:  Mr. Chairman, may I address
  

23   the applicant?
  

24               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Sure you can.
  

25               MR. MARTIN:  Why did you think that you
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 1   did not need a site plan other than the fact that
  

 2   it's a less-expensive approach?
  

 3               MR. VIOLA:  Well, we did have a
  

 4   preapplication meeting.  And because of the low
  

 5   impact nature of the application and the fact that it
  

 6   was a permitted use in the C-1, it was suggested and
  

 7   we had requested if a site plan would be considered
  

 8   by the Board.  And we're hoping it is.
  

 9               MR. MARTIN:  My concern is that when you
  

10   change a use from a residential to commercial, you
  

11   essentially change the traffic patterns around it.
  

12   And that when you make a residential use a commercial
  

13   even though it's a conforming use within the zone,
  

14   you're going to create impacts on the surrounding
  

15   community.  A request for a waiver of a site plan
  

16   doesn't require notice, if I'm correct.  It doesn't
  

17   require any review by our engineer.  It doesn't
  

18   require the provision of the parking required by our
  

19   ordinance for that use.
  

20               These are things that the Board generally
  

21   takes into consideration.  And I would find it -- I
  

22   understand the applicant's position that it's a
  

23   low-impact use.  But if this was not a conforming use
  

24   already to this corridor or zone, then you'd be
  

25   before the Zoning Board of Adjustment to change the
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 1   use of the property and be faced with having to
  

 2   address these issues such as parking, such as hours
  

 3   of operation; such as light-impacts on the
  

 4   surrounding community such as signage.  All of those
  

 5   things would be part of the application.  And though
  

 6   I understand the applicant's desire to avoid that,
  

 7   I'm loath to approve that.
  

 8               MR. VIOLA:  I understand the point.  I
  

 9   did hope that we did address each and every one of
  

10   those issues that you've just raised with our
  

11   submission.  I think we weren't trying to hide
  

12   anything.  I think --
  

13               MR. MARTIN:  We have no ability to review
  

14   because you haven't triggered the review process by
  

15   simply presenting this to the Board.
  

16               MR. EINGORN:  I think one of the issues
  

17   we see here is, we don't know how many parking spots
  

18   you would need for this use.  We don't know how many
  

19   parking spots would be available.  We don't know if
  

20   this would be a required loading zone.  If there's
  

21   loading available.  How many rooms or, you know, what
  

22   might be in the determination of what kind of parking
  

23   would be required.
  

24               It does look like you've provided some
  

25   photograph of the on-street parking but it's only one
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 1   photograph.  We don't know about the surrounding area
  

 2   and whether the parking would be impacted on the
  

 3   neighborhood.  It looks like your client's proposing
  

 4   to install a larger front window.  We don't know if
  

 5   there's signage involved.  This would all be
  

 6   something that would be part of a larger site plan
  

 7   application which, I believe, Mr. Martin is
  

 8   concerned, may have items that we can't see that
  

 9   might impact the neighborhood and we would have a
  

10   duty to look at it.
  

11               MR. MARTIN:  And understand, Counsel,
  

12   when you don't come in with a formal site plan
  

13   application, there's no triggering of a review by the
  

14   City -- the engineer.  There's no true triggering of
  

15   any professional review on behalf of the City for
  

16   this decision or application.  So, the Board's at a
  

17   loss without the professional expertise which you
  

18   haven't prepared for by submitting an application
  

19   with the appropriate escrow and have that happen.
  

20               So, though, I understand why you're doing
  

21   it, generally, I think you have to understand from my
  

22   position on the Board, I'd be loath to approve this
  

23   as it is written no matter how thorough and valid
  

24   your representations are.  We have no ability to
  

25   review or check on them.  And that's the difficulty
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 1   see for the Board.
  

 2               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  I also have a
  

 3   concern.  This is showing a second floor.  Is that
  

 4   second floor being used as commercial as well or is
  

 5   that residential as also?
  

 6               MR. VIOLA:  As we said --
  

 7               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  My I finish, please?
  

 8               MR. VIOLA:  Absolutely, Mr. Chairman.
  

 9               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  That would mean that
  

10   it's two uses instead of one.  Second, there's only
  

11   one entrance so that means if that's the main
  

12   entrance, how would you get access to the second
  

13   floor if it was an apartment?  The next thing I have
  

14   is, the other issue is, as the attorney just
  

15   requested, that one single window is not going to do
  

16   any good for a retail store.  What kind of retail
  

17   store is he talking about?
  

18               MR. VIOLA:  It's going to be a clothing
  

19   and footwear.
  

20               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Clothing store?
  

21               MR. VIOLA:  Yes.  And if you look at our
  

22   submission, it does say that there is an intention to
  

23   put in a --
  

24               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  No.  I saw that
  

25   already and I also saw the sign proposed and there's
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 1   no sign application here.  In addition to that, it
  

 2   doesn't say what size the sign is.  That means, if we
  

 3   approve you tonight, you can put a 12-foot sign in
  

 4   there and we couldn't do nothing about it.
  

 5               MR. EINGORN:  It would still be subject
  

 6   to the ordinance --
  

 7               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Yep.
  

 8               MR. EINGORN:  -- but I think to the
  

 9   extent there is going to be signage, the Board would
  

10   like to review it to make sure it would comply with
  

11   the ordinance or otherwise have an opportunity to
  

12   review whether or not some sort of waiver or variance
  

13   would be appropriate in determining, you know, the
  

14   signage.
  

15               MR. VIOLA:  I just want to say to the
  

16   Board, we don't take the waiver of site plan lightly.
  

17   We understand when a site is required in normal
  

18   instances.  We were led to believe that due to the
  

19   low-impact nature of the application, that a site
  

20   plan waiver would be considered.
  

21               We certainly weren't trying to throw one
  

22   past the Board in any way, shape or form.  And we
  

23   understand the purpose of site plan and why it's
  

24   important.  That's not why we're here trying to skirt
  

25   around the rules in any way.  That's not our
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 1   intention.
  

 2               MR. EINGORN:  Nobody is claiming that
  

 3   your intention was to somehow pull the wool over the
  

 4   eyes of the Board.  I think the concerns are more of,
  

 5   that the Board is interested in seeing these items to
  

 6   confirm that, you know, you need more to determine
  

 7   whether or not a waiver is really appropriate because
  

 8   there's items here missing that we can't make the
  

 9   determination -- the Board can't make the
  

10   determination.
  

11               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Yeah.  We're
  

12   just trying to make sure that it's an equitable and
  

13   fair process in place.  And that there's respect
  

14   given to the residents in the community of that area
  

15   to have a fair practice in place of that.  There's an
  

16   involvement that makes sense for everybody and that
  

17   is respectfully driven through.
  

18               MR. VIOLA:  We're going to be a neighbor
  

19   too so I certainly understand.
  

20               MR. MARTIN:  There was no notice to the
  

21   neighbor service, correct?
  

22               MR. VIOLA:  No, there wasn't.  I don't
  

23   think it would have been required for a site plan
  

24   waiver.
  

25               MR. EINGORN:  I don't know that it would
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 1   have been required.
  

 2               MR. VIOLA:  I take your larger point.
  

 3               MR. MARTIN:  The larger point is, if it
  

 4   was a site plan, if it was before the Zoning Board of
  

 5   Adjustment, you would be required to do a
  

 6   notification of the adjacent residents that this
  

 7   change was coming to their neighborhood be they
  

 8   commercial or residential.  By just approaching the
  

 9   Board with a site plan waiver or no notification to
  

10   the residents, they have no voice in this decision,
  

11   which is one of the purposes of site plan.
  

12               I don't know what the best approach is
  

13   here.  After testimony or other comments from the
  

14   Board, I'd be prepared to move that we reject the
  

15   request for a waiver.  Another option would be to
  

16   table it for a month and allow notice to be made and
  

17   an opportunity for the engineer to do some review of
  

18   this.  We don't have any gray area between site plan
  

19   and no site plan.  We've discussed that longterm is
  

20   affixed to the ordinance.  But until we have that
  

21   longterm fix, it's either or; it's either site plan
  

22   or no site plan.
  

23               MR. VIOLA:   So, obviously, it would be
  

24   most economical to the applicant if you would give us
  

25   the opportunity to even post an escrow so your
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 1   professionals could review and give us time to notice
  

 2   and let us come back with a stronger application.
  

 3   But then I don't want to do that and say, well, we
  

 4   still need more in which case then we just delayed
  

 5   some more.  But if the Board feels inclined -- look,
  

 6   we want the public to be notified; we want our
  

 7   professionals to review; we'd be glad to post an
  

 8   escrow; we'd be glad to notice for the meeting and
  

 9   bring back with our application if the Board feels
  

10   that that would be a possibility.
  

11               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  I'm just
  

12   concerned that, you know, there's a neighborhood plan
  

13   in place that maybe hasn't also been looked at and
  

14   understanding the area and it's current make-up.  I
  

15   want to make sure that we're looking  into like the
  

16   21st century-type of, you know, planning for that
  

17   rather than just trying to fill in, you know, empty
  

18   spaces currently.
  

19               MR. MARTIN:  Can I address?  Counsel,
  

20   would it be appropriate for us to table this; allow
  

21   him to come back with a site plan application to
  

22   proceed?  I don't want to start the clock.
  

23               MR. EINGORN:  Well, if they're going to
  

24   bring a separate application for site plan.  Because
  

25   the application here is solely for site plan waiver.
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 1   I think the appropriate move would be to deny the
  

 2   site plan waiver without prejudice to the right of
  

 3   the applicant to bring a full site plan waiver.
  

 4   Because otherwise --
  

 5               CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  And that would be the
  

 6         best way --
  

 7               MR. EINGORN:  -- you're continuing, I
  

 8   guess, a pattern of something that you're really not
  

 9   going to grant.  You're not going to grant a waiver
  

10   if they're going to do a full site plan.  They're
  

11   going to want the site plan.
  

12               MR. VIOLA:  Right.  Least attractive to
  

13   the applicant but perhaps most sensible.
  

14               MR. EINGORN:  Right.
  

15               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Any questions from the
  

16   public on the matter?  Hearing none, a motion is in
  

17   order.
  

18               MR. MARTIN:  Mr. Chairman, I move that we
  

19   deny without prejudice and ask the applicant to
  

20   appear with a site plan.
  

21               MR. BAKER:  Second.
  

22               CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  Roll call.
  

23               MS. MILLER:  Fred Martin.
  

24               MR. MARTIN:  Yes.
  

25               MS. MILLER:  Jose DeJesus.
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 1               CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  Yes.
  

 2               MS. MILLER:  Ulysses Baker.
  

 3               MR. BAKER:  Yes.
  

 4               MS. MILLER:  Councilwoman Reyes-Morton.
  

 5               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Yes.
  

 6               MS. MILLER:  Director Walker.
  

 7               DIRECTOR WALKER:  Yes.
  

 8               MS. MILLER:  Erin Crean.
  

 9               MS. CREAN:  Yes.
  

10               MS. MILLER:  Motion carried to dismiss
  

11   without prejudice.
  

12               MR. VIOLA:  Thank you ladies and
  

13   gentlemen.  We will see you in a couple of
  

14   months.
  

15               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Camden's School
  

16   Network, Inc., 3098 Pleasant Street, Block 987, Lot
  

17   1.  The applicant is proposing to construct Phase II
  

18   improvements in two phases which will be identified
  

19   as Phase II and Phase III.  Phase II will include
  

20   fencing, sidewalks, lighting and the addition without
  

21   the auditorium.
  

22               MS. MARLIN:  My name is Beth Marlin.  I'm
  

23   an attorney with Brown & Connery and I'm here tonight
  

24   on behalf of the applicant, Camden's Charter School
  

25   Network, Inc.
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 1               I handed my first handout to the attorney
  

 2   there, and you can mark it however you want it, A-1,
  

 3   however you want.
  

 4               MR. EINGORN:  Sure.  Let the record
  

 5   reflect that --
  

 6               MS. MARLIN:  It's a 2014 Site Plan.
  

 7               MR. EINGORN: -- we have received a 2014
  

 8   Site Plan consisting of one page which we'll mark
  

 9   Exhibit A to the application.
  

10               MS. MARLIN:  I have three people with me
  

11   tonight that are going to give testimony so I'm going
  

12   to introduce them so that they can be sworn in.
  

13               So, I have Steve Bock from Bock
  

14   Associates who is our engineer.  I have Brooks
  

15   Garrison from Garrison Architects who is our
  

16   architect.  And I have Bill Hembrecht who is the
  

17   Charter coordinator here on behalf of Camden's
  

18   Charter School Network.
  

19               MR. EINGORN:  Please come forward to be
  

20   sworn.  Please raise your right hands.
  

21                         - - -
  

22               STEVE BACH, P.E., R.A., P.P., C.M.E.;
  

23   BROOKS GARRISON, R.A., WILLIAM HEMBRECHT, having been
  

24   first duly sworn/affirmed, was examined and testified
  

25   as follows:
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 1                         - - -
  

 2               MS. MARLIN:  Both Steve Bock and Brooks
  

 3   Garrison have been qualified before this Board, so I
  

 4   don't know if you need them to put testimony on the
  

 5   record or you can accept them based on prior.
  

 6               MR. EINGORN:  We would take some limited
  

 7   credential and that way we can save some time.
  

 8               MR. BACH:  Hello.  Steve Bach, principal
  

 9   of Bock Associates.  I've been in practice under my
  

10   own firm since 1999.  I'm a professional engineer,
  

11   registered architect, and professional planner all in
  

12   the State of New Jersey.  I have testified before
  

13   numerous boards.  Probably close to a thousand
  

14   individual hearings.  I've been qualified as an
  

15   expert in engineering, architecture and planning.
  

16   And previously qualified before this Board.
  

17               MR. EINGORN:  And that's what you're
  

18   seeking to be qualified for today?
  

19               MR. BACH:  Yes.  Engineering,
  

20   architecture and planning.
  

21               MR. EINGORN:  We'll accept you as an
  

22   expert.
  

23               MR. BACH:  Thank you.
  

24               MR. GARRISON:  Hi, good evening.  I'm
  

25   Brooks Garrison from Garrison Architects.  I've been
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 1   a registered architect in New Jersey since 1994 and
  

 2   I'm principal at Garrison Architects here to
  

 3   represent issues regarding architecture for Camden's
  

 4   Network Charter.  I also have been in front of this
  

 5   Board prior and have hundreds of planning board
  

 6   experience previously.
  

 7               MR. EINGORN:  We'll accept you as an
  

 8   expert in architecture.
  

 9               MR. GARRISON:  Thank you.
  

10               MS. MARLIN:  The property that we're
  

11   about tonight is the Rosedale Elementary School.  And
  

12   this property received site plan approval,
  

13   preliminary and final and variances and waivers in
  

14   2014 for the very project that we're here for
  

15   tonight.  So, that's why I handed out the 2014
  

16   site plan just so that you have it.  You can see that
  

17   it's exactly what we're looking at tonight again.
  

18               Also, it has the list of variances and
  

19   waivers that were part of that application in 2014.
  

20   So, the project had two parts to it.  There were two
  

21   additions that were going to be built on to the
  

22   elementary school.  And the first addition which they
  

23   called Phase I was just classrooms.  And then the
  

24   second addition which they called Phase II was
  

25   classrooms plus an auditorium.  And there were other
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 1   site improvements with each of these phases,
  

 2   sidewalks, fencing, landscaping.
  

 3               So, the applicant received approval for
  

 4   both Phase I and Phase II.  The applicant met all the
  

 5   conditions of the approval.  They pulled their
  

 6   permits; they started construction.  They completed
  

 7   Phase I.  So, that's the addition with just the
  

 8   classrooms.
  

 9               They are now at the point where they
  

10   would like to start Phase II construction.  It was
  

11   delayed until they had the funding.  They have
  

12   funding now for Phase II.  Phase II will look exactly
  

13   like it was approved back in 2014, the exact same
  

14   classrooms, the auditorium.  The site improvements
  

15   are identical to what was approved.  The difference
  

16   is for funding reasons, they need to break Phase II
  

17   into two phases.  So, now we're calling it Phase II
  

18   and Phase III.  It's the same addition that was
  

19   approved.  But what they'd like to do is initially,
  

20   they have the funding to build just the classrooms.
  

21   And then when they get additional funding, they would
  

22   add the auditorium on.
  

23               So, at the end when the auditorium is
  

24   done, it will look exactly as it was approved in
  

25   2014.  There's just this intermediate step that's
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 1   being done for funding purposes.  So, they applied
  

 2   for their permits for construction for this Phase II
  

 3   and were told that they needed to get amended site
  

 4   plan approval because of this two-step process that
  

 5   they're proposing for the construction.
  

 6               So, I'm going to have Steve Bock give you
  

 7   an overview.  But let me tell you about one more
  

 8   wrinkle before we start that.  So, there's one other
  

 9   wrinkle to this project.  And when it was approved in
  

10   2014, everybody reviewed this project using the
  

11   standards for the R-2 District.  That is the zone
  

12   where the property is located.  The plans were done
  

13   using R-2.  The review letters were done using R-2.
  

14   The variances were granted using R-2.  For the first
  

15   time when we got Ms. Moore's review letter, we were
  

16   informed that this property is part of the Rosedale
  

17   Redevelopment Plan area.
  

18               The Rosedale Redevelopment Plan is dated
  

19   2005, so I have no idea why it didn't apply in 2014,
  

20   but we're applying it now.  And so when the plans
  

21   were done, we didn't know about the Rosedale
  

22   Redevelopment Plan.  So, the charts that are in the
  

23   plans right now refer to the R-2 development.  So,
  

24   I'm going to give you another handout.  This is our
  

25   revised zoning chart showing you the project
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 1   conforms to the Rosedale Redevelopment area.  You can
  

 2   call that B or A-2.  I'm not sure how you want to do
  

 3   it.
  

 4               MR. EINGORN:  We will mark the Camden's
  

 5   Charter Network Rosedale Campus handout as Exhibit B
  

 6   to the application.
  

 7               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  What I'd like to do if
  

 8   you don't mind, we can go through our engineer's
  

 9   letter.
  

10               MS. MOORE:  Is there anything you think
  

11   you need to present outside of --
  

12               MR. BACH:  I just want to give a very
  

13   brief overview of the steps that were done under
  

14   Phase I so the Board is aware.  And I won't go at
  

15   length.  I just want to make sure.
  

16               So what we have here is just a color
  

17   retention of our Phase II site plan.  I just want to
  

18   point out, as part of our currently-proposed Phase
  

19   II.  As part of Phase I when we did the original
  

20   improvements, we worked with the Board Engineer and
  

21   also with the City Engineer to complete the majority
  

22   of the site improvements, if not all of the relative
  

23   site improvements as part of Phase I.
  

24               So, the stormwater management system for
  

25   the overall development including the auditorium,
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 1   were approved, designed by -- approved by this Board
  

 2   Engineer and the City Engineer and installed in
  

 3   2015 prior to the CO of Phase I.  All the perimeter
  

 4   improvements, meaning, all sidewalks, all upgrades to
  

 5   handicap ramps, all appropriate modifications to the
  

 6   storm and sanitary; all the inspection reports,
  

 7   everything that was required by the Board Engineer
  

 8   and the City Engineer.
  

 9               So, in essence, the entire perimeter was
  

10   addressed with new decorative fencing, sidewalks,
  

11   handicap ramps, everything to match the adjacent
  

12   recreation areas and the entire stormwater system was
  

13   in place.  So, all the site improvements, the basis
  

14   of it was completed under the first phase.  So, what
  

15   we're looking for here is really to add the first
  

16   interior addition and leave the parking as is under
  

17   what of we're calling Phase II right now.
  

18               And then Phase III would be to add the
  

19   auditorium and then to modify an existing parking
  

20   area off of Pleasant Street to provide for better
  

21   drop-off of the students.  This is an elementary
  

22   school.  And the policy here is, parents to the
  

23   school and so it's a drop-off type of facility.
  

24               MS. MARLIN:  But the modification there
  

25   that's shown as part of this, was all part of the
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 1   original plan.  If you look back at 2014, that
  

 2   parking lot modification was part of that.
  

 3               MR. BACH:  So, nothing that's proposed in
  

 4   our plan set is an expansion or an alteration that
  

 5   was -- nothing is an expansion or alteration from
  

 6   what was improved in 2014.  Thank you.
  

 7               MS. MOORE:  We can go right to the
  

 8   letter.  Mr. Chairman, I'm referring to Remington &
  

 9   Vernick's letter dated February 10th, 2020.  We will
  

10   start on page three.
  

11               Under the area of bulk requirements,
  

12   there are a couple of items that are 'to be
  

13   determined' by the applicant's professionals.  If
  

14   you'd be able to provide the information regarding
  

15   the floor area ratio and the off-street parking?
  

16               MR. BACH:  Yes.  So, in the exhibit that
  

17   was provided by Counsel, we indicated that we're in
  

18   conformance with all the bulk standards including the
  

19   floor area ratio.  For the parking we have
  

20   demonstrated that the existing, we are complying with
  

21   parking.  Phase II as we're proposing, we would be
  

22   complying with parking.  Phase III under the
  

23   redevelopment, Rosedale Redevelopment Plan and the
  

24   calculations that that prescribes, we would be
  

25   providing 106 spaces under the submitted plan and 109
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 1   spaces are required.
  

 2               MS. MARLIN:  So, I do have a plan here
  

 3   that I'm going to ask you to --
  

 4               MR. BACH:  We have the ability because of
  

 5   the impervious coverage requirements under the
  

 6   Redevelopment Plan where we can add three additional
  

 7   parking spaces and the exhibit here will show where,
  

 8   which will be on the northern -- 31st & Pleasant.
  

 9   So, it would be at the drive aisle adjacent to 31st &
  

10   Pleasant, we can provide three additional parking
  

11   spaces.  Those three spaces would not cause a
  

12   variance of impervious coverage.  And we've also
  

13   reviewed a previously and submitted improved drainage
  

14   calculations that that amount of additional
  

15   impervious would not impact reductions required for
  

16   stormwater or --
  

17               MS. MOORE:  So, you wouldn't need a
  

18   variance for either of these two items?
  

19               MR. BACH:  No variance with the addition
  

20   of those three spaces.
  

21               MS. MOORE:  We'll see that on revised
  

22   plans?
  

23               MR. BACH:  Yes.
  

24               MR. EINGORN:  Let the record reflect that
  

25   the applicant has provided to the Board, copies of an
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 1   amended and preliminary and final site plan of
  

 2   Camden's Charter School network Phase III site plan
  

 3   labeled SP-8.  It's consisting of one page which will
  

 4   be marked Exhibit C to the application.
  

 5               MS. MARLIN:  Just so you know, there is
  

 6   an SP-8 that we submitted that's part of this.  This
  

 7   has the three little spaces added on to it.  So, it's
  

 8   not identical to the SP-8 that was submitted.
  

 9               MR. BACH:  It would be illustrative of
  

10   where those spaces would be located.
  

11               MS. MARLIN:  It's to illustrate where
  

12   they are.
  

13               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  The area and bulk
  

14   charts should be revised to indicate the sites
  

15   located in the Rosedale Redevelopment area - R-1 Low
  

16   Density Residential Zone.
  

17               MR. BACH:  Yes.
  

18               MS. MOORE:  We'll see that on revised
  

19   plans too.
  

20               Streets.  If a street opening is
  

21   necessary, this application would be subject to the
  

22   Street-Opening Permit Ordinance of the City.  The
  

23   City Engineer should be contacted concerning
  

24   application and fees involved.
  

25               MR. BACH: Agree.
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 1               MS. MOORE:  Per the Redevelopment Plan,
  

 2   the calculation should be provided for the overall
  

 3   final building square footage, including existing and
  

 4   all phases.  The applicant has reduced the overall
  

 5   number of parking spaces by 17 spaces.  So, you'll
  

 6   add that information on the plans?
  

 7               MR. BACH:  Yes.
  

 8               MS. MOORE:  Per Section 577-231.B.3,
  

 9   parking spaces that abut affixed objects such as a
  

10   wall, shall be at least 10 feet wide and 20 feet
  

11   long, whereas, 9 feet by 18 feet exists.  This is a
  

12   pre-existing nonconforming condition.  The applicant
  

13   requests a waiver.
  

14               MS. MARLIN:  And it's actually one of the
  

15   waivers that was granted in 2014.  So, if you look on
  

16   that chart, a waiver was granted for the size of the
  

17   parking space.
  

18               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  But you would still
  

19   ask for a waiver now, correct?
  

20               MR. BACH:  Yes.  Belt and suspenders.
  

21   We just want to illustrate that it was already
  

22   included in our previous approval in 2014.
  

23               MS. MARLIN:  Right.
  

24               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  We listed as a
  

25   pre-existing nonconforming condition.
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 1               MR. BACH:  Yes.
  

 2               MS. MOORE:  It's my understanding when
  

 3   this happens, you still have to request the waiver,
  

 4   Counsel, with this application, correct?
  

 5               MR. EINGORN:  Well, I think also because
  

 6   we are noting a change in the redevelopment area even
  

 7   though it could have been existing at the time.  We
  

 8   should require that the waiver be requested.
  

 9               MS. MOORE:  Okay.
  

10               Per the Redevelopment Plan, sidewalks
  

11   shall be 10 to 15 feet wide.  Sidewalks should be
  

12   dimensioned but appear to be less than required.
  

13               MR. BACH:  We ask that the sidewalks
  

14   remain as constructed under the 2014 approvals.
  

15               MS. MOORE:  Yes.
  

16               MS. MARLIN:  And they are 6 to 6 and a
  

17   half feet on the plans.
  

18               MS. MOORE:  Per Section 577-224.B.5.g,
  

19   bicycle lockers and/or stands should be provided at
  

20   the building entrance whereas none are proposed.
  

21   Plans should be revised or a waiver requested.
  

22               MR. BACH:  Waiver request; that this is
  

23   an elementary school.  We did confirm with the
  

24   operational staff of the charter school that no
  

25   students bike to the school.  This is drop-off by the
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 1   parents.  So, it's not appropriate to have bicycle
  

 2   racks, etc.  We would ask for the waiver.
  

 3               MS. MARLIN:  Do you want some testimony
  

 4   on the record from the school with regard to that
  

 5   policy?
  

 6               MS. MOORE:  Yes, that would be good.
  

 7   Because we generally do ask for bicycle racks
  

 8   especially at a school.
  

 9               MR. HEMBRECHT:  Well, I'd say Pre-K to 4
  

10   campus and as board policy, no student is allowed to
  

11   enter the school or depart without a parent pick-up.
  

12               MS. MOORE:  So, they can't ride their
  

13   bike to school?
  

14               MR. HEMBRECHT:   No, they're not allowed
  

15   to.
  

16               MS. MOORE:  Loading.  Per Section
  

17   577-224.B.13, delivery and loading operation
  

18   shall not disturb adjoining residential
  

19   neighborhoods.  This is a pre-existing nonconforming
  

20   condition.  You're requesting a waiver?
  

21               MR. BACH:  Yes.
  

22               MS. MOORE:  Per Section 577-231.C.2, the
  

23   loading area shall be 12 feet wide by 50 feet long,
  

24   whereas the existing loading dock is 12 by 30.
  

25   This is a pre-existing nonconforming condition.  You
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 1   request a waiver?
  

 2               MR. BACH:  Yes.
  

 3               MS. MOORE:  Stormwater Collection and
  

 4   Management System.  The top of the curb elevation for
  

 5   all curb inlets should be provided on the plans.
  

 6               MR. BACH:  Yes, we can provide it.
  

 7               MS. MOORE:  The rim and invert elevations
  

 8   for the existing manhole on Dudley Street should be
  

 9   shown on the plans.
  

10               MR. BACH:  Yes.
  

11               MS. MOORE:  The existing pipe for this
  

12   connection should be shown on the Phase II Utility
  

13   Plan indicating the size and material of the pipe.
  

14               MR. BACH:  And that would be on the Phase
  

15   III because that is the connection for the
  

16   auditorium, but we will provide it on the Phase III.
  

17               MS. MOORE:  Got it.  It is on Phase III,
  

18   which is what is on Phase II.
  

19               MR. BACH:  Everything along the Phase II
  

20   addition is being done internally to the existing
  

21   building.  Only Phase III will have a new sanitary
  

22   connection and a new fire service connection.
  

23               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  That's fine then.
  

24               Stormwater quality and ground water
  

25   recharge must addressed.  If that's been addressed
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 1   previously, if you can provide information along with
  

 2   this.
  

 3               MR. BACH:  Yes.  We can demonstrate that
  

 4   from our currently submitted and our previously
  

 5   submitted stormwater calculations.
  

 6               MS. MOORE:  Okay.
  

 7               The applicant should include a low-impact
  

 8   development checklist in the drainage calculations.
  

 9               MR. BACH:  We did not in 2014.  We can.
  

10               MS. MOORE:  It's a requirement now.
  

11   That's the only problem.
  

12               MR. BACH:  We can provide, yes.
  

13               MS. MOORE:  The applicant must prepare a
  

14   stormwater maintenance plan for the stormwater
  

15   management system for the New Jersey Stormwater Best
  

16   Practices Manual.  That's something else that you
  

17   know that's a requirement now.
  

18               MR. BACH:  We did.  So, we've already
  

19   prepared it.  We already had it reviewed by your
  

20   office and also by the City Engineer.  Because the
  

21   stormwater management has been in place since 2015.
  

22               MS. MOORE:  Right.
  

23               MR. BACH:  So, we'll provide you with a
  

24   copy of the stormwater management plan that was
  

25   approved by the City Engineer.
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 1               MS. MOORE:  And the Maintenance Plan
  

 2   was --
  

 3               MR. BACH:  I mean, the Maintenance Plan
  

 4   approved by the City Engineer, yes.
  

 5               MS. MOORE:  One was approved back then?
  

 6               MR. BACH:  Yes.
  

 7               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  I don't remember that
  

 8   one.  If you can provide a copy then.
  

 9               MR. BACH:  Absolutely.
  

10               MS. MOORE:  So it's been filed.  It's
  

11   something that's already on file with the County?
  

12               MR. BACH:  I don't know if it has been
  

13   filed.  I know it has been approved by your office
  

14   and then the City Engineer.  I do not know if it's
  

15   been recorded.  That we don't know.
  

16               MS. MOORE:  Because now it should be
  

17   recorded.  And then as a matter of fact, the items
  

18   that are listed on No. 14 have to be in there now.
  

19   And I know that's new.  That's only been within the
  

20   last couple of years.
  

21               MR. BACH:  I can say it real easy.  We
  

22   will amend the stormwater maintenance as necessary to
  

23   the satisfaction of the Board Engineer and City
  

24   Engineer and have it recorded.
  

25               MS. MOORE:  Thank you.  And the recording
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 1   is No. 12.  And then the statements that need to be
  

 2   in that maintenance plan and also on the plan, are
  

 3   listed under No. 14.  So, if you can have those items
  

 4   as notes in the plan and then add that to the
  

 5   Maintenance plan.
  

 6               MR. BACH:  Yes.  Are drainage
  

 7   calculations also recorded, the actual drainage?
  

 8               MS. MOORE:  No.  Just the Maintenance
  

 9   Plan.
  

10               MR. BACH:  Okay.
  

11               MS. MOORE:  And then No. 13, a stormwater
  

12   fee is to be calculated per the site as outlined in
  

13   Appendix 18?
  

14               MR. BACH:  We have evidence of the
  

15   application.  We have evidence of the check.
  

16               MS. MOORE:  That has already been paid?
  

17               MR. BACH:  Yes.
  

18               MS. MOORE:  That should have been paid
  

19   previously.
  

20               MR. BACH:  Yes.  That was paid before we
  

21   can CO on the building when the storm system was put
  

22   in operation.
  

23               MS. MOORE:  I'll go to grading.
  

24               According to Section 577-227.A.4,
  

25   permanent benchmarks shall be set for all major
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 1   subdivision and for site plans exceeding two acres in
  

 2   size.  Do you know if you did that previously?
  

 3               MR. BACH:  Yes.  We have four iron pins
  

 4   at each -- we have an iron pin at each property
  

 5   corner so we have four total.  We'll note them on the
  

 6   plan and provide elevations.
  

 7               MS. MOORE:  I didn't see them on the
  

 8   plans so if you can please.
  

 9               MR. BACH:  Sure.
  

10               MS. MOORE:  The applicant should confirm
  

11   that the building additions do not have a basement or
  

12   crawlspace.
  

13               MR. BACH:  They do not.
  

14               MS. MOORE:  Spot grades should be shown
  

15   at the building corners and building access points of
  

16   the building addition areas.
  

17               MR. BACH:  Yes.
  

18               MS. MOORE:  Spot grades should be
  

19   provided where the applicant is matching existing
  

20   concrete and asphalt surfaces.
  

21               MR. BACH:  We will provide.
  

22               MS. MOORE:  And you'll add this note on
  

23   the plan regarding utilities and related
  

24   appurtenances on the site to be located underground.
  

25   That first note under the utilities, can --
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 1               MR. BACH:  That's the note.  Okay.
  

 2               MS. MOORE:  If you can add that note
  

 3   specifically on the plan.
  

 4               MR. BACH:  Yes.
  

 5               MS. MOORE:  The material and size of the
  

 6   existing water main along Dudley Street should be
  

 7   shown on the utility plans, the existing one.
  

 8               MR. BACH:  We will note it.
  

 9               MS. MOORE:  The proposed six-inch CLDIP
  

10   fire lateral is shown on the Utility Plan for Phase
  

11   III.  The applicant should clarify if there's a
  

12   separate domestic water lateral that should also be
  

13   shown on the plan.
  

14               MR. BACH:  There is not.  It'll be done
  

15   from the interior of the building but we'll note that
  

16   specifically.
  

17               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  So, it's the same
  

18   lateral, correct?
  

19               MR. BACH:  No.  The domestic is coming
  

20   off of the existing service that services the
  

21   existing school.  Only the fire service on Phase III
  

22   is coming off of Dudley.
  

23               MS. MOORE:  All right.  Separate and it's
  

24   existing.
  

25               All sanitary sewer clean-outs should be
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 1   labeled with an invert provided.
  

 2               MR. BACH:  Yes.
  

 3               MS. MOORE:  The proposed sanitary sewer
  

 4   lateral in Phase III connects to the pipe along
  

 5   Dudley Street.  The legend should be clarified to
  

 6   determine if this pipe is a storm sewer as indicated
  

 7   as "D" or if it is a combined system pipe.
  

 8               MR. BACH:  We have provided to the City
  

 9   Engineer previously an inspection of all the
  

10   surrounding so it is denoted that it is a combined
  

11   line.
  

12               MS. MOORE:  Okay.
  

13               MR. BACH:  And there's a noted backflow
  

14   preventer details on our plan.  We'll provide that
  

15   information to your office of what was approved by
  

16   the City Engineer.
  

17               MS. MOORE:  Well, the line just says it's
  

18   "D."  And if you look on your plan, "D" is noted as
  

19   storm sewer.  So, you may just want to change that.
  

20               MR. BACH:  Call it out as combined?
  

21               MS. MOORE:  Call it out as combined.
  

22               MR. BACH:  Call it out as combined.  And
  

23   then I'll still provide you that report that was
  

24   provided to the City Engineer.
  

25               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  All
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 1   developers/applicants should note that due to a City
  

 2   Ordinance, a Capacity Fee may be applicable to the
  

 3   proposed development.  The applicant shall contact
  

 4   the City Engineer for all costs related to the
  

 5   same.
  

 6               MR. BACH:  We have not submitted that fee
  

 7   for Phase II or III but we will.
  

 8               MS. MOORE:  The project must be approved
  

 9   by the City Engineer with written verification
  

10   provided to our office prior to final signatures on
  

11   the plan.
  

12               MR. BACH:  Agreed.
  

13               MS. MOORE:  And the project must be
  

14   approved by the City Fire Chief with written
  

15   verification provided to our office prior to final
  

16   signatures on the plan.
  

17               MR. BACH:  Agreed.
  

18               MS. MOORE:  A CCTV inspection must be
  

19   performed and reviewed by the City Engineer prior to
  

20   construction.  That's what you're saying has already
  

21   been completed?
  

22               MR. BACH:  We have provided that and
  

23   we'll provide additional copies.
  

24               MS. MOORE:  Well, you would provide that
  

25   to the City Engineer in case he needs that.  I
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 1   wouldn't review.
  

 2               MR. BACH:  You don't?
  

 3               MS. MOORE:  No.  The City Engineer.  I
  

 4   just pointed out here just in case he forgets to note
  

 5   it in his letter, but it's actually written here.
  

 6               MR. BACH:  Agreed.
  

 7               MS. MOORE:  And then the following notes
  

 8   should be added to the Utility Plans.  You'll add
  

 9   these notes listed?
  

10               MR. BACH:  Yes.
  

11               MS. MOORE:  Construction Details:  A
  

12   playground structure detail is shown on Sheet 17;
  

13   however, the playground does not appear to be
  

14   proposed as part of Phase II or III.
  

15               MR. BACH:  It's existing.  So, when we
  

16   came in for amended preliminary and final, we kept
  

17   them as all being proposed.  It's an existing
  

18   playground that was constructed under Phase I.
  

19               MS. MOORE:  The trash enclosure detail
  

20   has been provided on Sheet 15; however, it appears
  

21   the trash enclosure is existing.  Plans should be
  

22   revised to eliminate the detail or illustrate the
  

23   proposed enclosure location on the site plan.
  

24               MR. BACH:  So, as for the playground on
  

25   the site plan, we're going to leave the detail on the
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 1   plan set but note them as being constructed under
  

 2   Phase I.
  

 3               MS. MOORE:  Okay.
  

 4               MR. BACH:  Both the trash enclosure and
  

 5   the playground for clarity.
  

 6               MS. MOORE:  Nothing proposed to the trash
  

 7   enclosure?
  

 8               MR. BACH:  Nothing.
  

 9               MS. MOORE:  All details should note a
  

10   compressive strength of 4,500 psi for concrete.
  

11               MR. BACH:  Agreed.
  

12               MS. MOORE:  And detail not required for
  

13   the proposed construction should be removed from the
  

14   plans.
  

15               MR. BACH:  Can I note the Phase I details
  

16   as Phase I details and then --
  

17               MS. MOORE:  That's fine.
  

18               Per the Redevelopment Plan, shade trees
  

19   are to be provided along all road frontages at a
  

20   spacing of at least 40 feet on center.  The applicant
  

21   requests a variance.  Our office recommends that
  

22   additional trees be provided to reduce heat island
  

23   effect and provide shade.
  

24               MR. BACH:  We previously requested a
  

25   waiver in 2014 and we continue to request a waiver
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 1   for the additional --
  

 2               MS. MOORE:  For shade trees?
  

 3               MR. BACH:  Yes.
  

 4               MS. MARLIN:  In 2014 it was an ordinance
  

 5   requirement for the shade trees every 35 feet and we
  

 6   did get a variance from that.  So, we're requesting
  

 7   the same from this similar requirement.
  

 8               MS. MOORE:  Per the Redevelopment Plan, 5
  

 9   percent of the parking lot shall be landscaped.  The
  

10   applicant requests a variance.
  

11               MR. BACH:  Yes, we do.
  

12               MS. MOORE:  And your reasoning?
  

13               MR. BACH:  The --
  

14               MS. MARLIN:  Again, I will say it was one
  

15   of the variances.  There's an identical section in
  

16   the ordinance that requires 5 percent of the parking
  

17   lots be landscaped and we got a variance from that in
  

18   2014.  So, we're trying to stay with our exact same
  

19   plans that we had in 2014.
  

20               MS. MOORE:  Okay.
  

21               It appears that 6 trees are slated for
  

22   removal as part of this application.  The
  

23   compensatory planting may be necessary per Section
  

24   577-247.  Our office recommends that all tree removal
  

25   occur as part of Phase II to reduce costs.
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 1               MR. BACH:  We would agree to anything
  

 2   with Compensatory Tree Ordinance and we would agree
  

 3   to remove those trees as part of Phase II.
  

 4               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  Will you just note
  

 5   where you would plant trees?
  

 6               MR. BACH:  I believe there's a fee also
  

 7   that is --
  

 8               MS. MOORE:  A fee?
  

 9               MR. BACH:  We would comply.  So, we're
  

10   either going to plant the trees or we'll pay the
  

11   appropriate fee.  And if we're planting the trees,
  

12   we'll note that on the revised submission.
  

13               MS. MARLIN:  I think there's one on the
  

14   plan right now but we need some more.
  

15               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  We would probably
  

16   prefer that you plant the trees.
  

17               MR. BACH:  Then we're planting trees.
  

18               MS. MOORE:  Per Section 577-224.B.1.e,
  

19   the visual impact of large surface parking lots
  

20   located along street frontages shall be minimized
  

21   with landscaping.  The applicant requests a waiver.
  

22   You received something similar previously?
  

23               MS. MARLIN:  This whole page, 4 to 12,
  

24   all of these variances or waivers were granted in
  

25   2014, so we would request the same; a waiver at this
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 1   point.
  

 2               MS. MOORE:  Okay.
  

 3               MS. MARLIN:  The same for No. 13 on the
  

 4   next page.
  

 5               MS. MOORE:  That's the same.  And with
  

 6   lighting, is that similar also?
  

 7               MR. BACH:  Yes.
  

 8               MS. MOORE:  All of them?
  

 9               MR. BACH:  All of them.  The lighting was
  

10   specifically reviewed to match and be complementary
  

11   to the adjacent recreational.  Also, Phase I is
  

12   currently constructed with the lighting and the
  

13   aspects of the lighting.  So, we'd like to maintain
  

14   those same aspects in Phase II and III.
  

15               MS. MARLIN:  I just want to be clear that
  

16   none of these lighting variances were called out as
  

17   necessary in the last application.  So, they are not
  

18   listed as waivers.  But the lighting that's being
  

19   proposed on this plan is identical to the lighting as
  

20   it was approved back in 2014; much of which was meant
  

21   to correlate with the lighting in the surrounding
  

22   area.  So, we would request that it stays the same.
  

23               MS. MOORE:  I'm not sure if No. 7,
  

24   Lighting:  All outdoor lighting not essential for
  

25   safety and security purposes shall be activated by
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 1   automatic control devices and turned off during
  

 2   non-operating hours.
  

 3               MS. MARLIN:  I'm going ask Bill to talk
  

 4   about that.
  

 5               MR. BACH:  Photo cell or timers.
  

 6               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  Do you have that noted
  

 7   on the plan?  If not, we can add that to the plan.
  

 8               MR. BACH:  We will add the note.
  

 9               MS. MOORE:  But that has been taken care
  

10   of, correct?
  

11               MR. BACH:  Yes, and that's how it
  

12   operates currently.
  

13               MS. MOORE:  Then I will go to the Traffic
  

14   Report:  The applicant submitted a Traffic
  

15   Engineering Assessment in 2014 pertaining to the
  

16   proposed improvements at that time.  The applicant
  

17   should provide a similar document for the proposed
  

18   improvements of this proposal.
  

19               MR. BACH:  That was prepared by
  

20   Shropshire & Associates in 2014.  That Traffic
  

21   Assessment contemplated the full build-out as
  

22   currently before you this evening with the auditorium
  

23   and everything else.  So, we would ask to rely upon
  

24   that.
  

25               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  And the environmental
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 1   impacts, are they also the same?
  

 2               MR. BACH:  Exactly the same.  So, we
  

 3   would ask to rely upon our previously submitted
  

 4   Environmental Impact Assessment.
  

 5               MS. MOORE:  And the trash enclosure,
  

 6   you'll need a waiver for these because they're all a
  

 7   pre-existing non-conforming condition?
  

 8               MR. BACH:  Yes.
  

 9               MS. MARLIN:  Right.  They also were all
  

10   granted in 2014.
  

11               MS. MOORE:  The signage.
  

12               MR. BACH:  Our signage as proposed is
  

13   consistent with what was approved in 2014.  On the
  

14   31st Street elevation, we were approved for 4,200
  

15   square feet where 40 square feet is the maximum
  

16   permitted on a facade.
  

17               On the Dudley Street elevation, we're
  

18   proposing 32 square feet, where 40 feet maximum is
  

19   permitted.
  

20               MS. MARLIN:  Both signs were part of the
  

21   original application.  It was the same size from the
  

22   original application.  And a waiver or a variance was
  

23   granted in 2014 for the size of the signs.  So, we'd
  

24   request the same.
  

25               MS. MOORE:  So then the size of the
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 1   proposed sign should be provided.
  

 2               MR. BACH:  We will detail the two facade
  

 3   signs.
  

 4               MS. MOORE:  And do you still need it with
  

 5   the Redevelopment Plan?
  

 6               MR. BACH:  No.  The Redevelopment Plan
  

 7   provides for two square feet per linear foot of
  

 8   street frontage.
  

 9               MS. MOORE:  Right.
  

10               MR. BACH:  Or up to a maximum of 40
  

11   square feet.  So, even though we well exceed -- if
  

12   you used the two square feet for linear foot based on
  

13   our building frontages along the four individual
  

14   streets, we are maxed out at 40 square feet.  So the
  

15   31st Street building facade sign is 42 square feet.
  

16   So, that would exceed the 40 square feet.
  

17               MS. MARLIN:  But that is the existing
  

18   sign.
  

19               MR. BACH:  It's existing.
  

20               MS. MARLIN:  The existing sign.  The sign
  

21   that's going to be on the addition does meet the
  

22   Redevelopment Plan because that was only 32.
  

23   MR. BACH:  Thirty-two.
  

24               MS. MOORE:  So that is under the 40 foot
  

25   max.
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 1               MR. BACH:  It may be appropriate to note
  

 2   that and ask for that relief because we're going
  

 3   under the Rosedale Redevelopment Plan.
  

 4               MS. MOORE:  Let's do that.  I just added
  

 5   for redevelopment, the sign size.
  

 6               MR. BACH:  So, we're asking for relief
  

 7   for the 31st Street elevation; 42 square feet where
  

 8   40 square feet is permitted by the Redevelopment
  

 9   Plan.
  

10               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  And I put 31st Street
  

11   sign size.
  

12               MR. BACH:  31st Street sign size is 42
  

13   square feet.
  

14               MS. MOORE:  Right.  But that would be
  

15   what you're requesting the variance for?
  

16               MR. BACH:  Yes.  The other sign will be
  

17   compliant and will be under 40 square feet.
  

18               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  And then sign details
  

19   including dimensions, proposed colors and building
  

20   materials, should be included in the site plan set or
  

21   architectural plans should be attached.
  

22               MR. BACH:  Yes, we will provide.
  

23               MS. MOORE:  And the fence, it's a
  

24   pre-existing nonconforming condition.  You probably
  

25   received approval for six feet.  So, --
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 1               MS. MARLIN:  Right, we did get that
  

 2   approval and it was meant to match the other fencing
  

 3   in the area.
  

 4               MS. MOORE:  And you already provided
  

 5   testimony regarding the phasing.
  

 6               And testimony should be provided
  

 7   regarding the purpose of the five-foot wide asphalt
  

 8   strip to be installed along the Pleasant Street side
  

 9   of the Phase I addition foundation.
  

10               MR. BACH:  That's a demolition of a
  

11   five-foot wide of existing asphalt so we could
  

12   install the footings.  And then we're going to put
  

13   the asphalt right back.
  

14               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  And a legend should be
  

15   provided on the Phase II and Phase III site plans.
  

16               MR. BACH:  What type of legend?  I'll
  

17   coordinate that with your office.
  

18               MS. MOORE:  I think you have a legend
  

19   that's early on on the existing conditions.
  

20               MR. BACH:  To match the existing
  

21   business.
  

22               MS. MOORE:  You should have something on
  

23   the site plans.
  

24               MR. BACH:  We'll agree to it and work it
  

25   out with your office.
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 1               MS. MOORE:  The dimensions of the
  

 2   building addition should be shown for both phases and
  

 3   coordinated between the Site Plans and the
  

 4   Architectural Plans.
  

 5               MR. BACH:  Agreed.
  

 6               MS. MOORE:  The signatures for the owner
  

 7   and County representative should be removed from the
  

 8   coversheet.
  

 9               MR. BACH:  Agreed.
  

10               MS. MOORE:  I'll go through the
  

11   variances.  You have a list.  So, if there's
  

12   something that I have incorrect on here, let me know.
  

13               For the variances and waivers, the only
  

14   thing I added on the variances would be the
  

15   redevelopment, the 31st Street sign size.
  

16               So, I'll go through the variances for the
  

17   sidewalk width, street trees, parking lot
  

18   landscaping, the height of light fixtures, high
  

19   pressure sodium lamp, lighting levels.  Two different
  

20   sections in the ordinances, lighting levels -- or
  

21   three different sections of the ordinance.  And then
  

22   lighting levels at property line.  And like I said, I
  

23   added the 31st Street sign size for the
  

24   redevelopment.
  

25               MS. MARLIN:  On the sodium, aren't they
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 1   high-pressure sodium lamps?
  

 2               MR. BACH:  I have not been able to verify
  

 3   that.  So, we're going to ask for that relief but
  

 4   they're going to match exactly to Phase I.
  

 5               MS. MARLIN:  Okay.
  

 6               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  And then waivers we
  

 7   have, fence height, parking perimeter screening,
  

 8   parking islands, bicycle racks, loading area
  

 9   screening, trash enclosure screening, utility
  

10   screening, parking space dimension (abutting trash
  

11   enclosure), loading space dimension, foundation
  

12   plantings, street trees, parking area division,
  

13   parking lot buffer, interior parking area
  

14   landscaping, curbed landscaped islands, trash
  

15   enclosure orientation, and trash enclosure side-entry
  

16   feature.
  

17               MR. BACH:  Yes.
  

18               MS. MOORE:  And you're aware of the
  

19   approval process as listed on page 14 and 15?
  

20               MR. BACH:  Yes, we are.
  

21               MS. MOORE:  If you have any questions,
  

22   you can contact our office.
  

23               Outside agency approvals we have noted:
  

24   Camden County Planning Board, Camden County Soil
  

25   Conservation District.  Are there any others that you
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 1   see necessary?  Mr. Chairman, that concludes our
  

 2   review.
  

 3               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Any questions from the
  

 4   Board?
  

 5               MS. CREAN:  I have a question.  What is
  

 6   your reasoning behind the street tree waiver request?
  

 7               MR. BACH:  We laid out the perimeter
  

 8   parking and the decorative fencing around the entire
  

 9   perimeter as a coordinated design under the Phase I.
  

10   So, we did add low landscaping.  And we did add some
  

11   additional trees overall.  Right now we have
  

12   limitations in terms of our existing parking along
  

13   Pleasant where we're very close to the existing
  

14   sidewalk.  So, we have limitations on where we can
  

15   put additional street trees.
  

16               So, in essence during the 2014 process,
  

17   we coordinated and worked with the Board
  

18   professionals to provide what we believe is an
  

19   appropriate and well-done landscaping package as well
  

20   as decorative fencing, etc.  So, we'd like to retain
  

21   that same character.
  

22               MS. CREAN:  Thank you.
  

23               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Any further questions
  

24   from the Board?
  

25               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  I only have
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 1   one question.  I guess for Section 4 through 12
  

 2   which was previously approved, how different would
  

 3   that be now considering the Redevelopment Plan cause
  

 4   I also have an issue that the previous Redevelopment
  

 5   Plan wasn't considered, correct?
  

 6               MS. MOORE:  Right.
  

 7               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Any
  

 8   substantial changes from 4 to 12?
  

 9               MR. BACH:  On what page are you, please?
  

10               MS. MOORE:  Landscaping you're saying?
  

11               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Page No. 10.
  

12   The part that was previously waived but...
  

13               MR. BACH:  They're identical
  

14   requirements.
  

15               MS. MOORE:  The landscaping, yes.
  

16               MS. MARLIN:  All those requirements have
  

17   not changed.
  

18               MR. BACH:  So, all those items were
  

19   identical.  They have not changed.  They're not
  

20   changed by the Redevelopment Plan.  They're still
  

21   your ordinance sections that remain in effect.
  

22               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Any further
  

23   questions?  Any questions from the public?
  

24               MR. EINGORN:  Please come forward to be
  

25   sworn.  Please raise your right hand.
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 1                         - - -
  

 2               HECTOR MONIYA, having been first duly
  

 3   sworn/affirmed, was examined and testified as
  

 4   follows:
  

 5                         - - -
  

 6               MR. EINGORN:  Please provide your full
  

 7   name address for the record.
  

 8               MR. MONIYA:  Hector Moniya, 516 North
  

 9   31st Street.
  

10               Right in front of my house they use that
  

11   area as a drop-off for their food with tractor
  

12   trailers.  And when they do a drop-off, it's right in
  

13   front of my house.  We can't get out of the house and
  

14   driveway.  And the truck that comes to pick up the
  

15   trash, parks there too.  This is a problem every day.
  

16               Last year I was walking with my dog and
  

17   they come so close they almost run over my feet.
  

18   They don't go in their place.  One comes one way and
  

19   the other one comes the other way.  This is only one
  

20   way.  Why don't they use their parking area as an
  

21   entrance and an exit to go out to the street.  They
  

22   drop off on the street.  Why have to be the drop-off
  

23   in front of my house?  The tractor trailer is full of
  

24   food.  I got pictures and I don't lie.
  

25               MR. EINGORN:  Fortunately, we can't
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 1   accept pictures on a phone because we can't keep the
  

 2   phone as part of the application.
  

 3               MR. MONIYA:  I'm not a professional.
  

 4               MR. EINGORN:  I'm not saying you aren't.
  

 5               MR. MONIYA:  I'm just trying to show you
  

 6   and address something --
  

 7               MR. EINGORN:  I understand.
  

 8               MR. MONIYA: -- and you say, yeah, you're
  

 9   probably right.  I don't like it when I can't get out
  

10   of my house.  And I can't get out until eight o'clock
  

11   to go to work because they got the tractor trailer
  

12   drop-off.
  

13               MS. MOORE:  Where is your drop-off?
  

14               MR. MONIYA:  Right in front of my house.
  

15   I try to get out and I can't.
  

16               MR. BACH: On 31st Street.
  

17               MR. MONIYA:  And they don't use their
  

18   parking.  They don't have no parking.
  

19               MR. EINGORN:  Slow down everyone.  We
  

20   have a court reporter who is trying to take down
  

21   everybody at once and it's really hard.  So, please
  

22   speak one at a time.  It will be appreciated.
  

23               Why don't you finish what you're saying
  

24   and then we can let the applicant address it.
  

25               MR. MONIYA:  They come over to me to park
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 1   and they park in our street.  We can't get out
  

 2   because there is one this way and another this way.
  

 3   They got one gate all the way to the park.  They
  

 4   don't use that.  They use our street to park.  To
  

 5   bring the food, they use our street with their
  

 6   tractor trailers.  The milk, our street.  To
  

 7   drop-off, our street.  All their stuff, they don't
  

 8   use their parking area.  They use our street.  Nobody
  

 9   lives in their park.
  

10               I don't need to come out of my house at
  

11   seven o'clock in the morning and can't get out to go
  

12   to work.  They come and drop their gates for three
  

13   hours.  For God sake, something happens to me like a
  

14   heart attack or other medical stuff, I'd be dead
  

15   because I can't get in or out of my house.  My wife
  

16   leaves at seven o'clock in the morning and she can't
  

17   get out and also when she gets back in the morning
  

18   time because of that problem.
  

19               I told them that the first time when they
  

20   were going to make this plan.  And when they were
  

21   making the building every boom, boom, everything
  

22   falls down in the house, pictures.  This is crazy.
  

23   You guys don't think about us.  You don't think about
  

24   that I got to work for a living.  I got to be able to
  

25   get out of my house.  And it's no easy for me to work
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 1   every day, 20 hours, 40 hours and then I can't even
  

 2   get into my house.
  

 3               MR. EINGORN:  So, the issues you're
  

 4   having so I can confirm are, that you're having an
  

 5   inability to get in and out of your house?
  

 6               MR. MONIYA:  Yes.
  

 7               MR. EINGORN:  Because of people parking
  

 8   as well as the tractor trailers or just the tractor
  

 9   trailers?
  

10               MR. MONIYA:  The tractor trailers and the
  

11   people that come in to drop off their kids right in
  

12   front of the house too.
  

13               MR. EINGORN:  And the other issue is that
  

14   during construction it was shaking your house?
  

15               MR. MONIYA:  Yeah, everything was falling
  

16   down in the house and shaking the whole house.
  

17               MR. EINGORN:  So, let's ask the applicant
  

18   what can be done to mitigate some of these issues.
  

19               MR. BACH:  The one question I would ask,
  

20   are the tractor trailers or cars blocking a driveway
  

21   entrance or just in front of?
  

22               MR. MONIYA:  Yes, the whole front,
  

23   because they are parking on that side.  I get out of
  

24   my house this way.  Now, if you look at this, the
  

25   people come this way behind the tractor trailer.  The



69

  

 1   other one is going this way and the other one is
  

 2   going that way so now they fighting two traffics
  

 3   coming into the school and they sit there.
  

 4               So, now you're going to make another
  

 5   parking.  They don't park in there.  They park in our
  

 6   street.  They got that empty part in the school,
  

 7   1,000 feet behind there.  Use the parking.  Use that
  

 8   for whatever you do.  Don't use our street for this.
  

 9   Plus there's all this water there.
  

10               MR. BACH:  So, Mr. Hembrecht, do you have
  

11   control of the deliveries to the school?
  

12               MS. MARLIN:  Step up and tell him what
  

13   the policy is.
  

14               MR. HEMBRECHT:  So, we do have control.
  

15   We tell the trucks where to go.  Sometimes as he is
  

16   saying, they come at 6:30, seven o'clock in the
  

17   morning before core staff are there and they don't
  

18   always follow procedures.  And sometimes they go out
  

19   on the street rather than coming into the parking
  

20   lot.
  

21               MS. MARLIN:  But what is the procedure
  

22   that they're suppose to be following that you have?
  

23               MR. HEMBRECHT:  They should be coming
  

24   into our driveway and coming into the loading zone
  

25   which is what has been requested.
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 1               MS. MARLIN:  So, are you willing to speak
  

 2   to the truck drivers about where they should be
  

 3   dropping off?
  

 4               MR. HEMBRECHT:  We can talk to them, yes.
  

 5   And we can try and speak again to the parents that
  

 6   they should be coming into the lot where they are
  

 7   suppose to come in.  But at times, they will be
  

 8   park --
  

 9               MR. MARTIN:  I find your response
  

10   disingenuous, sir.
  

11               MR. HEMBRECHT:  I'm not really sure
  

12   how -- and I'm probably going through this whole
  

13   thing -- but if a parent decides to park three blocks
  

14   away or across the way and walk their kid in,
  

15   how do you stop them?  I mean, we open the gates; we
  

16   tell them they're suppose to come into the other lot
  

17   and park and walk through.  I guess we can have
  

18   security out there to force them away.
  

19               MR. MONIYA:  Why don't they use your
  

20   parking lot?  You have a parking lot.  We don't have
  

21   nothing against the school.  We have it against the
  

22   way you use the parking.
  

23               MR. HEMBRECHT:  I agree.  We should
  

24   redress.
  

25               MR. MONIYA:  Use the whole parking lot on
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 1   the other side of the park.  We got no problem with
  

 2   that.
  

 3               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  You understand what
  

 4   the issue is, correct?
  

 5               MR. HEMBRECHT:  I do understand that.  We
  

 6   have families going on to that area and we will do a
  

 7   better job of re-routing them into the parking
  

 8   lot.
  

 9               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Well, not only that,
  

10   your trucks too.  You're creating an issue for not
  

11   only safety, but the drivers are taking advantage of
  

12   what they consider what they want more so than what
  

13   the community in the area where your school is at is
  

14   what they need.
  

15               Have you spoken to the police division
  

16   and called the police and filed a complaint and give
  

17   him tickets, Mr. Moniya?
  

18               MR. MONIYA:  I went inside the school and
  

19   I talked to the lady.  About a couple of months ago I
  

20   was walking with my dog.  They had something with the
  

21   school --
  

22               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  You already spoke
  

23   about that.
  

24               MR. MONIYA:  So, anyway I went inside and
  

25   told them I want to talk to the principal.  I said,
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 1   this is a problem.  They don't want to hear nothing.
  

 2   Nobody in there wants to hear nothing.  And this is
  

 3   not the first time.  Everytime people drive like
  

 4   animals and they don't listen.
  

 5               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Understood.  And
  

 6   you're dealing with children in the same school.
  

 7               MR. MONIYA:  And you're dealing too with
  

 8   two traffic coming into one place.  You're talking
  

 9   about ten cars this way and ten cars that way and
  

10   then you're trying to get out of your house.  You try
  

11   it.
  

12               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Understood.
  

13               MR. MARTIN:  If I may address this to the
  

14   charter school.  The way you address that is through
  

15   contracts with your vendors and specifically for the
  

16   deliveries.  And if they fail to perform then you
  

17   penalize them or replace them.
  

18               But what's happening now is, obviously
  

19   you're not exercising control over them if he can't
  

20   get out of his house.  There's no way in God's green
  

21   earth that this Board would approve blocking a
  

22   residence no matter how important the delivery is to
  

23   the school on a consistent basis.
  

24   Point 1.
  

25               Point 2:  As far as you control your
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 1   parents.  That's your responsibility to have your
  

 2   security there or have that discussion with the
  

 3   parents.  And it's a training issue.  It won't
  

 4   just -- you can't just wave a magic wand and pretend
  

 5   that it's going to change.  You have to take
  

 6   aggressive action to deal with our parents.
  

 7   Otherwise, you become a bad neighbor in the community
  

 8   and you'll find going before this Board or any of the
  

 9   charter schools that your firm represents going
  

10   before this Board, to become increasingly difficult
  

11   because of the actions you fail to take after this
  

12   citizen complaint.
  

13               So, it's really important.  And though it
  

14   would nice if you as the education administrator
  

15   didn't have to deal with things about traffic created
  

16   by your school.  That's not the world.  The world is,
  

17   you have to solve the problems you've created to your
  

18   neighbors.  And if you fail to take that
  

19   responsibility, you're not being fair to your
  

20   students either.
  

21               MR. HEMBRECHT:  I would agree with you.
  

22   And we will speak with that building principal and
  

23   our security team and we will rectify that and we
  

24   will speak with the families in that area to insure
  

25   that it doesn't occur.
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 1               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  And also your delivery
  

 2   guys.
  

 3               MR. HEMBRECHT:  As well, yes.
  

 4               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Because that's going
  

 5   to be a major issue.  And I recommend that --
  

 6               MR. MONIYA:  Why don't he explain --
  

 7               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Hold on for a second.
  

 8   He's already explained what he's going to plan to do.
  

 9               MR. MONIYA:  Why did he change the
  

10   entrance to the parking?
  

11               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Stop.  I understand
  

12   that part.  He has to finish what he has to do.  And
  

13   then when he's done, you want to say some more, I'll
  

14   let you do that.  All right?
  

15               MR. MONIYA:  Okay.
  

16               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Go ahead, Mr.
  

17   Hembrecht.
  

18               MR. HEMBRECHT:  I agree with you.  If
  

19   there is a significant issue there, we must correct
  

20   it.  And working with the team if there is a
  

21   different way to enter with our engineers that there
  

22   is a better flow, we would address that.  We need to.
  

23               MS. MARLIN:  The space is not designed to
  

24   be working the way it is that he's saying it's
  

25   working.  It is designed to be able to have the
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 1   loading on site and the parents drop-off on site.
  

 2   So, the site is there.  And if they use what's there,
  

 3   it should work out.  So, it's really just enforcing
  

 4   it.  So, we'll work on the enforcement.
  

 5               DIRECTOR WALKER:  Because in the City
  

 6   what we try to do, you said you have a loading zone
  

 7   on site.  With them loading from the street is
  

 8   illegal.  It's an illegal traffic practice.  That's
  

 9   why the resident is here because there's no
  

10   designated area within there.  Because that site --
  

11   because I coach football over there and traffic
  

12   around there is heavy without people pulling over and
  

13   letting off kids.  It's just a heavy-travelled
  

14   section of the City.
  

15               So, beings though you have your loading
  

16   zone on site, I would advise you to practice that.
  

17   Because if not, there will be repercussions and
  

18   consequences from law enforcement.  And I'm sure
  

19   that's one thing that you don't want as being an
  

20   establishment in the pilar of the community.
  

21               That's why the residents are up here.
  

22   This is something real simple that you can work out
  

23   with security guards and traffic common devices such
  

24   as they're called the square gates with entrance
  

25   here, drop-off here pointing them into where they
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 1   need to go at on site and not on the street.
  

 2               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  In order words, if you
  

 3   had someone directing traffic, nine out of ten times,
  

 4   you'll have everybody doing exactly what you want.
  

 5   When you have no one directing traffic, you have all
  

 6   kinds of chaos.  And people do whatever they want
  

 7   because they want to get done and get out.  And
  

 8   that's what's creating the issues.
  

 9               MR. HEMBRECHT:  I would agree.
  

10               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Is there anyone else
  

11   that wants to say anything before?
  

12               MR. EINGORN:  Please come forward to be
  

13   sworn.  Please raise your right hand.
  

14                         - - -
  

15               MS. NARAVESE, having been first duly
  

16   sworn/affirmed, was examined and testified as
  

17   follows:
  

18                         - - -
  

19               MR. EINGORN:  Please provide your full
  

20   name and address for the record.
  

21               MS. NARAVESE:  My address is 514 N. 31st
  

22   Street.  I live in the front of the main entrance.  I
  

23   have problems every day; every single day when I
  

24   return from work.  It's the same problem.  There's a
  

25   lot of cars running in both directions for dropping
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 1   in the morning and picking up in the afternoon and
  

 2   can't imagine for parents' meetings.  There's
  

 3   hundreds of cars running around the block.
  

 4               So I can't go out because I park inside
  

 5   my driveway.  I have parking.  So, I can't move my
  

 6   car so I have to stay at home or I have to walk and
  

 7   somebody will have to pick me up to move me to
  

 8   another place.  So, it's a big problem for me.  They
  

 9   have a parking lot but I don't see the parents using
  

10   it.  So, I see the parents' cars around the school.
  

11   Can you imagine more students and more cars?  The
  

12   street is very narrow for a two-way street.
  

13               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Understood.  Does
  

14   anyone have anymore comments?  Anyone else from the
  

15   Board?  Then I'm closing the comments and I'm ready
  

16   for a motion, please.
  

17               MR. MARTIN:  Mr. Chairman, I move the
  

18   granting of the amended site plan for Camden's
  

19   Charter School Network, subject to the
  

20   representations by the applicant's professionals and
  

21   the representation of the applicant that it will
  

22   address the concerns of the neighborhood.
  

23               I would like to note that I think the
  

24   applicant should provide an additional traffic study
  

25   or additional follow-up on the traffic, especially
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 1   the result of the new classroom which is going to
  

 2   increase the volume of students being dropped off at
  

 3   the school.  And I also would like the City to study
  

 4   the possibility of making the street in question one
  

 5   way.
  

 6               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  I would like also to
  

 7   add if I can, that the principal of the school do
  

 8   some major issues of security in reference to making
  

 9   sure that the parents understand where they have to
  

10   come in and where they have to go out; where they
  

11   drop off the kids and where they pick them up.  And
  

12   use the parking lot as designed to eliminate if
  

13   possible, all this issue that the community is
  

14   currently having with the school system as it is.
  

15               MR. MARTIN:  I'd be willing to accept
  

16   that as part of my resolution.
  

17               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Second.
  

18               CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  Roll call.
  

19               MS. MILLER:  Fred Martin.
  

20               MR. MARTIN:  Yes.
  

21               MS. MILLER:  Jose DeJesus.
  

22               CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  Yes.
  

23               MS. MILLER:  Ulysses Baker.
  

24               MR. BAKER:  Yes.
  

25               MS. MILLER:  Councilwoman Reyes-Morton.
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 1               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Yes.
  

 2               MS. MILLER:  Director Walker.
  

 3               DIRECTOR WALKER:  Yes.
  

 4               MS. MILLER:  Erin Crean.
  

 5               MS. CREAN:  Yes.
  

 6               MS. MOORE:  One moment.  What was added
  

 7   to the resolution outside of the engineering report?
  

 8               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  That the principal has
  

 9   to make sure he takes care of the issues that were
  

10   addressed by the public.
  

11               MR. EINGORN:  And provide an updated
  

12   traffic study because of the issues.
  

13               MS. MOORE:  The traffic study that was
  

14   prepared included this portion.  Because I think
  

15   we're dealing -- this issue is enforcement; not
  

16   really engineering.
  

17               MR. MARTIN:  I want it also looked at
  

18   from a possibility of a one-way street.  The street
  

19   in question is currently two ways.
  

20               MS. MOORE:  Right.  And that would also
  

21   be enforcement.  That would have to go through the
  

22   City.
  

23               MR. MARTIN:  But a traffic study would
  

24   help us -- help Keith's people do the work that they
  

25   need to do to determine whether or not they have to



80

  

 1   recommend a one-way street there.
  

 2               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  If they have engineers
  

 3   already drawing up the direction of where things go
  

 4   and the people are not complying, then the people who
  

 5   are involved in the construction of the work, has to
  

 6   find some way to implement those rules.
  

 7               MS. MOORE:  And a one-way street is going
  

 8   to solve that?
  

 9               MR. MARTIN:  It may or may not.
  

10               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Well, it should be
  

11   because they already stated that they have their own
  

12   parking and they have their own loading zone.
  

13               MR. MARTIN:  At the risk of having this
  

14   go much further.  Understand, the traffic when people
  

15   drop things off --
  

16               MS. MOORE:  I get it.
  

17               MR. MARTIN: -- they do it in a
  

18   convenience basis.
  

19               MS. MOORE:  It's enforcement also.  Let's
  

20   go.  We can vote.  Or you guys can -- I'm sorry.
  

21               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  It's
  

22   something that needs to be followed-up on, right?
  

23               MS. MOORE:  Yes.  Enforcement.
  

24               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Either way,
  

25   we'll follow up on it.
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 1               MS. MARLIN:  Can we clarify what you're
  

 2   looking for in the parking?
  

 3               MR. BACH:  From us.
  

 4               MR. MARTIN:  From you, we're looking for
  

 5   enforcement of the previously approved parking
  

 6   arrangements.
  

 7               MS. MARLIN:  I mean as part of the
  

 8   assessment.
  

 9               MR. MARTIN:  As far as the assessment, we
  

10   would like recommendation from the school's engineer
  

11   if a one-way street would help them better enable to
  

12   control the traffic flow in front of their building
  

13   to put the students where they need to be and the
  

14   deliveries where they need to be so the residents
  

15   don't have their streets blocked.
  

16               MR. BACH:  So, we can provide an
  

17   amendment to our previously submitted Traffic Impact
  

18   Report with the recommendation from Shropshire on the
  

19   evaluation of making that a one-way street.
  

20               MR. MARTIN:  Right.
  

21               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  The
  

22   Department of Public Works should look at that.
  

23               DIRECTOR WALKER:  Just do that so that
  

24   way it can help us when we do a full-out study.
  

25               MR. MARTIN:  It may not be the
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 1   solution --
  

 2               DIRECTOR WALKER:  Right.
  

 3               MR. MARTIN:  -- but we need to
  

 4   come up with a better -- sometimes an institutional
  

 5   control is better than having your security people
  

 6   standing out there beating people over the head with
  

 7   a stick.
  

 8               MR. BACH:  Thanks for the clarification.
  

 9               MR. MARTIN:  But the idea is, you need to
  

10   keep in touch with the residents.  And if they have a
  

11   problem, we don't want to be hearing about it.  It
  

12   needs to be solved.
  

13               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  So we have a motion.
  

14   We need a second:
  

15               MS. MILLER:  We already finished.
  

16               MR. MARTIN:  We did the roll call.
  

17               MS. MILLER:  Motion to approve.  Thank
  

18   you and have a good night.
  

19               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Next on the agenda,
  

20   Parkside Business and Community in Partnership, Inc.,
  

21   1364-66 Haddon Avenue, Block 1294, Lot 23.
  

22               MR. RANSOM:  Good evening.  My name is
  

23   Rob Ransom with the Law Firm of Archer & Greiner.
  

24   I'm here tonight on behalf of Parkside Business and
  

25   Community in Partnership, Incorporated for an



83

  

 1   application for site plan waiver or in the
  

 2   alternative, preliminary and final site plan
  

 3   approval.  We do believe that preliminary and final
  

 4   site plan approval would be more appropriate given
  

 5   the property's location within a duly adopted
  

 6   redevelopment area, planned area.
  

 7               We have noticed for an application for a
  

 8   waiver of site plan or in the alternative,
  

 9   preliminary and final site plan review.  And
  

10   additionally, we have provided our application and
  

11   our application fees and the escrow deposits reflect
  

12   that we are seeking waiver of site plan or in the
  

13   alternative, preliminary and final site plan
  

14   approval with an additional bulk variance approval.
  

15               The reason why we submitted the
  

16   application as a waiver of site plan, since we were
  

17   asking for a waiver of many of the requirements you
  

18   see for site plan review.  But we do recognize that,
  

19   you know, pursuant to the ordinance, the site plan
  

20   approval would be -- the site plan approval would be
  

21   required here.
  

22               We have and I think it would be
  

23   appropriate at this juncture, the property is
  

24   located at 1366 Haddon Avenue.  And we were
  

25   previously before the Zoning Board in December of
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 1   last year requesting zoning interpretation that the
  

 2   proposed use of the property be considered one single
  

 3   use.  In short, the Parkside Arch Pavilion is a
  

 4   community-based arts recreation center that we're
  

 5   excited about.
  

 6               I think right now it would be appropriate
  

 7   if I would introduce our witnesses this evening and
  

 8   have them sworn in.  And I apologize.  I typically
  

 9   have an exhibit list and a witness list that I left
  

10   on the printer.  At this junction, I will request
  

11   that our witnesses put their names on the record.
  

12   We will only have fact-based witnesses this evening.
  

13               Because of the fact that there are no
  

14   exterior improvements other than facade up-lift -- a
  

15   facelift being proposed, all the improvements are
  

16   interior.  Really lots of interior fit-outs.  So, at
  

17   this time, I would allow our witnesses to just
  

18   introduce themselves and state their affiliation in
  

19   connection with the application.
  

20               MR. EINGORN:  Please come forward to be
  

21   sworn.  Please raise your right hands.
  

22                         - - -
  

23               BRIDGET PHIFER, CHRISTINA SANTOS, having
  

24   been duly sworn/affirmed, was examined and testified
  

25   as follows:
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 1                         - - -
  

 2               MR. EINGORN:  Please provide your full
  

 3   names for the record.
  

 4               MS. PHIFER:  Briget Phifer, executive
  

 5   director Parkside Business and Community in
  

 6   Partnership.
  

 7               MS. SANTOS:  Christina Santos from CIS
  

 8   Designs.  I'm the lead designer for the urban
  

 9   development --
  

10               MR. EINGORN:  Speak a little louder so
  

11   everyone can hear you.  That's all.  You're soften
  

12   spoken.  That's okay.  It's your time to project.
  

13               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  One question for you
  

14   the attorney and that is, the size of this, what is
  

15   that measurement?
  

16               MR. RANSOM:  The sign that -- at this
  

17   juncture, the sign that we are showing on our
  

18   rendering is more or less a sign that we want in the
  

19   future.  We'd be back.  There's no sign being
  

20   proposed as part of the application at this juncture.
  

21   This is where we showed the sign trying to depict our
  

22   longterm plan.  But at this juncture, we're not
  

23   proposing a sign.  That sign right there as you see
  

24   is something that would be in the future.  This is
  

25   the initial phase which you'll hear a bit more.  I'll
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 1   explain that now.
  

 2               The bulk variance that we're asking for
  

 3   is with regard to parking.  There will be a second
  

 4   phase of this application which will actually be
  

 5   before the Zoning Board.  We have acquired property,
  

 6   nearby property where we will be developing a
  

 7   stand-alone parking lot which the nonprofit will be
  

 8   leasing the parking spaces from the stand-alone
  

 9   parking lot in order to provide adequate parking for
  

10   this site.
  

11               As a temporary parking alternative, we
  

12   will be utilizing parking that is owned by the
  

13   partnership and then the nonprofits.  The nonprofit
  

14   is operating the Arch Pavilion.  The Partnership has
  

15   a lot of property around the area including a
  

16   laundromat that's across the street, that there is
  

17   additional parking.  It exceeds the parking
  

18   requirements and they'll be providing parking there
  

19   temporarily as we go in for the zoning approvals so
  

20   it's stand-alone parking lot that will provide the
  

21   longterm parking.
  

22               MS. MOORE:  I was going to say, we did
  

23   provide a review.  They provided escrow for their
  

24   site plan waiver so we do have a review letter
  

25   for their site plan waiver.
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 1               MR. MARTIN:  So, we could do the review
  

 2   letter and just pop on to it?
  

 3               MS. MOORE:  Well, it was for the waiver.
  

 4   I can read through it and then you'll see.  It's our
  

 5   company's opinion that they not get the site plan
  

 6   waiver; that they follow through with the full site
  

 7   plan.
  

 8               MR. RANSOM:  Yes.
  

 9               MS. MOORE:  And so, I would just point
  

10   out these comments in here and provide testimony.
  

11               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Would you please.  If
  

12   that's all right with you.
  

13               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  Mr. Chairman, I'm
  

14   referring to Remington & Vernick's letter dated
  

15   February 1st, 2020.  The architectural plans that
  

16   were submitted, if they can be signed and sealed by a
  

17   registered architect in accordance with state
  

18   regulations.
  

19               MR. RANSOM:  The applicant will comply as
  

20   a condition of approval.
  

21               MS. MOORE:  On page two, the applicant
  

22   seeks a waiver of site plan.  Per Section 577-42, the
  

23   Planning Board may waive the requirements for site
  

24   plan approval where there is a change in use or
  

25   occupancy and no extensive construction or
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 1   improvements (or de minimis construction or
  

 2   improvements) are sought.
  

 3               The waiver may be granted only upon a
  

 4   resolution by the Board's finding that the use will
  

 5   not affect existing drainage, circulation
  

 6   relationship of buildings to each other, landscaping,
  

 7   buffering, lighting and other considerations of the
  

 8   site plan approval.  And that the existing facilities
  

 9   do not require upgraded or additional site
  

10   improvements.  Testimony should be provided regarding
  

11   the prior use of the site and proposed use and its
  

12   impact.
  

13               MR. RANSOM:  Yes.  The site was
  

14   previously utilized as a union hall.  It has been
  

15   vacant for a number of years.  And the proposed use
  

16   of the site would be to accommodate the Parkside Arch
  

17   Pavilion.  We do not anticipate any significant
  

18   impact whatsoever.  As we've stated, the proposed
  

19   improvements amounts to mostly an interior fit-out of
  

20   the property and a facade uplift.  That's the extent
  

21   of our improvements.
  

22               MS. MOORE:  According to Section
  

23   577-271.A.6, site plan approval is required for all
  

24   new construction, rehabilitation, alteration or
  

25   change in use of any property located within a duly
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 1   adopted redevelopment area.  And as we have noted,
  

 2   this is a Parkside Redevelopment Area which would
  

 3   trigger you to get an actual site plan approval.
  

 4               MR. RANSOM:  Yes.  As we have done it in
  

 5   the past given the fact that the nature of the
  

 6   improvements, our site plan will amount to a survey
  

 7   of the existing conditions of the property.  And as
  

 8   we've done in the past, we request that the Board
  

 9   accept an existing condition and survey, an as-built
  

10   survey of the property as a condition of approval
  

11   addressing all the concerns that the engineer have
  

12   noted in this review letter.
  

13               MS. MOORE:  And per the Redevelopment
  

14   Plan, institutional uses require one parking space
  

15   for every 100 square feet or one parking space for
  

16   every ten seats of public assembly which yields the
  

17   maximum number of spaces.
  

18               MR. RANSOM:  Yes.
  

19               MS. MOORE:  The applicant has indicated
  

20   that 14 parking spaces are proposed off-site.  The
  

21   applicant requests a variance of the Redevelopment
  

22   Plan to allow fewer parking spaces than required and
  

23   a waiver of Section 577-230.L, which requires
  

24   off-street parking on the same lot as the use.  In
  

25   addition, ADA-accessible parking should be addressed.
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 1               MR. RANSOM:  Yes.  First and foremost,
  

 2   the applicant will comply with all regulations
  

 3   regarding ADA accessible parking.  Regarding the bulk
  

 4   variance, the proposed -- we did provide -- the
  

 5   proposed parking lot, longterm parking lot, will be
  

 6   located along Atlantic Avenue.  It is a approximately
  

 7   three-minute walk, if you were to take really the
  

 8   long route.
  

 9               We've acquired I believe it's three lots
  

10   that will ultimately accommodate the parking lot.  It
  

11   is not a permitted use, therefore, we're going in
  

12   seeking a use variance to allow for a stand-alone
  

13   parking lot where it is not permitted.  We will be
  

14   filing that application with the Zoning Board
  

15   assuming we receive approvals today.
  

16               Also, we will be seeking a temporary
  

17   Certificate of Occupancy from the City to allow for
  

18   the use of the building providing a limited amount of
  

19   parking spaces at 1419 Haddon Avenue which is across
  

20   the street as the laundromat parking lot, which we
  

21   believe will still provide adequate parking in the
  

22   early stages of this -- I don't want to characterize
  

23   it as a venture -- but just serving a very important
  

24   community need in providing a space for the arts for
  

25   our families in the community.
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 1               But in anything that you can get, we
  

 2   expect for it to gradually grow over time and we
  

 3   believe that the parking spaces that we'll be
  

 4   providing at 1419 Haddon Avenue which is right
  

 5   across the street -- across the street from the
  

 6   property, approximately a one-minute walk from the
  

 7   proposed Arts Pavilion, will be adequate.  We will
  

 8   provide the Board Attorney as well as the
  

 9   Board Engineer with the lease agreements for that
  

10   proposed parking.
  

11               MS. MOORE:  So then what you're calling
  

12   part of the Phase I, then that would be the leased
  

13   parking spaces across the street?
  

14               MR. RANSOM:  Yes.
  

15               MS. MOORE:  And you will provide the
  

16   information regarding the parking agreement too?
  

17               MR. RANSOM:  We have that here this
  

18   evening.
  

19               MS. MOORE:  And how many spaces are
  

20   there?
  

21               MR. RANSOM:  There are 12 total spaces.
  

22   The ordinance does not require spaces based on what's
  

23   used.  They require spaces based on the use, not
  

24   what's used in real life.  I can tell you now that
  

25   barely any spaces are used.  If you look at the
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 1   Ordinance, they will require -- the Ordinance will
  

 2   require seven spaces for the size of the self-service
  

 3   laundromat.  There are 12 spaces.
  

 4               We propose to utilize -- to lease five
  

 5   spaces that dealt to satisfy the parking initially
  

 6   for the Arts Pavilion.  But in all practicality, we
  

 7   know that we will have the ability to utilize more
  

 8   parking spaces because the parking lot is very much
  

 9   underutilized.
  

10               MS. MOORE:  But we have to go with what's
  

11   in your agreement.
  

12               MR. RANSOM:  Exactly.  And we believe
  

13   that the five spaces are adequate for the initial
  

14   period of time that we'd be seeking to operate under
  

15   the temporary Certificate of Occupancy.
  

16               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  What's the square
  

17   footage of that building?
  

18               MR. RANSOM:  Of the Arts Pavilion?
  

19               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  That's the one you're
  

20   talking about.
  

21               MR. RANSOM:  Yes.  It's 7,800 square
  

22   feet.
  

23               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  7,800 square feet?
  

24               MR. EINGORN:  It's my recollection that
  

25   there might be multiple programs running in this
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 1   building.  How many spots are going to be needed just
  

 2   for those that will be running the programs as
  

 3   opposed to those that will be showing up to
  

 4   participate?
  

 5               MR. RANSOM:  Bridget, please.
  

 6               MS. PHIFER:  So, it's an arts-based
  

 7   facility for youth, for the communities.  So, very
  

 8   often you will see people that will be walking from
  

 9   the community to this space.  When you think about it
  

10   in terms of how many spaces would be needed, perhaps
  

11   if there's a drop-off or pick-up youth.  I mean, I
  

12   can't really, you know, accommodate a number.  But,
  

13   again, it's specifically for the communities,
  

14   Parkside, Whitman Park, Gateway.
  

15               And also, there are additional -- there's
  

16   on-street parking that's available.  Every property
  

17   adjacent to this site is vacant, 1362 vacant; across
  

18   the street vacant.  So, there is in the preliminary
  

19   phases of this as we build up the programming,
  

20   there's opportunity for on-street parking as well.
  

21               MS. MOORE:  So then our comment No. 10,
  

22   we mention a Traffic Impact Assessment should be
  

23   provided for any nonresidential project.
  

24               MR. RANSOM:  Yes.
  

25               MS. MOORE:  So, I would think that you
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 1   should provide a Traffic Impact Assessment just so
  

 2   we're aware of what's going on.
  

 3               MR. RANSOM:  Yes.  Our engineer has
  

 4   already been engaged with regard to providing a
  

 5   Traffic Impact Statement.  And we would be providing
  

 6   an additional Traffic Impact Statement upon receiving
  

 7   approvals for the longterm parking solution.
  

 8               MS. MOORE:  I'll go to the next comment.
  

 9   A survey of the property should be provided along
  

10   with location of the off-street parking area.  The
  

11   route between the off-street parking area to the
  

12   property must be reviewed in terms of a safe route
  

13   with lighting and good condition of curbs and
  

14   sidewalk.  So, this would be also a phase.  So, since
  

15   you're looking for the first one, you would just look
  

16   at the parking spaces that you have the agreement and
  

17   going across the street.
  

18               MR. RANSOM:  Correct.
  

19               MS. MOORE:  And the condition of that
  

20   parking lot, I'm not sure when it was developed or
  

21   anything, but it's in adequate condition.  Because if
  

22   you're using it, we would want you to upgrade the
  

23   parking lot area if it needs to be.
  

24               MR. RANSOM:  Our belief is that it's in
  

25   adequate condition and will provide the necessary
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 1   documentation and the survey of the existing
  

 2   conditions to satisfy that requirement.
  

 3               MS. MOORE:  We'll perform a site visit.
  

 4   We just didn't know where it was.
  

 5               MR. RANSOM:  We understand.
  

 6               MS. MOORE:  The applicant should address
  

 7   trash storage and hauling.
  

 8               MS. BRANSON:  Yes.
  

 9               MS. PHIFER:  There is a six-day a week
  

10   pick-up along the Haddon Avenue corridor.
  

11               MS. MOORE:  Curbside.
  

12               MS. PHIFER:  Curbside.  And in terms of
  

13   the parking for 1419 Haddon Avenue, that site was
  

14   developed about five years ago so it's in great
  

15   condition; well lit.  So, when you perform your
  

16   assessment, you will see.
  

17               MS. MOORE:  It appears that no signage is
  

18   proposed as part of this submission.  The signage
  

19   requirements of the Redevelopment Plan will apply.
  

20   Testimony should be provided.  So, now, we see the
  

21   signage here.
  

22               MR. RANSOM:  No.  The signage that is
  

23   depicted on the rendering is not being proposed at
  

24   this conjuncture.
  

25               MS. MOORE:  So, no signage is being
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 1   proposed at this time?
  

 2               MR. RANSOM:  No.
  

 3               MR. EINGORN:  Not even the sign with the
  

 4   numbers on it?
  

 5               MR. RANSOM:  The address canopy?
  

 6               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  That's a canopy?
  

 7               MS. SANTOS:  At the moment it would just
  

 8   be to show what the address of the building would be.
  

 9               MS. MOORE:  So, that's a sign?
  

10               MR. RANSOM:  No.  We --
  

11               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  It is a sign because
  

12   the address could be on the building or on the side
  

13   of the thing.  You're putting it on a canvas and,
  

14   therefore, it's a sign.
  

15               MR. RANSOM:  We will insure that
  

16   anything to utilize, identify the address conforms to
  

17   the ordinance requirements; that if any additional
  

18   approvals would be required, we'd be back here before
  

19   the Board, if necessary, to submit all applications
  

20   to the Planning Board, if any additional approvals
  

21   relating to signage is necessary.
  

22               MR. EINGORN:  So, it's safe to say that
  

23   you'll comply with the Redevelopment Ordinance on the
  

24   condition that any signage that doesn't meet those
  

25   requirements will come before the Board?
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 1               MS. MOORE:  I mean, is that signage going
  

 2   to be a part of this application?  Because you could
  

 3   submit signage to the zoning officer after the fact,
  

 4   right?
  

 5               MR. RANSOM:  Yes.
  

 6               MS. MOORE:  Is it going to be a part --
  

 7   if it's going to be a part of this application, then
  

 8   we need detailed information regarding the signage.
  

 9               MR. RANSOM:  We will --
  

10               MR. MARTIN:  If I may.  To cut to the
  

11   chase, I think the telling piece is Item 2 on the
  

12   Engineer's letter, III (3) General Comments, Item 2.
  

13   That the fact that the Redevelopment Plan area
  

14   requires a site plan.  I don't think we can grant a
  

15   waiver of a site plan at this time.  I think we have
  

16   to move forward with the regular site plan.  I think
  

17   that's the telling --
  

18               MS. MOORE:  Right.  And he's aware of
  

19   that.  It's just in their notice.  If you can explain
  

20   that.  For some reason they noticed a site plan
  

21   waiver or a site plan approval.
  

22               MR. MARTIN:  Right.  But you don't have a
  

23   site plan application in front of you to review yet,
  

24   do you?
  

25               MR. RANSOM:  We do have the site plan
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 1   application.
  

 2               MS. MOORE:  Right.  He has an
  

 3   application, right.
  

 4               MR. MARTIN:  So, these comments would
  

 5   apply to the site plan application as well?
  

 6               MS. MOORE:  Yes.  The limited information
  

 7   we were provided for the site plan, yes, this does.
  

 8   But I want to make sure that when they go to submit
  

 9   revised plans, that they have all the correct
  

10   information.
  

11               MR. MARTIN:  That everything on there.
  

12   Good.
  

13               MS. MOORE:  So, that's what we're going
  

14   to -- we do know and we've had conversations with the
  

15   knowledge that they have to submit revised plans.
  

16               MR. MARTIN:  So, what we're aiming for is
  

17   a preliminary approval of the concept, the revised
  

18   plans for the final?
  

19               MR. RANSOM:  No.  We are aiming for
  

20   preliminary and final site plan approval.  Because
  

21   frankly, the site plan, and I've gone through this a
  

22   number of times, the site plan is going to consist of
  

23   existing conditions.  There are no exterior
  

24   improvements being proposed.  So, the site plan is
  

25   going to be -- consist of an existing condition
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 1   survey.  Should that not satisfy the Planning Board
  

 2   Engineer's concerns, then we'd be back before the
  

 3   Board.
  

 4               MR. MARTIN:  Right.  But --
  

 5               MS. MOORE:  But you're also going to be
  

 6   satisfying these comments?
  

 7               MR. RANSOM: Oh, of course.
  

 8               MS. MOORE:  It's different.
  

 9               MR. MARTIN:  A lot.
  

10               MS. MOORE:  That's all.  I mean, we
  

11   initially reviewed it as a waiver.  It was submitted
  

12   to us as a waiver.  But then once we saw that they
  

13   were in a redevelopment area, it can automatically
  

14   not be a waiver.  It has to be site plan approval.
  

15   For some reason it was also submitted for --
  

16               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  He may be able to do
  

17   preliminary site plan but not final because they're
  

18   still missing other parts.  Regardless if you're not
  

19   doing anything inside the building, you still you're
  

20   doing things outside the building.
  

21               MR. RANSOM:  We are not doing anything
  

22   outside the building.
  

23               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Yes, you are.  You are
  

24   changing the face of the building.
  

25               MR. MARTIN:  You're doing a parking lot.
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 1               MR. RANSOM: The parking lot is subject to
  

 2   the Zoning Board's approval.  The parking lot is a
  

 3   stand-alone parking lot that will be operated by a
  

 4   separate entity who will enter into a lease with that
  

 5   entity for that parking lot.
  

 6               MS. MOORE:  That's something that is
  

 7   suppose to be a longterm item.  They still have to go
  

 8   to the Zoning Board for that property.  So, right now
  

 9   as I understand it, this a phased project in which
  

10   they're looking to get a TCO at this time to open
  

11   with their proposal.
  

12               And then they're saying their parking
  

13   that they're going to use at this time, will be
  

14   across the street at 1419 Haddon Avenue, whatever
  

15   spaces that are there.  And then they're going to
  

16   provide like a Traffic Impact Analysis.  We mentioned
  

17   landscaping, lighting.  They're going to provide the
  

18   other information that they're asking for here that
  

19   we would typically ask for in a site plan
  

20   application.
  

21               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  In the event
  

22   that the parking lot doesn't work out, then what?
  

23               MR. RANSOM:  Then that temporary
  

24   Certificate of Occupancy -- the City can only grant a
  

25   Temporary Certification of Occupancy for a temporary
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 1   period of time.  Then at that point, we are
  

 2   proceeding at our own risk.  We understand that.  And
  

 3   we're comfortable with that because, frankly, we
  

 4   believe that it works.  We believe that what our
  

 5   engineers are telling us and we've done the
  

 6   preliminary studies and we're very much confident of
  

 7   the limited nature of these improvements.  We're not
  

 8   proposing any exterior improvements of the facade.  A
  

 9   facelift which you're correct.
  

10               We are proposing a facade facelift for
  

11   the simple fact that we're trying to provide more
  

12   esthetics particularly for an arts pavilion, an
  

13   esthetically-pleasing facade for the proposed
  

14   project.  But other than that, there are no exterior
  

15   improvements.  And every application before this
  

16   Board that I've presented with regard to just facade
  

17   improvements, we have proceeded with providing an
  

18   existing condition survey showing the existing
  

19   conditions because there are no exterior improvements
  

20   to depict on any fully-detailed site plan.
  

21               MS. MOORE:  They're doing an alteration
  

22   to something in the redevelopment area.
  

23               But I want to let you know too,
  

24   there's -- what makes them have to follow through
  

25   with the site plan approval also is, getting some
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 1   type of permits from the City.  That would usually
  

 2   happen to make sure that their site plan approval has
  

 3   been -- the plans have been signed and everything was
  

 4   good.
  

 5               MR. RANSOM:  And that's how --
  

 6               MS. MOORE:  You can get a TCO sometimes
  

 7   without following through with your site plan
  

 8   approval.  So, the fact that they had to come to the
  

 9   Board because they're in a redevelopment area is what
  

10   triggers everything.
  

11               MR. MARTIN:  Here's what I'm not wrapping
  

12   my arms around.  This is a site plan application.
  

13   Let's just take it as a site plan application.
  

14   Normally, you would have even if it's an existing
  

15   structure, you would have an opportunity to say,
  

16   we've evaluated the parking, even the temporary
  

17   parking.
  

18               MS. MOORE:  Right.
  

19               MR. MARTIN:  And it wouldn't be hearsay
  

20   that it may be okay.  You would have information as
  

21   to the number of parking spaces required for that new
  

22   use.  And you would then be able to make a
  

23   calculation as to whether or not they were going to
  

24   provide adequate parking spaces, either in the short
  

25   term or the long term.  There would be a fee assessed
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 1   if they weren't able to obtain the parking spaces.
  

 2   We have no ability to evaluate that at this point in
  

 3   time.  Correct?  How many spaces --
  

 4               MS. MOORE:  Well, I can't tell you that.
  

 5   I'm just telling you what's in the letter.
  

 6               MR. MARTIN:  Yeah.  So, you can't tell me
  

 7   whether their parking, even though they've laid it
  

 8   out, is adequate for the use of the building because
  

 9   you have not made that evaluation.  Correct?
  

10               MS. MOORE:  Before today we didn't.  I
  

11   wasn't aware of where the parking lot.
  

12               MR. MARTIN:  So, it then goes back to, is
  

13   there enough to give a preliminary and final or is
  

14   this enough to give us a preliminary?
  

15               MS. MOORE:  Well, that's the Board's
  

16   decision.
  

17               MR. MARTIN:  Yeah.  But I'm just saying,
  

18   the part that I'm not wrapping my arms around,
  

19   Counsel, is this, I'm not comfortable that there's
  

20   enough to give a final even though you requested a
  

21   final at this time because of this issue, just the
  

22   parking.
  

23               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Well, it's not only
  

24   that.  You don't have any documents to prove of what
  

25   you're saying in reference to leases or agreements or
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 1   someone taking over the building or the lots.
  

 2               MR. RANSOM:  We have brought the leases
  

 3   and the agreements showing that we've acquired the
  

 4   property.  Typically we provide these documents
  

 5   simply to the Board Engineer and the Board Attorney.
  

 6               MR. MARTIN:  Right.  You would normally
  

 7   provide them to the Board Engineer at the time of
  

 8   review.
  

 9               MR. RANSOM:  Honestly, that's not a
  

10   checklist requirement in the application.  We provide
  

11   these things -- most of the time we provide these
  

12   things as conditions of approval.  And I understand
  

13   that -- the only difference between this application
  

14   and all the other applications I've come in with and
  

15   received, preliminary and final site plan approval,
  

16   is that for off-street parking.  And that off-street
  

17   parking is not a part of the application at all, but
  

18   is an existing parking lot.  Right now we're
  

19   proposing an existing parking lot.
  

20               MR. MARTIN:  The use is being revised --
  

21               MR. RANSOM:  Yes.
  

22               MR. MARTIN:  -- at the community arts
  

23   center.
  

24               MR. RANSOM:  Yes.
  

25               MR. MARTIN:  It's going to create parking
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 1   requirements.  What those parking requirements are
  

 2   based on the engineer's interpretation of our
  

 3   ordinance, has not yet been determined, correct?
  

 4               MR. RANSOM:  It is determined.  It is
  

 5   determined by multiplying 100 square feet by the
  

 6   square footage of the proposed and we're requesting a
  

 7   variance from that.
  

 8               MS. MOORE:  It does point out the
  

 9   institutional uses require one parking space for
  

10   every 100 square feet.  Or one parking space for
  

11   every ten seats of public assembly, which ever yields
  

12   the maximum number of spaces.
  

13               MR. RANSOM:  An institutional use
  

14   under the ordinance is defined to mean a variety of
  

15   things.  We've received the zoning interpretation
  

16   stating that we were an institutional use.  But
  

17   there's also a definition for -- there's also a
  

18   separate parking requirement for community recreation
  

19   centers.  And this is our space community recreation
  

20   center.
  

21               MR. MARTIN:  Let's take it back.  Take us
  

22   outside the particular thing we're looking at.
  

23   Suppose it was a church; we're converting a site to a
  

24   church.  A church is a community-based space.  A
  

25   church is a place of public assembly with a square
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 1   footage.  A church is a place with a number of seats.
  

 2   The parking that we evaluate for a church is the
  

 3   highest of the two numbers, either the square footage
  

 4   or the number of seats divided by ten.
  

 5               So, at this point, I have seen no
  

 6   representation of how many people you expect or how
  

 7   many seats are going to be in here; how many staff
  

 8   are going to be working the facility.  Just kind of
  

 9   like, yeah, it's cool, we're doin' it.  And I
  

10   understand that.  I understand the nature of the
  

11   project.  The problem is, you're asking for
  

12   formal approval.  We got to guard against setting a
  

13   precedent that's going to come back to haunt us.
  

14   Like a store showing up in the middle of a
  

15   residential block that wants a site plan waiver.
  

16   That said, it requires presentation of certain data
  

17   and certain things then to be determined by the
  

18   engineer.
  

19               So, yes, you can note that it's an
  

20   institutional use.  Yes, you can note the
  

21   institutional requirements.  But other than the
  

22   square footage to determine that number of parking
  

23   spaces, we have no basis.  And we have no basis to
  

24   determine whether or not that's the adequate number
  

25   for that location.  And I'm not trying to be



107

  

 1   difficult, but I'm just trying to get to the bottom
  

 2   of it.
  

 3               MR. RANSOM:  I respectfully believe that
  

 4   the Board's been presented adequate information.
  

 5   Also, we acknowledge that we will submit a traffic
  

 6   statement as a condition of approval regarding the
  

 7   proposed parking, the proposed use of the property.
  

 8   We believe that the use of the property will not have
  

 9   a substantial impact.  We believe that site plan
  

10   waiver -- were it not for the fact that it was in a
  

11   redevelopment area, we believe the site waiver would
  

12   frankly be appropriate.
  

13               I've represented applications very
  

14   similar to this for other institutions without issue;
  

15   providing with off-street parking that we said was
  

16   blocks away; we said as an existing parking lot and
  

17   without issue.  And we believe that this is very a
  

18   analogous.
  

19               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  But every case is
  

20   different and none is the same.  That's definite.
  

21   And then in this case, we're just looking at what
  

22   you're proposing and we want to make sure that what
  

23   your proposing and you're asking for final, it's
  

24   difficult to do so.
  

25               If you want to get a preliminary, we can
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 1   give you a preliminary.  But I know for me, a final
  

 2   is difficult because I only have certain information
  

 3   basically on what you're actually trying to do.  And
  

 4   then you may have other  activities inside the place
  

 5   which converts the location into more than just an
  

 6   arts school.
  

 7               MR. RANSOM: The Zoning Board has
  

 8   interpreted our proposed use of the property as a
  

 9   single use.
  

10               MR. MARTIN:  But we're not arguing that.
  

11   All we're arguing is how -- there's a dearth of data.
  

12   And --
  

13               MS. MOORE:  I think -- right now if I
  

14   understand correctly, they want an approval for
  

15   preliminary and final.  And then everything that
  

16   I have listed here, they want as a condition of that
  

17   approval.
  

18               MR. RANSOM:  And I remind the Board, we
  

19   have an obligation too because we are -- I am making
  

20   a representation under oath that we are going to
  

21   provide at least 14 --
  

22               MR. MARTIN:  Every one of those things
  

23   that she wants.
  

24               MR. RANSOM:  -- of 14 parking spaces.
  

25   Yes.  And we're also providing 14 parking spaces.
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 1               MS. MOORE:  At a later time.
  

 2               MR. RANSOM:  Yes, at a later time that is
  

 3   going to be -- this is an immediate thing.  We can't
  

 4   go to the City and ask for a temporary Certificate of
  

 5   Occupancy for an extended period of time.
  

 6               MR. MARTIN:  Bingo.  There's the key
  

 7   issue.  We're talking time.  You need to act on this
  

 8   speedily to be able to bring the center up in
  

 9   operation as quickly as possible.
  

10               MR. RANSOM:  Yes.
  

11               MR. MARTIN:  That is correct?
  

12               MR. RANSOM:  Yes.
  

13               MR. MARTIN:  So, what you're asking us to
  

14   do is weigh the value of the time versus the
  

15   inadequacy of the information provided on the grounds
  

16   that it's a public good being achieved in a very
  

17   timely manner, correct?
  

18               MR. RANSOM:  No, that's not what I'm
  

19   asking.  What I'm asking is, frankly I believe the
  

20   information that has been provided and the
  

21   information that will be provided as a condition of
  

22   approval.  The site plan that will be provided,
  

23   because is there -- there are no improvements,
  

24   exterior improvements being proposed, a site plan
  

25   that will provided will show existing conditions.
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 1   Existing conditions.  That is all that can be
  

 2   depicted because there's nothing else to show.
  

 3               MR. MARTIN:  The plot plan, you're right,
  

 4   that's correct.  But we've talked about the issues
  

 5   of -- I think the parking thing is the big thing we
  

 6   end up being stuck on.  And it's an issue that's been
  

 7   before the Board before.
  

 8               MS. MOORE:  Landscaping also.  We
  

 9   mentioned landscaping.  There may be landscaping
  

10   issues; there may be lighting.  But we mention all of
  

11   that in here.
  

12               MR. MARTIN:  Right.
  

13               MS. MOORE:  It's just site --
  

14               MR. MARTIN:  But the question is,
  

15   why the hurry?
  

16               MS. MOORE:  They will prepare a site
  

17   plan.  There is no waiver.
  

18               MR. MARTIN:  Right.
  

19               MS. MOORE:  They know that they have to
  

20   submit a site plan.  I think -- if I understand
  

21   correctly, they just want to have all of these as a
  

22   condition of approval.  So, that's up to the Board.
  

23   We've noted what we find -- what we think should be
  

24   submitted along with the site plan.
  

25               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Is there a
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 1   time frame for this?
  

 2               MS. MOORE:  What do you mean?
  

 3               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Is there a
  

 4   suggested time frame?
  

 5               MS. MOORE:  For them to resubmit things
  

 6   to us?
  

 7               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Yes.
  

 8               MS. MOORE:  Oh, that's whenever he needs
  

 9   to submit.  He has things now.  We didn't see it.
  

10               MR. RANSOM:  We cannot -- we can't pull
  

11   permits.  We can't occupy the building without --
  

12               MS. MOORE:  I didn't see any of the
  

13   information that he has now.  So, as quickly as they
  

14   can prepare something, is as quickly as we can review
  

15   it.
  

16               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Catch 22. Is there
  

17   anymore comments from the Board?
  

18               MS. MOORE:  So, I'll just point out
  

19   No. 7.  We're referring to landscaping.  No. 8 we
  

20   refer to lighting.  Number 9 we wanted testimony
  

21   regarding architectural guidelines of the
  

22   Redevelopment Plan.  Number 10 is a Traffic Impact
  

23   Assessment.  Number 11 we want to see color-rendered
  

24   architectural elevations to be provided along with
  

25   identification of proposed building materials.  And
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 1   then No. 12 is our site safety note.  And with this
  

 2   in the Redevelopment Plan, they would need a variance
  

 3   for the number of parking spaces.  And then also a
  

 4   waiver because the off-street parking is not
  

 5   on-site -- on the same site.
  

 6               MR. MARTIN:  Architectural details, you
  

 7   know, it's wonderful so you're going to upgrade the
  

 8   facade.  But how?  What is it going to look like?
  

 9               MR. RANSOM:  Our lead designer is here to
  

10   discuss that.
  

11               MR. MARTIN:  Okay.  Has that been
  

12   presented to the --
  

13               MR. RANSOM:  And the renderings that
  

14   we've been provided --
  

15               MS. MOORE:  We reviewed floor plans and
  

16   exterior elevations and those plans were not signed
  

17   and sealed.
  

18               MR. MARTIN:  And you presented tonight
  

19   some renderings that -- have you seen these before,
  

20   Dena?
  

21               MS. MOORE:  I'll be honest with you, I
  

22   can't remember if that's the same information that I
  

23   received.  Angela, do you have the set?
  

24               MR. RANSOM:  The color renderings, that
  

25   was a specific request from the review letter.
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 1               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  But then I can show
  

 2   you what we received with the floor plans and
  

 3   exterior elevations.  Those two.
  

 4               MR. RANSOM:  But those are included in
  

 5   the packet right there.
  

 6               MS. MOORE:  Yeah.  That's it.
  

 7               MR. MARTIN:  That's in this packet here,
  

 8   correct?
  

 9               MR. RANSOM:  There.
  

10               MR. MARTIN:  Here?
  

11               MR. RANSOM:  Yes.
  

12               MS. MOORE:  That's it.  Those two plans.
  

13               MR. MARTIN:  It is what it is.  Let's get
  

14   public testimony.
  

15               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Anybody else from the
  

16   Board?  If not, any comments from the public?
  

17               MR. EINGORN:  Please come forward to be
  

18   sworn.  Please raise your right hand.
  

19                         - - -
  

20               BEN SARACCO, having been first duly
  

21   sworn/affirmed, was examined and testified as
  

22   follows:
  

23                         - - -
  

24               MR. EINGORN:  Can you provide your name
  

25   and address, please.
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 1               MR. SARACCO:  Ben Saracco, 407 N. 2nd
  

 2   Street.
  

 3               I just like to say that I'm in favor of
  

 4   this project.  I know that the Planning Board has to
  

 5   follow existing ordinances with regards to planning
  

 6   projects.  That being said, from a resident's point
  

 7   of view, I think that with regards to parking, there
  

 8   should be some leniency on some of the streets,
  

 9   major -- commercial streets like Federal Street, like
  

10   Haddon Avenue, like Market Street to maybe within
  

11   your power to be somewhat lenient on some types of
  

12   parking restrictions.  Because it should be walkable.
  

13               There is street parking.  And I think
  

14   that anything that can done, a project like this that
  

15   will help redevelop those areas, is great for the
  

16   City.  My understanding is, you have to follow rules
  

17   and regulations.  But within your ability to be
  

18   lenient on certain things like parking minimums which
  

19   are being eliminated in many cities across the
  

20   country in locations like this.  That's all.
  

21               MR. EINGORN:  Please come forward to be
  

22   sworn.  Please raise your right hand.
  

23                         - - -
  

24               SAMIR NICHOLS, having been first duly
  

25   sworn/affirmed, was examined and testified as
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 1   follows:
  

 2                         - - -
  

 3               MR. NICHOLS:  My name is Samir Nichols,
  

 4   longtime Camden resident.  Project Partner.
  

 5               CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  What's your address?
  

 6               MR. NICHOL:  My address is 139 State
  

 7   Street, Camden, New Jersey 08102.  It's been a long
  

 8   day, sir.  I've been in this building since 7:30.
  

 9               As a longterm supporter of PBC&P and this
  

10   project, the arts have been a great thing in our City
  

11   and they're continuing to rise.  I think what
  

12   happened to most of the students that are going to be
  

13   attending this program are from the neighborhood,
  

14   i.e. the high school, local community groups and the
  

15   Community Center that's already placed there on
  

16   Martin Luther King which is all within walking
  

17   distance.
  

18               And this project is going to continue to
  

19   stimulate the growth on Haddon Avenue.  And as you
  

20   all know, there's so many vacant properties.  Our
  

21   students come by them all the time.  They utilize
  

22   them as alleyways to do other things.  And this is a
  

23   project that's going to contribute to make that
  

24   community place.  And so, I think you guys should
  

25   that into consideration as you're making the review
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 1   the tonight.  That's all from me.  Thank you.
  

 2               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Thank you.
  

 3               MR. EINGORN:  Please come forward to be
  

 4   sworn.  Please raise your right hand.
  

 5                         - - -
  

 6               OSCAR SPENCER, having been first duly
  

 7   sworn/affirmed, was examined and testified as
  

 8   follows:
  

 9                         - - -
  

10               MR. EINGORN:  Can you provide your name
  

11   and address, please.
  

12               MR. SPENCER:  Oscar Spencer, 1442 Haddon
  

13   Avenue.  I'm a 52-year resident of Parkside.  I think
  

14   this is going to be good thing for Parkside.  I've
  

15   seen it over the years.  Over 52 years I've seen
  

16   Parkside, Haddon Avenue up and down and seeing where
  

17   it's at now; seeing where it's almost on the rebound.
  

18               In terms of traffic flow, there's always
  

19   been a traffic flow.  In terms of parking, ahh, it's
  

20   not really that much of an issue as much as it seems,
  

21   in my view as we're makin' it in my view.  Okay?
  

22   Traffic flows back and forth.  We're talking an arts
  

23   pavilion.  We have a lot of young folks coming,
  

24   walking, walking from the neighborhood from Parkside,
  

25   from Whitman Park.
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 1               We have parking spaces that are available
  

 2   for people.  We have on-street parking.  It has
  

 3   always been on-street parking on Haddon Avenue.  When
  

 4   it was thriving with businesses up and down Haddon
  

 5   Avenue 40 years ago, there were always on-street
  

 6   parking.  And I don't see it -- as the issue as big
  

 7   as we're making it, I don't see it that way.
  

 8               MR. MARTIN:  I appreciate your comment.
  

 9   Because in all candor without the residents making
  

10   those kinds of comments, we don't know any better.
  

11   Okay?  So thank you.
  

12               MR. EINGORN:  Please come forward to be
  

13   sworn.  Please raise your right hand.
  

14                         - - -
  

15               KELLY FRANCES, having been first duly
  

16   sworn/affirmed, was examined and testified as
  

17   follows:
  

18                         - - -
  

19               MR. EINGORN:  Can you provide your name
  

20   and address please.
  

21               MS. FRANCES:  I am currently serving as
  

22   treasurer for PBC&P.  I'm one of the last, last of
  

23   the founding members of PBC&P twenty-eight years
  

24   ago.  I've been on the board for 28 years.  I'm
  

25   asking that the Zoning Board approve our --
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 1               MR. MARTIN:  The Planning Board.
  

 2               MR. FRANCES:  The Planning Board.
  

 3               MR. EINGORN:  You guys already went to
  

 4   the Zoning Board.
  

 5               MR. FRANCES:  Yeah.  That the Planning
  

 6   Board approve our proposals that are submitted here
  

 7   today.  It has been a tremendous asset to the City of
  

 8   Camden.  I myself have sponsored an academic
  

 9   technological scientific program for high school
  

10   students for the past 17 years under the auspices of
  

11   the National NWACP.  And a lot our students that are
  

12   in our program, will also be involved with this art
  

13   pavilion.  Most of the students live in the City;
  

14   just about all of them; mostly city streets.  And
  

15   they will be mostly walking to and from or their
  

16   parents will be dropping them off and picking them
  

17   up.
  

18               I don't see the parking as really a big
  

19   problem.  Previously when it was a union hall, the
  

20   same situation existed, well, actually worse because
  

21   now there are vacant buildings, vacant properties on
  

22   Haddon Avenue that did not exist when the union hall
  

23   was operating with hundreds of members who come and
  

24   go.  So, I don't see it would be a problem as far as
  

25   parking because it would be a community-driven
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 1   endeavor.  I ask for your approval.  Okay.
  

 2               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Thank you.
  

 3               MR. EINGORN:  Good evening.  Please come
  

 4   forward to be sworn.  Please raise your right hand.
  

 5                         - - -
  

 6               SARAH DRUMMOND, having been first duly
  

 7   sworn/affirmed, was examined and testified as
  

 8   follows:
  

 9                         - - -
  

10               MR. EINGORN:  Can you provide your name
  

11   and address.
  

12               MS. DRUMMOND:  Sarah Drummond, 129 Cooper
  

13   Avenue, Woodlyn.  I'm an employee for Parkside
  

14   Business.  I'm the treasurer.  All I want to say is,
  

15   I grew up in Parkside.  God brought me full circle
  

16   back to work for a company that's main interest is to
  

17   bring back some livelihood on Haddon Avenue.  Take
  

18   away some of the plight and restore some of these
  

19   properties that have been dilapidated for years.
  

20   This is a great project.  A child growing up in
  

21   Camden, I had somewhere to go.  This is a
  

22   neighborhood center where kids are going to be able
  

23   to come, participate, collaborate and do good things
  

24   for the community.
  

25               So, I ask that you please take into
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 1   consideration what we're asking; to provide the
  

 2   temporary CO and allow us enough time to make, you
  

 3   know, the site plan and bring to fruition this
  

 4   program.  Thank you.
  

 5               MR. EINGORN:  Please come forward to be
  

 6   sworn.  Please raise your right hand.
  

 7                         - - -
  

 8               EDWARD VENABLE, having been first duly
  

 9   sworn/affirmed, was examined and testified as
  

10   follows:
  

11                         - - -
  

12               MR. EINGORN:  Can you please provide your
  

13   full name and address.
  

14               MR. VENABLE:  Edward Venable, 1362 Kaighn
  

15   Avenue.
  

16               MR. EINGORN:  Thank you.
  

17               MR. VENABLE:  I come before you this
  

18   evening to ask the Board to consider the project that
  

19   we currently are trying to establish in the Parkside
  

20   area.  I'm currently a member on the board of PBC&P.
  

21   And I really feel that this project will be an
  

22   incentive for the young folks in the Camden area.  I
  

23   really believe that being that we see what's
  

24   happening in the City at large right now will be also
  

25   a boost for the City.
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 1               I'd like to speak in reference to the
  

 2   facility.  I'm a retiree of Local 222.  A couple of
  

 3   the Board members made some comment about that.  That
  

 4   facility has been there for years.  And from my
  

 5   experiences and just being part of a local, and I've
  

 6   been retired now over 11 years, but we had
  

 7   construction workers that came and labored from all
  

 8   over South Jersey.
  

 9               And when we had meetings, monthly
  

10   meetings, and never really had any problem with the
  

11   parking in the street.  Then also, we also had
  

12   various events there at the facility and never really
  

13   had any problems with that.  So I'm just asking the
  

14   Planning Board this evening that you really give us
  

15   some consideration on this project.  And we thank
  

16   you.  Thank you.
  

17               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Thank you.
  

18               MR. EINGORN:  Please come forward to be
  

19   sworn.  Please raise your right hand.
  

20                         - - -
  

21               JESSICA FRANZINI, having been first duly
  

22   sworn/affirmed, was examined and testified as
  

23   follows:
  

24                         - - -
  

25               MR. EINGORN:  Can you please provide your
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 1   name and address for the record.
  

 2               MS. FRANZINI:  Jessica Franzini,
  

 3   representing 800 Galindez Court, Camden, New Jersey.
  

 4               Hi everybody.  My name is Jessica.  I
  

 5   have worked in the City for about ten years.  First,
  

 6   with the New Jersey Tree Foundation.  For eight years
  

 7   where I worked a lot with PBC&P.  So, I just want to
  

 8   speak on the record about their great work.
  

 9               They are a very community-based
  

10   organization.  They worked a lot with their
  

11   neighborhood plan in Parkside; to work with the
  

12   residents and stockholders and government to develop
  

13   a plan there.  So, I just wanted to speak on the
  

14   record about their great work, and also to speak in
  

15   support of the project and the array of programs that
  

16   will made available to the children and community in
  

17   Parkside.  And hope this is able to open.  Thank you.
  

18               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Anyone else from the
  

19   public?  If not, I will close the public portion.
  

20   Any comments on this end?
  

21               MR. MARTIN:  I will move to grant them
  

22   their preliminary and final site plan approval
  

23   because they did notice for it.  They provided the
  

24   information.  Subject to the representations of their
  

25   counsel that they will provide every bit of this data
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 1   that R&V needs to complete the site plan.
  

 2               MR. BAKER:  Second.
  

 3               MS. MOORE:  Right.  I mean --
  

 4               MR. MARTIN:  Every bit.
  

 5               MS. MOORE:  No, I get that.  But realize
  

 6   what we submitted and what we reviewed were the two
  

 7   11 by 17 papers that you saw.
  

 8               MR. MARTIN:  Right.
  

 9               MS. MOORE:  So, there wasn't an
  

10   in-depth -- you know, typically we will say, are
  

11   there any environmental issues there?  We would say
  

12   certain things which...  What you posted I wasn't
  

13   going to sit there and give you a 15-page letter.
  

14   So, just -- you've seen our letter.  So, you've seen
  

15   what we typically ask for a full site plan review.
  

16   So, I just ask that when you go to give us revised
  

17   plans, that you go ahead and answer all of the
  

18   questions I would typically ask of you to answer.
  

19               MR. RANSOM:  Certainly.  And we'll make
  

20   sure we adhere to the checklist or the site plan
  

21   application checklist to provide all information
  

22   that's required for a full site plan review.
  

23               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Understand one thing,
  

24   though, as you've stated earlier.  This Board doesn't
  

25   give you rubber stamps for every time you come in
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 1   here in reference to these waivers.  Each one is
  

 2   looked at individually and based on its own
  

 3   individual merit.  And fortunate for you, the
  

 4   community is all in favor of it and so forth.  I do
  

 5   know the area.  It does have some traffic issues.
  

 6   What's important is, what's its purpose?  And that is
  

 7   what this is all about.
  

 8               MR. EINGORN:  Also, this floor plan
  

 9   doesn't really comport with what we discussed at the
  

10   Zoning Board.  There's a lot of walls inside this
  

11   building which weren't really discussed.  And one of
  

12   the main concerns the Board had when this application
  

13   was brought was, is there going to be a lot of rooms
  

14   with so-called tenants?
  

15               And the discussion was, well, no, it'll
  

16   be more of an open concept; it'll be one kind of a
  

17   thing at a time.  This doesn't really seem to comport
  

18   with that.  So, I am a little upset that this is
  

19   different and that this floor plan wasn't brought to
  

20   the Zoning Board when it was considered for approval
  

21   of its interpretation.
  

22               MR. RANSOM:  That floor plan should have
  

23   been presented to the Zoning Board.  That's the same
  

24   floor plan that was provided prior to the Zoning
  

25   Board hearing.
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 1               MS. PHIFER:  And those are, for the most
  

 2   part, the same walls that were existing prior to any
  

 3   work being done at the building.  So, if you have
  

 4   someone from Local 222 to take a look at the layout.
  

 5               MR. EINGORN:  That may be the case.  That
  

 6   may be the case.  But my recollection of this
  

 7   application when it came before the Zoning Board is,
  

 8   we didn't have any of this because I don't remember
  

 9   this at all.  As a matter of fact, I don't remember
  

10   the design from Ms. Santos.  I don't remember any of
  

11   this.  And it doesn't seem to comport with my
  

12   recollection of what was brought at the time.
  

13               So, I think this is a great project and
  

14   it seems awesome.  But I don't know that -- I don't
  

15   know if this was there or that this was reviewed.
  

16   Because the big issue at the time was, is this going
  

17   to end up being really multiple uses based upon
  

18   multiple different compartmentalized tenants?
  

19               MR. RANSOM:  No.  I can assure you that I
  

20   did provide my colleague and I'll check the
  

21   resolution to verify.  And I can place on the record
  

22   that the proposed use of the property, will be
  

23   consistent with what was presented to the Board and
  

24   consistent with the Zoning Board interpretation that
  

25   we received.  And I'll confirm with the resolution of
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 1   approval.  But my recollection is -- well, I know I
  

 2   personally prepared my colleague for the hearing
  

 3   before the Zoning Board.  So, I believe that that
  

 4   rendering was presented to the Board to review.
  

 5               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  The object is to make
  

 6   sure you understand that it's only one use, not
  

 7   multiple uses.
  

 8               MR. RANSOM:  Certainly
  

 9               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  We have a motion.
  

10   Roll call.
  

11               MS. MILLER:  Fred Martin.
  

12               MR. MARTIN:  Yes.
  

13               MS. MILLER:  Jose DeJesus.
  

14               CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  Yes.
  

15               MS. MILLER:  Ulysses Baker.
  

16               MR. BAKER:  Yes.
  

17               MS. MILLER:  Councilwoman Reyes-Morton.
  

18               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Yes.
  

19               MS. MILLER:  Director Walker.
  

20               DIRECTOR WALKER:  Yes.
  

21               MS. MILLER:  Erin Crean.
  

22               MS. CREAN:  Yes.
  

23               MS. MILLER:  Motion carried to approve.
  

24               MR. RANSOM:  I appreciate your time.
  

25   Thank you.
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 1               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  The next application
  

 2   is Cooper Lanning Square Renaissance School
  

 3   Facilities (KIPP Sumner School) 1600 South 8th
  

 4   Street.
  

 5               MR. SHEEHAN:  Kevin Sheehan, Parker McCay
  

 6   on behalf of the applicant.  This is Cooper Lanning
  

 7   Square Renaissance School Facilities, Inc.  This is
  

 8   the former Sumner School.  The Board had granted
  

 9   preliminary and final site plan approval for this
  

10   facility previously.  And we're here to request some
  

11   amendments to that prior site plan approval.
  

12               Susan Bass Levin, who I can have sworn
  

13   in, will tell the Board why we want the changes on
  

14   what we're going to do.
  

15               MR. EINGORN:  Please come forward to be
  

16   sworn.  Please raise your right hand.
  

17                         - - -
  

18               SUSAN BASS LEVIN, having been first duly
  

19   sworn/affirmed, was examined and testified as
  

20   follows:
  

21                         - - -
  

22               MR. EINGORN:  Can you provide your name
  

23   and address.
  

24               MS. LEVIN:  Good evening.  My name is
  

25   Susan Bass Levin.  I'm the president of the Cooper
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 1   Foundation.  And until a week or so, I was on the
  

 2   board of the Kipp, Cooper, Norcross Academy.
  

 3               We're here tonight because we have an
  

 4   amended site plan for several minor changes.  As you
  

 5   heard, we received, thank you very much, a
  

 6   preliminary and final site plan approval for the
  

 7   Sumner School, a rehabilitation project in the fall
  

 8   of 2018.  Work is under way and the school is
  

 9   scheduled to open in August or September for the
  

10   2020-2021 school year.
  

11               But as we worked through the project, the
  

12   team identified several revisions and design changes
  

13   that we believe will make for a better overall
  

14   project.  We met with Dr. Williams to review the
  

15   proposal.  He did not express any concern with the
  

16   changes, but indicated that we needed to come to this
  

17   Board to seek amended site plan approval.
  

18               So, there are seven minor changes.  We
  

19   are relocating mechanical equipment, that was
  

20   currently on the roof, to the exterior ground level.
  

21   Our professionals think it's safer and a better
  

22   esthetic look for the school.  And so you won't be
  

23   able to see the mechanicals when you're standing at
  

24   ground level.  But because we're doing that, the
  

25   second change is, we're installing a 9-foot 6-inch
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 1   chain linked fence around the new equipment.
  

 2               We are also relocating the handicap ramp,
  

 3   the electrical transformer and the crash enclosures
  

 4   to improve the overall design of the project.  As we
  

 5   got in it, we saw things that we thought could be
  

 6   improved.  We are, No. 4, changing the athletic field
  

 7   from a synthetic turf field to a traditional sod
  

 8   field.  The field will be much smaller in size and it
  

 9   won't be used for competitive play.  So, we decided
  

10   it would be more practical to have the field sodded
  

11   based on the intensity of the use.
  

12               Because we are changing the field, we're
  

13   going to shift the location of the retaining wall
  

14   along 9th Street.  So, that requires a change.  And
  

15   then the final change is, we are removing the
  

16   vestibule and canopy.  We're proposing that we don't
  

17   have a vestibule and canopy.  It's not part of the
  

18   original building.  We were going to add it on.  We
  

19   decided that we didn't want to add it on.  We wanted
  

20   to keep the original design as much as possible.
  

21               So those are the six changes that we're
  

22   here before you to ask for your approval.  We do hope
  

23   you'll give consideration.  We do have a parent here
  

24   as well.  And I just want to let you know that.  And
  

25   we're available for questions.  And you can see the



130

  

 1   pictures over there.
  

 2               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Can we go to our
  

 3   engineer's letter?
  

 4               MR. SHEEHAN:  I'd like to have our
  

 5   professionals sworn in.  State your names for the
  

 6   record.
  

 7               MR. ALBERTO:  Angelo Alberto.
  

 8               MR. RUTHERFORD:  Kyle Rutherford.
  

 9                         - - -
  

10               ANGELO ALBERTO, R.A, P.P,; KYLE
  

11   RUTHERFORD, P.E., having first been duly sworn, was
  

12   examined and testified as follows:
  

13                         - - -
  

14               MS. MOORE:  We'll go right to the letter.
  

15   Mr. Chairman.  I'm referring to Remington & Vernick's
  

16   letter dated February 11th, 2020.  I will start on
  

17   page five.
  

18               For Stormwater Collection and Management
  

19   System:  A runoff coefficient of 80 was used for the
  

20   open space in the PDA-2 drainage area.  This area is
  

21   comprised of the sod field which will be maintained
  

22   to be in a "good" condition with a grass cover of
  

23   greater than 75 percent according to the applicant's
  

24   engineer.
  

25               Per Section 577-229.A.1, "All open space
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 1   in the post development condition is to be assumed to
  

 2   be have grass cover in "fair" condition which is
  

 3   grass cover from 50 percent to 75 percent unless
  

 4   otherwise approved."  A design waiver is being
  

 5   requested for the use of grass cover in good
  

 6   condition for the field.
  

 7               This is pretty much a technical issue
  

 8   here which I wanted their engineer to explain exactly
  

 9   why they're using good condition.  And as the
  

10   ordinance states, we typically use fair condition.
  

11               MR. RUTHERFORD:  Sure.  So, given the use
  

12   as an athletic field for the students and KIPP's
  

13   history on their other properties, this is going to
  

14   be a highly maintained field.  Under the current
  

15   code, a grass cover of 50 to 75 percent is what is
  

16   typically used.  We feel that this field will
  

17   consistently have greater than 75 percent grass cover
  

18   in all conditions.  If it got worse now, it really
  

19   doesn't facilitate being an athletic field for the
  

20   students.  So, we feel it would be highly maintained.
  

21               MS. MOORE:  And there is a provision in
  

22   the ordinance that states, unless otherwise approved.
  

23   And so that's why I did not want to approve that.  I
  

24   wanted the Board to listen.  I take no exception to
  

25   the granting of the waiver.
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 1               The building access areas must be
  

 2   coordinated between the site plans and the
  

 3   architecturals plans at the building expansion.
  

 4               MR. RUTHERFORD:  Yes.
  

 5               MS. MOORE:  End wall locations should be
  

 6   noted for the retaining wall to the east of the
  

 7   site.
  

 8               MR. RUTHERFORD:  Yes.
  

 9               MS. MOORE:  Spot grades must be added at
  

10   the corners of the mechanical equipment pads.
  

11               MR. RUTHERFORD:  Yes.
  

12               MS. MOORE:  The callouts for the
  

13   underground conduit for the fire pump and service
  

14   switchboard should be corrected.
  

15               MR. RUTHERFORD:  Yes.
  

16               MS. MOORE:  The project must be approved
  

17   by the City Fire Chief and the City Engineer with
  

18   written verification provided to our office prior to
  

19   final signatures on the plan.
  

20               MR. RUTHERFORD:  Yes.
  

21               MS. MOORE:  Now, both of them approved
  

22   the project previously in writing.  So, if you
  

23   can just go to them and advise them of these
  

24   amendments and I'm sure.
  

25               MR. RUTHERFORD:  Yes.
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 1               MS. MOORE:  These plans were already
  

 2   signed.  We're aware that they're about to go into
  

 3   construction.
  

 4               MR. RUTHERFORD:  Yes.
  

 5               MS. MOORE:  The Tax Assessor requested
  

 6   the following in her February 7, 2020 review comments
  

 7   for the project.  She wants you to please make it
  

 8   mandatory that -- well, she wants us to make it
  

 9   mandatory that the applicant record a deed of
  

10   consolidation combining Block 444, Lots, 1, 2, 4, 22,
  

11   24, 25, & 33 into Block 444, Lot 1.  Do you have a
  

12   status on that?
  

13               MR. SHEEHAN:  The answer is no, it has
  

14   not been.  The answer to your question or statements,
  

15   yes, it will be.  It wasn't all owned by the same
  

16   entity.
  

17               MS. MOORE:  Right.
  

18               MR. SHEEHAN:  The City had owned it.  So
  

19   now the Board of Education owns it.  We've asked the
  

20   Board of Education to do it.  We just need to do it
  

21   and give it to them.
  

22               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  She wants that.
  

23               MR. SHEEHAN:  So we can now do that.
  

24               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  As a part of this
  

25   approval?
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 1               MR. SHEEHAN:  Yes.
  

 2               MS. MOORE:  Please have the alley way to
  

 3   the rear of Lots 3, 4, 24, 25 & 22 properly vacated.
  

 4   Please have the alley way between Lots 24 and 25
  

 5   properly vacated.  These vacations are necessary for
  

 6   the deed of consolidation to be completed.
  

 7               MR. SHEEHAN:  That's okay with us.  Can
  

 8   the Board approve that subject to us giving you -- I
  

 9   know typically vacation plans, you have to file a
  

10   vacation plan and an application to come before the
  

11   Board.
  

12               MS. MOORE:  And that goes to the City
  

13   Engineer.  We don't review street vacations or alley
  

14   vacations.
  

15               MR. SHEEHAN:  Oh no?
  

16               MS. MOORE:  Orion will review it.
  

17               MR. SHEEHAN:  All right.  That's fine.
  

18               MS. MOORE:  So then you would come back
  

19   and have that?
  

20               MR. SHEEHAN:  That's what I'm saying.  I
  

21   don't want to have to come back.  You're making it a
  

22   condition of my site plan approval.  We'll satisfy
  

23   you.
  

24               MS. MOORE:  Right.  It's a condition of
  

25   your approval but that can take place while this is
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 1   going on.  I know the Tax Assessor wanted it done the
  

 2   first time.
  

 3               MR. SHEEHAN:  Right.  So, we have to
  

 4   get -- so we need to do a plan submitted to Orion,
  

 5   right.
  

 6               MS. MOORE:  Right.  Well, the application
  

 7   and all of that.  I mean, I don't mind you guys
  

 8   going through and following with the construction
  

 9   while you're getting this done.  You just can't have
  

10   anything completed before you have the deed of
  

11   consolidation.  That has to be done as soon as
  

12   possible.
  

13               MR. SHEEHAN:  I get that part.  Do
  

14   I have to come back with an application to vacate the
  

15   alley ways that you're making me vacate in this
  

16   application?
  

17               MR. MARTIN:  I think it's not her call.
  

18               MS. MOORE:  Right, it's not my call.
  

19               MR. MARTIN:  It's our council's call.
  

20               MR. SHEEHAN:  I get that part.
  

21               MR. MARTIN:  And the issue is, that it's
  

22   a different process.  In other words, City Council
  

23   actually grants the vacation.  All we do is
  

24   recommend.  And without a separate document reviewed
  

25   by the City Engineer, we can't make that
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 1   recommendation.
  

 2               MR. EINGORN:  We can't speak for the City
  

 3   Engineer as to --
  

 4               MR. SHEEHAN:  You're telling the City
  

 5   Engineer to do it?  Making me come back and go
  

 6   through this whole process --
  

 7               MS. MOORE:  Right but I don't --
  

 8               MR. MARTIN:  This is billable hours.
  

 9               MS. MOORE:  I know it's a condition but I
  

10   don't see why you wouldn't be able to sign off on the
  

11   plans and still have you do construction while you're
  

12   going through with that process.
  

13               MR. SHEEHAN:  It's the expense of, as Mr.
  

14   Martin said, there's more than must me of billable
  

15   hours to sit here in the back of the meeting for five
  

16   hours.  That's what I'm getting at.  Doing all the
  

17   work and going through -- I understand it has to go
  

18   to Orion and giving him all that stuff, going to
  

19   Council because I know Council has to approve that.
  

20   I'm not objecting to any of that.  What I'm asking
  

21   not to have to is, have to come here for another
  

22   night --
  

23               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  You have no choice.
  

24               MR. SHEEHAN:  -- to do the --
  

25               MS. MOORE:  See, I don't think --
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 1               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  We can't do anything
  

 2   about that.
  

 3               MS. MOORE: -- that's just -- you have
  

 4   to, yeah.
  

 5               MR. SHEEHAN:  No?
  

 6               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  No, because you don't
  

 7   have the application in front of us.
  

 8               MS. LEVIN:  Can I just ask?  I don't
  

 9   understand why you can't make it conditional
  

10   like you just did.  You have two pieces of paper and
  

11   you made a conditional.
  

12               MR. MARTIN:  Ms. Bass-Levin, we can make
  

13   it conditioned, the site plan approval on it.  That's
  

14   fine.  We can't start the process of a street
  

15   vacation without a Street Vacation Application in
  

16   front of us.  So, it's just going to have to take --
  

17   it'll take a separate course.  It can be done
  

18   concurrently with your doing this other work.
  

19               MS. MOORE:  Right.
  

20               MR. MARTIN:  And it's eventually
  

21   a part of the requirements for the site plan
  

22   approval, but it's a separate process.  If you would
  

23   have come tonight with a separate application
  

24   already submitted for the street vacation, then we
  

25   could have heard all concurrently.
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 1               As it is simply the processes will be
  

 2   concurrent because they're two separate
  

 3   administrative processes.  It would be nice if we
  

 4   could have done it one fell swoop.  But
  

 5   unfortunately, we ran afoul with the fact it's a
  

 6   separate administrative process.
  

 7               MS. LEVIN:  Yes, it is unfortunate.
  

 8               MR. MARTIN:  I mean, we can recommend but
  

 9   we can't follow the administrative process without
  

10   the application in front of us.  It can be a very
  

11   abbreviated hearing when it gets here.
  

12               MS. LEVIN:  Could we write out an
  

13   application right now?
  

14               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  No.
  

15               MS. LEVIN:  I know but I saw what they
  

16   just did.
  

17               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  That's okay.
  

18               MR. EINGORN:  And you also don't want to
  

19   have an issue where you come under scrutiny because
  

20   you did something that wasn't provided for under the
  

21   law.
  

22               MR. MARTIN:  We had a very broad path to
  

23   the one that we just did before.  And truthfully, I
  

24   wasn't comfortable with it but the exigent of need
  

25   and the fact that there was no other way to do it,
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 1   drove us to that position.
  

 2               In this case, just the processes are
  

 3   concurrent.  Unfortunately, it's a little more
  

 4   expensive.  But the processes can happen at the same
  

 5   time.  It would have been nice if we could have
  

 6   started them tonight.
  

 7               MS. LEVIN:  I understand.
  

 8               MS. MOORE:  I think you came into the
  

 9   same situation that happened with the hotel where all
  

10   of a sudden you realized or at some point they
  

11   realized that there were alleys on the tax map.
  

12   Because when this project came through before, there
  

13   was never a mention of alley to be vacated.  It was a
  

14   consolidation but never alley.  This was my first
  

15   time in this memo where I saw alleys that needed to
  

16   be vacated.
  

17               MR. EINGORN:  I thought the hotel knew
  

18   they had to come back for the street vacation.  I
  

19   think that was something you grabbed at the time.
  

20               MS. MOORE:  They thought that was
  

21   something that had been taken care of years ago that
  

22   hadn't officially been taken care of.  So, I mean,
  

23   your construction can be looked up
  

24               MR. SHEEHAN:  Okay.
  

25               MS. MOORE:  A signature block should be
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 1   added to the Cover Sheet for signatures of the
  

 2   Planning Board Chairman, Planning Board Secretary,
  

 3   Planning Board Engineer and Zoning
  

 4   Office/Administrator Officer.
  

 5               MR. SHEEHAN:  Yes.
  

 6               MS. MOOORE:  These plans are now going to
  

 7   replace the previous plans.
  

 8               MR. SHEEHAN:  Right.
  

 9               MS. MOORE:  Per Section 577-197.G, no
  

10   fence hereinafter erected, altered or reconstructed
  

11   shall exceed a height of six feet above ground level.
  

12   The plan proposes a 9 foot 6 inch high chain link
  

13   fence around the mechanical equipment.  A variance
  

14   from this requirement is required.
  

15               MR. RUTHERFORD:  So, we're asking for
  

16   that variance today because the mechanical
  

17   equipment, some of it, sits fairly high.  And
  

18   initially what's on our plans in front of you was a 9
  

19   foot 6-inch high chain link fence with a chain link
  

20   roof.  We'd actually like to make a small change to
  

21   that which we'll work with Dena.
  

22               Instead of doing two-inch standard mesh.
  

23   We'd like to go to a denser mesh so it's
  

24   non-climbable and remove the top.  We feel that that
  

25   would a safe condition overall.  It would also
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 1   facilitate kind of longterm maintenance.  We still
  

 2   would like the 9 foot 6" height.  It'll help with the
  

 3   screening of the mechanical equipment that does sit
  

 4   that high and also provide additional safety.
  

 5               MS. MOORE:  And we take no exception to
  

 6   the granting of that variance.
  

 7               I've listed the Summary of Variances and
  

 8   Waivers previously granted for the project on page
  

 9   six.  And then page seven, we have a Summary of
  

10   Variance and Waivers required with this application.
  

11   And that would be the variance for the fence height.
  

12   And then the wavier for the runoff standard for the
  

13   grass cover.
  

14               The Approval Process as listed on page
  

15   seven.  And that is actually different so you would
  

16   be at the point where you would submit revised plans
  

17   and then plans for signature.
  

18               MR. SHEEHAN:  Yes.
  

19               MS. MOORE:  Outside Agency Approvals.  I
  

20   have Camden County Planning Board, Camden Soil
  

21   Conservation District.  Are you going to have them
  

22   review amended plans at all, either of them?
  

23               MR. RANSOM:  I wasn't planning to.
  

24               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  Mr. Chairman, that
  

25   concludes our review.
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 1               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Any comments from the
  

 2   Board?  Any comments from the public?
  

 3               MR. EINGORN:  Please come forward to be
  

 4   sworn.  Please raise your right hands.
  

 5                         - - -
  

 6               LUZ MARTINEZ, having been first duly
  

 7   sworn/affirmed, was examined and testified as
  

 8   follows:
  

 9                         - - -
  

10               MR. EINGORN:  Can you provide your name
  

11   and address for the record.
  

12               MS. MARTINEZ:  Luz Martinez, 1812 S. 7th
  

13   Street, Camden, New Jersey.
  

14               I have three children two of whom had the
  

15   opportunity to attend KIPP.  I'm here because to tell
  

16   my story a little bit about KIPP.  I have an oldest
  

17   who went to school outside of Camden.  And she has
  

18   seen how -- has come back to KIPP School and has seen
  

19   how the teachers are at KIPP and how the staff is
  

20   there.
  

21               She always tells me, she wishes she had
  

22   teachers and had the opportunity to have a school
  

23   that KIPP has been to my two youngest.  My other
  

24   thing is that I like the impact that it has brought
  

25   to the downtown.  And I'm hoping it's going to be the
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 1   same impact that it's going to bring to where I live
  

 2   at.  That's it.
  

 3               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Anyone else?  If not,
  

 4   a motion is in place.
  

 5               MR. MARTIN:  Mr. Chairman, I move for the
  

 6   amended final site plan for the KIPP School subject
  

 7   to them complying with the request of the Tax
  

 8   Assessor --
  

 9               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  And the vacating of
  

10   the alley ways.
  

11               MR. MARTIN:  -- and vacating of the
  

12   alleys we've now discovered.
  

13               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Can I have a second?
  

14               MS. CREAN:  Second.
  

15               CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  Roll call.
  

16               MS. MILLER:  Fred Martin.
  

17               MR. MARTIN:  Yes.
  

18               MS. MILLER:  Jose DeJesus.
  

19               CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  Yes.
  

20               MS. MILLER:  Ulysses Baker.
  

21               MR. BAKER:  Yes.
  

22               MS. MILLER:  Councilwoman Reyes-Morton.
  

23               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Yes.
  

24               MS. MILLER:  Director Walker.
  

25               DIRECTOR WALKER:  Yes.
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 1               MS. MILLER:  Erin Crean.
  

 2               MS. CREAN:  Yes.
  

 3               MS. MILLER:  Motion carried to approve.
  

 4   Thank you.
  

 5               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  The next application
  

 6   is Camden County Improvement Authority, Project:
  

 7   Rutgers Camden Athletic Fields, 401 N. Delaware
  

 8   Avenue, Block 80.03, Lot 1.01.  Ms. Crean needs to
  

 9   share something.
  

10               MR. SHEEHAN:  Before she does, this is
  

11   the application of Camden County Improvement
  

12   Authority for 401 N. Delaware Avenue.
  

13               MS. CREAN:  For the record, even though
  

14   this is a courtesy review, I would like to recuse
  

15   myself because of my professional relationship with
  

16   Joe Raday from Pennoni and my former professional
  

17   relationship with Camden County.
  

18               MR. SHEEHAN:  So, Mr. Chairman, this is a
  

19   courtesy review pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40:55D-31.  It's
  

20   an application of the Camden County Improvement
  

21   Authority to construct ball fields at the former
  

22   Campbell's Field.
  

23               MR. MARTIN:  The Councilwoman works for
  

24   Camden County.  Camden County Improvement Authority
  

25   is a separate entity.  My suggestion is that she
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 1   announce that; she doesn't have to recuse herself but
  

 2   do we really have a quorum.  Have her stay having
  

 3   announced as a county employee but she's part of the
  

 4   Camden County Improvement.
  

 5               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  We do have a quorum.
  

 6               MR. SHEENAN:  If the Councilwoman leaves?
  

 7               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  If she leaves, yes.
  

 8               MR. EINGORN:  Right.
  

 9               MR. MARTIN:  She doesn't have to, I don't
  

10   think.
  

11               MR. EINGORN:  And the question is, do you
  

12   believe that you could execute your duties as a
  

13   member of the Planning Board without any, I guess,
  

14   impartially and without any feeling of your inability
  

15   to weigh on the application?
  

16               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Yes.
  

17   Absolutely.
  

18               MR. SHEEHAN:  The good thing is, that
  

19   this is not a formal public hearing and a formal
  

20   application requesting relief.  It's courtesy review.
  

21   I think that helps.
  

22               MR. EINGORN:  It certainly mitigate --
  

23               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Sorry.
  

24               MR. EINGORN:  Don't be sorry.  It is what
  

25   it is.
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 1               MR. MARTIN:  Better to know than after
  

 2   the fact to find out it was that an illegal act.
  

 3               MR. EINGORN:  Agreed.
  

 4               MR. SHEEHAN:  Right.  So with me is Jim
  

 5   Lex from the Camden County Improvement Authority who
  

 6   will give you a summary of what the Authority is
  

 7   looking to do.
  

 8               MR. EINGORN:  Please come forward to be
  

 9   sworn.  Please raise your right hand.
  

10                         - - -
  

11               JAMES LEX, having been first duly
  

12   sworn/affirmed, was examined and testified as
  

13   follows:
  

14                         - - -
  

15               MR. EINGORN:  Please provide your name
  

16   and affiliation for the record.
  

17               MR. LEX:  James Lex, Camden County
  

18   Improvement Authority as the Chief Operating Officer.
  

19               MR. EINGORN:  Thank you.
  

20               MR. LEX:  I'm going to give you a real
  

21   brief history on how we got to this point just for
  

22   your background.  I'm going to be real brief because
  

23   I know you guys are tired.
  

24               The Improvement Authority took possession
  

25   of the property in 2015.  We worked diligently to try
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 1   to find someone else to take over the stadium portion
  

 2   of it.  It didn't work out so we had -- the stadium's
  

 3   been vacant for a portion, probably about two to two
  

 4   and a half years.  Rutgers approached the County and
  

 5   the Improvement Authority to see if there's a
  

 6   possibility of doing a project.  We explored that
  

 7   possibility.  And you can see in front of you, that's
  

 8   what the process is.  I want to please note that this
  

 9   is a partnership between four entities.  It's the
  

10   Improvement Authority, Camden County, the Joint Board
  

11   of Governors and Rutgers University.
  

12               I also want to note too that just, and
  

13   publically comment here, because Camden County is
  

14   involved, that this is going to have a public
  

15   component.  I want this Board to understand that
  

16   there will be a public component.  It hasn't been
  

17   finalized how those uses are going to be worked out.
  

18   Rutgers is going to have operating responsibilities
  

19   but it will part of the County -- it'll either be a
  

20   park system or it'll be an open space system.  So,
  

21   there will be public access.  So, I just want to let
  

22   that be on the record.  You can see that there's two
  

23   primary athletic fields along with associated uses.
  

24   Thank you.
  

25               MR. SHEEHAN:  So if I can swear in the



148

  

 1   engineer and the architect.  And go --
  

 2               MS. MOORE:  And go right to the letter?
  

 3               MR. SHEEHAN:  Yes.
  

 4               MR. EINGORN:  Please come forward to be
  

 5   sworn.  Please raise your right hand.
  

 6                         - - -
  

 7               BLAKE FITZGERALD, P.E., MARK HEVDEN,
  

 8   R.A., having been first duly sworn/affirmed, was
  

 9   examined and testified as follows:
  

10                         - - -
  

11               MR. EINGORN:  Please provide your name
  

12   and state your full name, address and affiliation for
  

13   the record.
  

14               MR. FITZGERALD:  Blake Fitzgerald,
  

15   professional engineer.
  

16               MR. HEVDEN:  My name is Mark Hevden.  The
  

17   company is Ewing Cole.  I'm an architect.
  

18               MS. MOORE:  Mr. Chairman, I'm referring
  

19   to Remington & Vernick's letter dated February 10th,
  

20   2020.  As was mentioned, this is a courtesy review.
  

21   We will start on page four.
  

22               If a street opening is necessary for
  

23   these roadways, that's Pearl Street, Delaware Avenue
  

24   and Penn Street, this application would be subject to
  

25   the Street Opening Permit Ordinance of the City.  The
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 1   City Engineer should be contacted concerning the
  

 2   application and fees involved.
  

 3               MR. SHEEHAN:  Yes.
  

 4               MS. MOORE:  Per Section 577-230.F,
  

 5   baseball or soccer fields require five parking spaces
  

 6   for every field.  Ten spaces are required; 26 spaces
  

 7   are proposed.  Per Section 577-230.O, off-street
  

 8   parking requirements may only be exceeded where it
  

 9   can be demonstrated that additional parking is
  

10   necessary for the operation of the proposed use.  Our
  

11   office takes no exception.
  

12               Per the Redevelopment Plan, sidewalks
  

13   shall be 10 to 15 feet wide.  Sidewalks should be
  

14   dimensioned but appear to be less than required.
  

15   This is a pre-existing condition.
  

16               MR. SHEEHAN:  We will dimension.
  

17               MS. MOORE:  Per Section 577-224.B.5.g,
  

18   bicycle lockers and/or stands shall be provided near
  

19   the building entrance, whereas none are proposed.
  

20               MR. SHEEHAN:  If the budget will allow
  

21   for it, we'll add the bicycles.
  

22               MS. MOORE:  Are you actually going to
  

23   revise the plans?
  

24               MR. SHEEHAN:  I was going to say, what
  

25   our plan was is to, yes, we'll have to revise plans
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 1   for construction.  So when have to do revised plans,
  

 2   we'll submit them to Ed.
  

 3               MS. MOORE:  Okay.
  

 4               Per Section 577-224.B.5.g., if the
  

 5   building is served by a bus line, a bus pull-out or
  

 6   parking stop, a bus shelter shall be provided as
  

 7   close to the building entrance as possible.
  

 8               MR. FITZGERALD:  So under the existing
  

 9   conditions, there is a bus stop sign on Delaware.
  

10   There is not a bus shelter or any striping to
  

11   designate that there's a bus pull-over area.  So,
  

12   under our proposed conditions, we weren't going
  

13   to -- we don't have any proposed improvements in
  

14   Delaware Avenue.  The only thing that we're showing
  

15   is, we're shifting that sign a couple of feet.  But
  

16   other than that, we're not doing any improvements in
  

17   Delaware Avenue.
  

18               MS. MOORE:  The applicant should address
  

19   the removal of the drop-off area.
  

20               MR. FITZGERALD:  So, the drop-off area
  

21   that's on Penn Street?
  

22               MS. MOORE:  Right.
  

23               MR. FITZGERALD:  So, that's being removed
  

24   just because we need the space to fit both these
  

25   fields.  Drop-offs are going to be handled on Pearl
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 1   Street.  And there's really no designated drop-off
  

 2   area here.
  

 3               MS. MOORE:  Per Section 577-229.C.3.d,
  

 4   all new manholes and catch basins shall have exterior
  

 5   coating.  The Utility Plan should note this, these
  

 6   two comments.  Are you going to do this?  Are you
  

 7   going to do the coating?
  

 8               MR. HEVDEN:  Yeah.
  

 9               MS. MOORE:  You are going to, the
  

10   interior and exterior coating?
  

11               MR. HEVDEN:  Yes.
  

12               MS. MOORE:  All right.  If you can add
  

13   those two notes on the plan, please.
  

14               Storm sewer calculations should be
  

15   provided to confirm the stormwater collection system
  

16   is designed to convey a storm event with a 25-year
  

17   frequency.  The "normal" Manning's roughness
  

18   coefficient should be used for the RCP and HDPE pipes
  

19   in the calculations.
  

20               MR. FITZGERALD:  Yep.
  

21               MS. MOORE:  The material of the 24" x 38"
  

22   pipe should be labeled on the Utility Plan.
  

23               MR. HEVDEN:  We'll label that.
  

24               MS. MOORE:  The pipe layout of the
  

25   underground basins should be noted on the Utility
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 1   Plan and the details should be site specific to the
  

 2   actual layout for each basin.
  

 3               MR. FITZGERALD:  We'll do that.
  

 4               MS. MOORE:  The applicant should consider
  

 5   replacing the entire RCP pipe at MH-P1 and not only
  

 6   the one downstream section replacement with the
  

 7   27" x 42" HERCP.
  

 8               Are you just going to do the one segment?
  

 9               MR. FITZGERALD:  What we were talking
  

10   about was maybe in the bid documents, having language
  

11   in there that the contractor video that pipe.
  

12               MS. MOORE:  Right.
  

13               MR. FITZGERALD:  And if it's found to be
  

14   in good condition, we'll leave it.  If it's in bad
  

15   condition or leaking or such, then we would replace
  

16   it all the way to the intersection.
  

17               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  So, we'll see that on
  

18   revised plans what you plan on doing.  That's just
  

19   our suggestion why replace --
  

20               MR. FITZGERALD:  Yeah.  That's more of
  

21   like a language thing in the bid documents.  Maybe
  

22   it's on the plan.
  

23               MS. MOORE:  Portions of the site are
  

24   located within the 100-year flood hazard area and are
  

25   subject to title flooding.  The applicant should
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 1   discuss permitting involved for the project.
  

 2               MR. FITZGERALD:  We're in the process of
  

 3   obtaining a waterfront development permit.
  

 4               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  This project will
  

 5   disturb more than one acre and the NJDEP standard for
  

 6   a groundwater recharge, stormwater quantity and
  

 7   stormwater quality must be addressed in a Stormwater
  

 8   Management Report.  This report should also include a
  

 9   low-impact development checklist.
  

10               MR. FITZGERALD:  We will provide.
  

11               MS. MOORE:  The results of the test pits
  

12   and borings should be provided to confirm the
  

13   two-foot separation between the detention basin
  

14   bottom and the estimated seasonal high groundwater
  

15   table.  And a three-foot separation should be
  

16   provided between the underground basin bottoms and
  

17   the estimated seasonal high groundwater table.
  

18               You know that's different for the City.
  

19   They require three.
  

20               MR. FITZGERALD:  Okay.
  

21               MS. MOORE:  I know since -- well, they
  

22   require three because of the combined system.  So, I
  

23   don't know if you're going to follow that or just do
  

24   the regular deed being two feet --
  

25               MR. FITZGERALD:  We were going to
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 1   follow --
  

 2               MS. MOORE:  But in Camden they do like
  

 3   for you to have three feet.
  

 4               MR. FITZGERALD:  Okay.  We were going to
  

 5   follow NJDEP --
  

 6               MS. MOORE:  Which is two.
  

 7               MR. FITZGERALD:  -- two-foot minimum.
  

 8   And also our underground basins have a PVC vinyl.
  

 9   So, the groundwater nor the basin are going to
  

10   interact with each other because it's all going to be
  

11   contained.  Nothing is going to infiltrate our basin.
  

12   Because it'll be a 30 Mil PVC line in there.
  

13               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  I have a
  

14   question.  How will that affect the flooding in that
  

15   area?
  

16               MR. FITZGERALD:  Well, the underground
  

17   basins are going to detain the runoff from the fields
  

18   and then hold it back and then release it at --
  

19               MS. MOORE:  Well, it's tidal in that area
  

20   too.  So, it will be subject to flooding because it's
  

21   tidal, so they can't control that.
  

22               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  How will a
  

23   two and three defer?  It's crazy flooding over there.
  

24               MS. MOORE:  In that area because they are
  

25   tidal, it probably wouldn't matter.
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 1               MR. SHEEHAN:  The MUA is going through a
  

 2   deeding process of getting the pump station approved
  

 3   on Pearl Street which is suppose to pump against the
  

 4   tide in those situations so that should help in the
  

 5   tidal situation.
  

 6               MS. MOORE:  Yeah.
  

 7               MR. SHEEHAN:  Arch Street just got
  

 8   upgraded and then you got all the outlets there are
  

 9   being, I think, cleaned out.  One of the outfalls is
  

10   falling so they're replacing that.
  

11               DIRECTOR WALKER:  Doing all outfalls.
  

12               MR. SHEEHAN:  All of that together and
  

13   the increasing of the size of the MUA facility
  

14   itself, all of that is suppose to help alleviate most
  

15   of the flooding you're still going to have.
  

16               MR. MARTIN:  They're going to increase
  

17   the size of the Arch Street pumping station?
  

18               MR. SHEEHAN:  It was upgraded.  It's
  

19   done.
  

20               DIRECTOR WALKER:  Yeah, we upgraded and
  

21   we changed all our pumps out.
  

22               MR. MARTIN:  You increased the size,
  

23   capacity?
  

24               DIRECTOR WALKER:  No.
  

25               MR. SHEEHAN:  No.  The capacity is the
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 1   main facility down on Fed --
  

 2               DIRECTOR WALKER:  CCMUA capacity.
  

 3               MR. SHEEHAN:  The MUA's main facility.
  

 4         MR. MARTIN:  I understand that.  But I
  

 5   understand how that area drains.  And so it all goes
  

 6   down to Arch Street.  It wasn't going directly into
  

 7   the river.
  

 8               MR. SHEEHAN:  Right.
  

 9               MR. MARTIN:  And I wondered why you're
  

10   even bothering even to bring it back to the City's
  

11   combined system if all you're doing is runoff from
  

12   the field, you should be going right back to the
  

13   river.
  

14               MS. MOORE:  That's -- you mean what they
  

15   have there, that's privately owned, correct, what's
  

16   back?
  

17               MR. SHEEHAN:  Their facility?
  

18               MR. FITZGERALD:  Yeah, for the
  

19   waterfront.
  

20               MS. MOORE:  You're saying, why don't they
  

21   connect to with what's that, the waterfront now, the
  

22   big --
  

23               MR. FITZGERALD:  The big outfall?
  

24               MR. MARTIN:  I was saying, why don't they
  

25   take the stormwater right to the outfall and not
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 1   bypass the City's combined system totally?  You're
  

 2   not going back to the combined system, right, with
  

 3   the stormwater on that site?
  

 4               MR. FITZGERALD:  We are going back
  

 5   there.
  

 6               MS. MOORE:  Yeah, they're going back to
  

 7   the combined system.
  

 8               MR. MARTIN:  I mean, you're there.  Why
  

 9   don't you go to the river?
  

10               MS. MOORE:  What's designed there -- the
  

11   waterfront project, correct, is that what you're
  

12   saying?  What Liberty built over?
  

13               MS. MOORE:  You're at Campbell's Field,
  

14   correct?
  

15               MS. MOORE:  Yes.
  

16               MR. SHEEHAN:  Yeah.
  

17               MR. MARTIN:  Campbell's Field is between
  

18   Delaware Avenue and the Delaware River, correct?
  

19               MS. MOORE:  Right.
  

20               MR. MARTIN:  There are outfalls that run
  

21   from the Delaware Avenue Pumping Station and
  

22   another --
  

23               MR. SHEEHAN:  There's one on Cooper.  The
  

24   closest one is Cooper Street.
  

25               MR. MARTIN:  -- that don't have any
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 1   interaction with the City's system because if they
  

 2   went right to the outfall, they'd go right to the
  

 3   river.  The biggest problem is, you can't discharge
  

 4   during high tide which is why you have a retention
  

 5   basin so you can discharge at low tide.  And the
  

 6   question is, why bring it back to the City's system
  

 7   and have to -- because all it does to the City system
  

 8   is, it means you're pumping a percentage of it
  

 9   down to CCMUA's plant and increasing the likelihood
  

10   of a combined sewer overflow at the Arch Street
  

11   station and other stations down the stream.
  

12               So the question is, why not go right to
  

13   the river?  And my understanding --
  

14               MS. MOORE:  Maybe that may be something
  

15   that comes up in their waterfront development review
  

16   by deed.
  

17               MR. SHEEHAN:  But there's not an outfall
  

18   there.  They have to get to the system.  They can't
  

19   get across the private property where the apartments
  

20   are --
  

21               MS. MOORE:  Right.  That's all private.
  

22               MR. SHEEHAN: -- to Cooper Street.  So,
  

23   they have to connect to Delaware anyway.
  

24               MR. MARTIN:  It may be cost effective to
  

25   go down to the outfall directly.  We relocated the
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 1   Arch Street pumping station outfall through that
  

 2   site.
  

 3               MS. SHEEHAN:  It's kind of hard.  You
  

 4   either have to go through --
  

 5               MR. MARTIN:  I'm trying to think where
  

 6   exactly the line is.
  

 7               MS. MOORE:  The other streets are all
  

 8   private over there now.
  

 9               MR. SHEEHAN:  Yes, that's right.
  

10               MS. MOORE:  If they're all private
  

11   streets, the rest of the streets are all private.
  

12               MR. MARTIN:  Yeah, I understand.  But the
  

13   City still has pipes in them and outfalls in them.
  

14               MS. MOORE:  From what I understand --
  

15               MR. SHEEHAN:  I don't think the pipes
  

16   are.  He's right.  There's easements underneath the
  

17   streets.
  

18               MR. MARTIN:  I mean, the question just
  

19   hit me why.  I always thought -- truthfully,
  

20   I thought Campbell's Field did go back to the river.
  

21   I just couldn't see why you would bring it back to
  

22   Delaware Avenue and add that flow.  Because part of
  

23   the reason Delaware Avenue floods the way it does, is
  

24   the capacity to pump stuff out of the pumping station
  

25   at high tide.



160

  

 1               MR. SHEEHAN:  Right.
  

 2               MR. MARTIN:  It's basically a giant
  

 3   retention basin to allow the flow to moderate down to
  

 4   CCMUA.  And that's not fair to the residents or fair
  

 5   to any of the developments that happen there.  And
  

 6   unfortunately as global warming increases, the
  

 7   periods were the tide is going to be high enough to
  

 8   adversely affect the pumping capacity.  Pumps are
  

 9   interesting things.  The harder they have to work,
  

10   the less they move.
  

11               So, even though the capacity might be
  

12   20-MGD in design, a million gallons a day worth of
  

13   flow, when you get a high tide situation, because
  

14   you're pumping against the head from a low-head pump.
  

15   No, I'm just surprised -- I thought truthfully when
  

16   the waterfront development -- I was out of the
  

17   picture by then -- when the waterfront development
  

18   was done, the stormwater from Delaware Avenue to the
  

19   river was going back to the river directly, not
  

20   coming back to the City's combined system.
  

21               MR. FITZGERALD:  Not --
  

22               MS. MOORE:  Not here.  Not what's being
  

23   proposed.
  

24               The applicant must prepare a Stormwater
  

25   Maintenance Plan for the stormwater management system
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 1   per the NJ Stormwater Best Management Practices
  

 2   Manual.
  

 3               MR. FITZGERALD:  We will provide.
  

 4               MS. MOORE:  The name, title, address and
  

 5   phone number of the party responsible for that
  

 6   maintenance will be included in the plan.
  

 7               MR. SHEEHAN:  Yes.
  

 8               MR. FITZGERALD:  We will provide.
  

 9               MS. MOORE:  And then that plan will be
  

10   recorded at the County Clerk's Office prior to
  

11   receiving final signatures on the plan.
  

12               MR. FITZGERALD:  Yes.
  

13               MS. MOORE:  The stormwater -- a
  

14   stormwater fee is to be calculated for the site as
  

15   outlined in Appendix 18 of the City Ordinance.
  

16               Are you guys doing a stormwater fee?
  

17               MR. SHEEHAN:   Yes.
  

18               MR. LEX:  Yes.
  

19               MS. MOORE:  You are?
  

20               And then the following language that's
  

21   been included as notes on the plans but they have to
  

22   also be included within the Stormwater Maintenance
  

23   Agreement.
  

24               MR. SHEEHAN:  Yes.
  

25               MS. MOORE:  Those four items.  And then
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 1   grading, the applicant should confirm that the
  

 2   proposed building will not contain a basement or
  

 3   crawlspace.
  

 4               MR. FITZGERALD:  No basement or
  

 5   crawlspace.
  

 6               MS. MOORE:  Spot grades should be
  

 7   provided at all locations where the proposed curb and
  

 8   sidewalk match existing curb and sidewalk.  You'll
  

 9   add that?
  

10               MR. FITZGERALD:  Yes.
  

11               MS. MOORE:  The end walls of the
  

12   retaining walls at the PSE&G equipment area should be
  

13   shown.
  

14               MR. FITZGERALD:  Yes.
  

15               MS. MOORE:  In accordance with Section
  

16   577-299.C.5, the inlet grate should be set two inches
  

17   below the normal gutter grade.
  

18               MR. FITZGERALD:  Yes.  We can sump the
  

19   inlets in the parking lot.
  

20               MS. MOORE:  You are going to sump?  When
  

21   you say the parking lot, is that just only a few?
  

22   You're going sump but you're going to sump all of
  

23   them?
  

24               MR. FITZGERALD:  Well, there's none
  

25   really proposed --
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 1               MS. MOORE:  Just the two curb?
  

 2               MR. FITZGERALD:  Yeah, just the two.  All
  

 3   the other ones are long.
  

 4               MS. MOORE:  If you can sump them, that
  

 5   would meet the City code.
  

 6               You'll add the note regarding utilities
  

 7   on your plan?
  

 8               MR. FITZGERALD:  Yes.
  

 9               MS. MOORE:  An invert should be indicated
  

10   for the proposed sanitary cleanout.
  

11               MR. FITZGERALD:  Yep, we'll add that.
  

12         MS. MOORE:  You'll have the project approved by
  

13   the City Engineer and the City Fire Chief?
  

14               MR. FITZGERALD:  Yes.
  

15               MS. MOORE:  A CCTV inspection of the
  

16   sewer (combined, sanitary and storm) system will be
  

17   performed and reviewed.  Will you perform that and
  

18   have it reviewed by the City Engineer?
  

19               MR. HEVDEN:  We have in the past with
  

20   other projects.
  

21               MS. MOORE:  So you will at this time?
  

22               MR. HEVDEN  Yes.
  

23               MS. MOORE:  Well, I think you do have to
  

24   pay a capacity fee for this correct?
  

25               MR. LEX:  The fees, there's different
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 1   fees of that.  I'm not sure if it was a stormwater
  

 2   fee or the capacity fee.  I know there's two --
  

 3               MS. MOORE:  Well, the stormwater would be
  

 4   a small.
  

 5               MR. SHEEHAN:  It's nominal.
  

 6               MR. LEX:  And the Capacity one.  I'd have
  

 7   to double check.  I don't know.  I know we've paid in
  

 8   the past.  I believe we paid the stormwater fee for
  

 9   other projects.
  

10               MS. MOORE:  Right.
  

11               MR. LEX:  The Capacity one regarding the
  

12   water, I'm not sure of all the projects that we have
  

13   paid for.
  

14               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  But if you have to, if
  

15   it's applicable --
  

16               MR. SHEEHAN:  Again, if it applies.
  

17   There may be credits because it was demoed recently
  

18   enough.
  

19               MS. MOORE:  And then the following notes,
  

20   you'll add to the Utility Plan?
  

21               MR. FITZGERALD:  Yes.
  

22               MS. MOORE:  And then the construction
  

23   details, you'll add details regarding the scoreboard,
  

24   bleacher and team benches.
  

25               MR. FITZGERALD:  These particular items
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 1   are going to be allowances so if the budget allows
  

 2   for theses.  Detail for bleachers and scoreboards are
  

 3   going to be done in shop drawings.
  

 4               MS. MOORE:  So, I'll just say, no.
  

 5               MR. FITZGERALD:  I mean, we can provide.
  

 6   If they didn't include it, we could send them to your
  

 7   office, the shop drawings for your records.
  

 8               MS. MOORE:  That's fine.
  

 9               And all details should note a compressive
  

10   strength of 4,500 psi for concrete which means
  

11   general note G-25 should be revised.
  

12               Are you doing 4,000 or 4,500?
  

13               MR. FITZGERALD:  We'll do the 4,500.
  

14               MS. MOORE:  4,500.  Okay.
  

15               And the geotextile fabric-type, you'll
  

16   note that for the detention basin sections?
  

17               MR. FITZGERALD:  Yes.
  

18               MS. MOORE:  And the Stormtech SC-740
  

19   subsurface detention basin details should be revised
  

20   to be site specific for each basin.
  

21               MR. FITZGERALD:  Yes.
  

22               MS. MOORE:  Planting Design.  Per the
  

23   Redevelopment Plan, shade trees are to be provided
  

24   along road frontages.  Additional trees should be
  

25   provided.  Are you doing that?
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 1               MR. SHEEHAN:  Not in front of the
  

 2   building.
  

 3               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  And then five percent
  

 4   of the parking lot should be landscaped.  Are you
  

 5   landscaping any of that?
  

 6               MR. FITZGERALD:  No.  The basin is under
  

 7   the parking lot, the underground basin.
  

 8               MR. MARTIN:  About the basin, you're
  

 9   putting Geotech textile fabric in the basin to keep
  

10   it --
  

11               MR. FITZGERALD:  No.  That was extended
  

12   detention basin.  We have two undergrounds and a
  

13   little extended detention basin.
  

14               MR. MARTIN:  The underground detention
  

15   basin, is that going to be -- how is that going to
  

16   be?  Direct percolation to the ground or --
  

17               MR. FITZGERALD:  Lined with PVC and
  

18   liner.
  

19               MR. MARTIN:  And have you considered the
  

20   influence of tidal forces on that giant --
  

21               MR. FITZGERALD:  That's why we have the
  

22   liner, because I didn't want tidal or ground water
  

23   infecting my --
  

24               MR. MARTIN:  Well, it's going to
  

25   squeezing the basin, right?  How are you going to



167

  

 1   secure the liner in place?  Is it going to be
  

 2   concrete secured?
  

 3               MR. FITZGERALD:  It's backfilled with
  

 4   stone.
  

 5               MS. MOORE:  These are pipes.  They're
  

 6   underground basin pipes.
  

 7               MR. MARTIN:  They're underground basin
  

 8   pipes?
  

 9               MS. MOORE:  Underground storage pipes,
  

10   yes.
  

11               MR. MARTIN:  Storage pipes rather than
  

12   the giant basin?
  

13               MS. MOORE:  Right.
  

14               MR. FITZGERALD:  Correct.
  

15               MR. MARTIN:  Okay.  Because if it was a
  

16   basin with little lined pond underground and put on a
  

17   stone base, when the tide comes up, it'll push the
  

18   bottom of the geotextile or the fabric or whatever
  

19   you're using and squeeze like it does a PVC pipe.  So
  

20   suddenly the capacity is reduced within your storage
  

21   basin.  I was just wondering if that was a
  

22   consideration in your design.  Were you planning for
  

23   that or?
  

24               MR. FITZGERALD:  We can look into that to
  

25   see.  Right now it's just backfilled stone.



168

  

 1               MR. MARTIN:  I've had, back in my
  

 2   previous life, I had situations where we put PVC in
  

 3   certain tidal areas and discovered the capacity
  

 4   changed.  Because when the tide came up and down, the
  

 5   pipes squeezed like a balloon.
  

 6               MS. MOORE:  It appears that 26 trees are
  

 7   slated for removal as part of this application.
  

 8   Compensatory planting may be necessary per Section
  

 9   577-247.  The demolition plan and the landscape plan
  

10   should be revised to be consistent with respect to
  

11   tree pits.  So, are you planing any additional trees
  

12   with the removal of 26 trees?
  

13               MR. FITZGERALD:  We will consider it.
  

14               MR. SHEEHAN:  They'll see where they can
  

15   add trees.  It surprises me that 26 are being
  

16   removed.
  

17               MS. MOORE:  Proposed street trees should
  

18   match existing shade tree species adjacent to it to
  

19   ensure a consistent esthetic.  Testimony should be
  

20   provided.  You're going to do that?
  

21               MR. FITZGERALD:  Our intent is to match
  

22   we'll just double check our design.
  

23               MS. MOORE:  Several areas on the site
  

24   plan are identified as "landscaping areas."  However,
  

25   on the landscape plan, these areas are often shown as
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 1   lawn.  So plans should be clarified.  It appears
  

 2   additional landscaping should be provided.  So, is it
  

 3   just lawn area?
  

 4               MR. FITZGERALD:  Yeah, it should be lawn
  

 5   area.
  

 6               MS. MOORE:  The landscaping shown in
  

 7   formal squares on the west side of the site seems
  

 8   unnecessarily forced and high maintenance.  The
  

 9   purpose of this design should be clarified.
  

10               MR. FITZGERALD:  We're going to modify
  

11   the landscaping design so it flows better and more
  

12   esthetically pleasing and makes sense with
  

13   maintenance.
  

14               MS. MOORE:  Per section
  

15   577-224.B.1.e., the visual impact of large surface
  

16   parking lots located along street frontages shall be
  

17   minimized with landscaping.  Additional landscaping
  

18   should be provided along the Pearl Street side of the
  

19   parking area.
  

20               MR. FITZGERALD:  We will consider.
  

21               MS. MOORE:  Do you just want to go
  

22   through and tell me what you guys are thinking, you
  

23   know, for each one?
  

24               MR. FITZGERALD:  Sure.
  

25               MS. MOORE:  Like whether you're going to
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 1   do it or not.
  

 2               MR. SHEEHAN:  Yes.
  

 3               MS. MOORE:  Why don't you just tell me if
  

 4   you're going to do it or not.  So, let's start at
  

 5   seven.  Is that a maybe, yes or no.
  

 6               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  What page are
  

 7   we on?  I'm sorry.
  

 8               MS. MOORE:  Page 10.  Let's just go
  

 9   through.  You read it and you tell me maybe yes or no
  

10   and we'll just get this going a little faster.
  

11               MR. FITZGERALD:  So, there's existing
  

12   street trees --
  

13               MS. FRANZINI:  Can you start with -- we
  

14   don't know what No. 10 is.  It's not helpful just to
  

15   note yes or no.
  

16               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  Then I'll read each
  

17   one.  The visual impacts of large surface parking
  

18   lots located along street frontages shall be
  

19   minimized with landscaping.  Additional landscaping
  

20   should be provided along the Pearl Street side of the
  

21   parking area.  Yes, no, maybe?
  

22               MR. FITZGERALD:  Maybe.
  

23               MS. MOORE:  Maybe.
  

24               Parking areas shall be subdivided with
  

25   planting islands containing trees and other
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 1   landscaped materials per Section 577-224.B.5.c,
  

 2   whereas no landscaped islands are proposed.
  

 3               MR. FITZGERALD:  The underground basin is
  

 4   on there.
  

 5               MR. SHEEHAN:  So, no.
  

 6               MS. MOORE:  No.
  

 7               All electrical and mechanical equipment
  

 8   should be screened from view per Section 577-24.B.19.
  

 9   The applicant proposes two transformers in a
  

10   courtyard surrounded by a 6-foot picket aluminum
  

11   fence located in the front yard of Pearl Street.  Our
  

12   office recommends an opaque aluminum fixed-louver
  

13   fence.  Yes, no. maybe?
  

14               MR. SHEEHAN:  Yes.
  

15               MR. FITZGERALD:  Yes.
  

16               MS. MOORE:  Per Section 577-244.C.6,
  

17   foundation plantings are to be provided along all
  

18   building elevations.  Yes, no, maybe?
  

19               MR. SHEEHAN:  No.
  

20               MR. FITZGERALD:  No.
  

21               MS. MOORE:  The applicant proposes a
  

22   surface basin with no landscaping.  Appropriate
  

23   landscape buffering should be provided in accordance
  

24   with Section 577-244.G.  Yes, no, maybe?
  

25               MR. SHEEHAN:  You're proposing an
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 1   ornamental fence, right?
  

 2               MR. FITZGERALD:  We just have to fence to
  

 3   keep the public from the right-of-way.
  

 4               MS. MOORE:  So, no?
  

 5               MR. SHEEHAN:  Correct.
  

 6               MS. MOORE:  Testimony should be provided
  

 7   as to whether irrigation is proposed for the
  

 8   landscaped areas (for watering) and the synthetic
  

 9   fields (for cooling).  Are you having irrigation?
  

10               MR. FITZGERALD:  No irrigation proposed.
  

11               MS. MOORE:  Lighting Plan.  A lighting
  

12   plan has only been provided for the proposed parking
  

13   area and does not include eight (8) mast lighting
  

14   fixtures proposed for the ballfield or the
  

15   multipurpose field.  Plans should be revised.
  

16               Are you adding more lighting?
  

17               MR. FITZGERALD:  We're going to do the
  

18   lighting analysis for the field.
  

19               MR. MARTIN:  The fields won't be turfed.
  

20   They'll just -- they're doing the artificial
  

21   surface?
  

22               MR. FITZGERALD:  The fields will be
  

23   synthetic turf so you don't require --
  

24               MR. MARTIN:  That's why irrigation.
  

25   Otherwise it'll be dirt.
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 1               MS. MOORE:  Per the Redevelopment Plan,
  

 2   lighting levels along paved portions of the public
  

 3   walkways shall not be less than 1.0 footcandles in
  

 4   commercial areas.  Testimony should be provided.
  

 5               MR. FITZGERALD:  We're going to
  

 6   re-evaluate this once the field lights get put in
  

 7   there.
  

 8               MS. MOORE:  The applicant proposes
  

 9   12-foot tall LED fixtures within the parking lot.
  

10   Per the Redevelopment Plan, fixtures shall be
  

11   high-pressure sodium.  Are you going to do that?
  

12               MR. FITZGERALD:  We'll stick with the
  

13   LED's for energy efficiency.
  

14               MS. MOORE:  Plans should be revised to
  

15   illustrate minimal and maximum lighting levels to
  

16   comply with Section 577-243.D.2.
  

17               Are you going to stay within these
  

18   requirements for minimum, average and maximum?
  

19               MR. HEVDEN:  Probably not.
  

20               MR. SHEEHAN:  I don't think so.
  

21               MS. MOORE:  Per Section -- you're going
  

22   to exceed them, correct?
  

23               MR. SHEEHAN:  Yes.
  

24               MS. MOORE:  Per Section 577-243.A.10,
  

25   more than 0.25 footcandles are permitted 10 feet from
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 1   the property line, whereas the applicant proposes
  

 2   0.5 footcandles.
  

 3               MR. SHEEHAN:  We're going to exceed that.
  

 4   It's in the chart as well.
  

 5               MS. MOORE:  The light fixture located in
  

 6   the center of the parking area is unprotected from
  

 7   vehicular traffic.  A means of protection should be
  

 8   provided.
  

 9               MR. FITZGERALD:  Yeah, we're going to add
  

10   a detail.
  

11               MS. MOORE:  The applicant should work
  

12   with the Delaware River Port Authority to ensure that
  

13   the proposed sports lighting does not conflict with
  

14   bridge traffic.
  

15               MR. SHEEHAN:  Yes.
  

16               MS. MOORE:  And all outdoor lighting not
  

17   essential for safety and security purposes, shall be
  

18   activated by automatic control devices and turned off
  

19   during non-operating hours.  You agree with that?
  

20               MR. SHEEHAN:  Yes.
  

21               MS. MOORE:  It's the applicant's
  

22   responsibility to contact PSE&G concerning
  

23   modifications required to make proposed or installed
  

24   lighting fixtures within the City's right-of-way
  

25   tamper-resistant.  No dedication will be accepted by
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 1   the City without the required modification.
  

 2               You're going to that, right?
  

 3               MR. SHEEHAN:  Yes.
  

 4               MS. MOORE:  A Traffic Impact Assessment
  

 5   should be submitted for review.
  

 6               MR. SHEEHAN:  We're not proposing to do a
  

 7   traffic assessment.
  

 8               MS. MOORE:  The applicant is to provide
  

 9   testimony regarding any and all environmental
  

10   concerns, studies and remediation pertaining to the
  

11   site.
  

12               MR. FITZGERALD:  So Pennoni is the LSRP
  

13   assigned to the site.  So, we'll have him to have us
  

14   stay within NJDEP standards for handling historic
  

15   fill.
  

16               MS. MOORE:  Per the Redevelopment Plan,
  

17   trash receptacles shall be placed every 200 feet
  

18   along road frontages.
  

19               MR. FITZGERALD:  No.
  

20               MS. MOORE:  Per Section 577-224.B.14.A,
  

21   appropriate landscaping shall be installed around the
  

22   trash enclosure to form a year-round effective visual
  

23   screen at time of planting.
  

24               MR. FITZGERALD:  Yes.
  

25               MS. MOORE:  Per Section 577-255.A.2.a,
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 1   trash enclosures shall be no more than 6 feet in
  

 2   height and constructed of masonry to match the
  

 3   principal structure.  The proposed enclosure is 8
  

 4   feet in height and constructed of chain link fence.
  

 5   That's what you're using?
  

 6               MR. FITZGERALD:  Yes, in the masonry
  

 7   wall.
  

 8               MS. MOORE:  Per Section 577-255.A.2.d,
  

 9   gates to the enclosures shall be constructed of solid
  

10   welded steel panels, whereas chain link gates with
  

11   privacy slats are proposed.
  

12               MR. FITZGERALD:  We're sticking with the
  

13   chain link with the slats.
  

14               MS. MOORE:  Per Section 577-255.A.2.f, a
  

15   year-round buffer shall be provided around the trash
  

16   enclosure through the provision of evergreen trees
  

17   and shrubs.
  

18               MR. FITZGERALD:  Yes.
  

19               MS. MOORE:  A turning template should be
  

20   provided to illustrate haulers can access the
  

21   dumpsters.
  

22               MR. FITZGERALD:  We will provide.
  

23               MS. MOORE:  And your signage.
  

24               MR. HEVDEN:  Yes, I can address those if
  

25   you would like.  The signage that's shown on the
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 1   drawings is not affordable within the price.  There's
  

 2   not going to be signage on the building right now.
  

 3   That will have to be determined at a later date.  So,
  

 4   we will not be painting directly upon the building
  

 5   surface which is number two.  And any signs that are
  

 6   put in, will be in compliance with the size areas in
  

 7   three and the size area in four.  And the details
  

 8   would be submitted at the time when they were
  

 9   determined by Rutgers and by the City what they
  

10   wanted to do.
  

11               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  So, you'll let us know
  

12   the sign areas and the sign heights at that time.
  

13               MR. HEVDEN:  Right.  Correct.
  

14               MS. MOORE:  Testimony should be provided
  

15   regarding the types of flags to be raised to
  

16   determine whether they constitute a sign.
  

17               MR. HEVDEN:  It's only for a United
  

18   States flag, the flag pole.
  

19               MS. MOORE:  Just the one flag?
  

20               MR. HEVDEN:  Just the one flag.  Unless
  

21   the City would like a flag or the state would like a
  

22   flag.
  

23               MS. MOORE:  Would you provide structural
  

24   calculations for us for the flag?
  

25               MR. FITZGERALD:  Yes.
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 1               MS. MOORE:  Signed and sealed
  

 2   calculations?
  

 3               MR. FITZGERALD:  Yes.
  

 4               MS. MOORE:  It's just for the City's
  

 5   safety.
  

 6               The architectural guidelines of the
  

 7   Redevelopment Plan should be addressed.  The
  

 8   predominant material of all street walls shall be
  

 9   brick, whereas CMU is proposed.
  

10               MR. HEVDEN:  The design is based on the
  

11   budget which is a single life of masonry.  If we use
  

12   brick, we'd have to use both block and brick which is
  

13   not affordable in the budget.  But the CMU that we're
  

14   using is a splitface block of a higher quality and
  

15   color.  So, we believe that will be adequate.
  

16               MS. MOORE:  The height of the proposed
  

17   building should be dimensioned on the plans.
  

18               MR. HEVDEN:  We will do that.
  

19               MS. MOORE:  A fence plan should be
  

20   provided to clearly illustrate limits of proposed
  

21   fencing and existing fencing to be preserved in
  

22   linear feet.
  

23               MR. FITZGERALD:  We will do that.
  

24               MS. MOORE:  Portions of the existing
  

25   fencing to be retained appear to be located within
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 1   the public right-of-way.  Neither the fence nor its
  

 2   foundation should be located within the public
  

 3   right-of-way.
  

 4               MR. FITZGERALD:  We're not proposing to
  

 5   remove or replace that section of fence.
  

 6               MS. MOORE:  I'll check with the City
  

 7   Engineer on that.  He may want you to move it
  

 8   outside.  If you guys are doing construction over
  

 9   there, I'm pretty sure we'd want you to move it
  

10   outside the right-of-way.
  

11               MR. FITZGERALD:  Okay.  It doesn't seem
  

12   like it's a lot of linear footage.  I think it's just
  

13   a little bit on Pearl.
  

14               MS. MOORE:  Including the foundation too.
  

15   So, they don't even want the foundation in the
  

16   right-of-way.  I mean, since you have the opportunity
  

17   now to just do it.
  

18               MR. FITZGERALD:  When we visually looked
  

19   at it and walked the site, the fence in that area is
  

20   in good condition.
  

21               MS. MOORE:  Yeah, but it's in the public
  

22   right-of-way.  It's in Camden's right-of-way.
  

23               MR. SHEEHAN:  We'll work with Orion.
  

24               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  I'll check with him.
  

25               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Can you
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 1   explain it further like what that means?
  

 2               MS. MOORE:  The fencing in the
  

 3   right-of-way?
  

 4               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Right.
  

 5               MS. MOORE:  It's within the City's
  

 6   roadway, right-of-way.  Can you show her where that
  

 7   is on Pearl?
  

 8               MR. MARTIN:  Understand what a roadway
  

 9   is.  A roadway is the cartway which is where the cars
  

10   run and there's curbs, and there's sidewalks and
  

11   there's additional footage from the center line into
  

12   a line called the right-of-way.  In theory, you don't
  

13   want anything constructed in that right-of-way
  

14   because it's a traffic hazard.
  

15               MS. MOORE:  And a liability for the City.
  

16               MR. MARTIN:  And a liability for the
  

17   City.  If somebody crashes into it, it's in the
  

18   City -- if somebody trips over it and it's in the
  

19   City's right-of-way, the City get's sued.
  

20               MS. MOORE:  And this is a Camden County
  

21   Improvement Authority project.
  

22               MR. FITZGERALD:  There's a portion of an
  

23   existing ornamental fence here.  You see here this
  

24   line.  That's the right-of-way, the City's
  

25   right-of-way line for Pearl Street.  And there's a
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 1   portion of the existing fence and foundation that's
  

 2   within the City.
  

 3               MR. SHEEHAN:  Right.  So, it's not within
  

 4   the street, correct?
  

 5               MR. FITZGERALD:  Right.  It's not in the
  

 6   street --
  

 7               MR. SHEEHAN:  But it's within the
  

 8   right-of-way between the street and the property
  

 9   line.
  

10               MS. MOORE:  But anything within the
  

11   right-of-way is the City's responsibility too.
  

12               MR. MARTIN:  And whereas, when it was
  

13   Campbell's Fields, there might not have been an
  

14   access to that spot necessarily because the way the
  

15   security of the field was laid out.  Now, with what
  

16   they're proposing, there very well may be public in
  

17   that area and you have an obstruction in the City's
  

18   right-of-way and you're creating liability for the
  

19   City.
  

20               MS. MOORE:  It's basically the liability
  

21   for the City.
  

22               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  And there's
  

23   already a traffic issue there currently.  I'm
  

24   concerned about that.
  

25               MS. MOORE:  Testimony should be provided
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 1   that the proposed recreational facilities are open to
  

 2   the public which you already stated.
  

 3               The chain link fence details should be
  

 4   revised to state that the fence fabric and all
  

 5   components shall be black vinyl clad.
  

 6               Are they going to be black?
  

 7               MR. FITZGERALD:  You're talking about the
  

 8   chain link fence detail?
  

 9               MS. MOORE:  Right.
  

10               MR. FITZGERALD:  Yes.
  

11               MS. MOORE:  It appears the solar
  

12   orientation of the ballfield is incorrect.  Testimony
  

13   should be provided.
  

14               MR. HEVDEN:  The field is a product of
  

15   the orientation based on prime makeup of another
  

16   site.  And the preferred entrance by Rutgers and the
  

17   County and the City is to have the entrance off of
  

18   Delaware Avenue.  So, yes, the field is -- or
  

19   Citizen's Bank Park, for example, is about 15 degrees
  

20   east of north.  This is about 15 or 20 degrees west.
  

21               But we've been reviewing this with Jeff
  

22   Dean who is Rutgers' athletic director and also
  

23   coaches baseball.  And we believe we have accounted
  

24   for the safety of the players in terms of the pitcher
  

25   and the batter being able to see the ball coming in.
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 1   And it's still going to affect -- right field is
  

 2   called the sun field.
  

 3               Even in the best orientation with
  

 4   baseball fields, that's going to have the sun in your
  

 5   eyes and that's going to be a little bit more
  

 6   increased by this.  But it's not going to be a
  

 7   problem.  Especially since when you look at the
  

 8   buildings in the other drawing, there's new buildings
  

 9   coming up, the hotel and other buildings coming along
  

10   here, so they're going to block the sun when it gets
  

11   down too the lower areas in terms of the late
  

12   afternoon sun in the summertime.
  

13               MS. MOORE:  Okay.
  

14               Signed and sealed structural calculations
  

15   should be provided for the proposed flagpole which
  

16   you stated you will provide.
  

17               A signature block should be added to the
  

18   Title Sheet for signatures of the Planning Board
  

19   Chairman, Planning Board Secretary, Planning Board
  

20   Engineer, and the Zoning Officer/Administrative
  

21   Officer.
  

22               MR. SHEEHAN:  Are we doing it?
  

23               MS. MOORE:  It's up to you.  I mean,
  

24   sometimes you guys do it and sometimes we'll never
  

25   see it again.
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 1               MR. SHEEHAN:  The discussion we had,  you
  

 2   should get the final set of plans.
  

 3               MS. MOORE:  Okay.
  

 4               MR. SHEEHAN:  That we're going to do.
  

 5               MS. MOORE:  All right.  You said it.
  

 6               The outside agency approvals we have,
  

 7   Camden County Planning Board, Camden County Soil
  

 8   Conservation District, NJDEP.  Any others that may be
  

 9   necessary?
  

10               MR. SHEEHAN:  None.
  

11               MS. MOORE:  Okay.  That concludes our
  

12   review.
  

13               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Any comments from the
  

14   Board?
  

15               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  I do.  I know
  

16   major things for the Board are trees.  That's
  

17   something that, you know, we take pride in making
  

18   sure that it's incorporated into the plan especially
  

19   as it relates to that area including the waterfront.
  

20   So, to see that the trees were 20 something of them
  

21   which is probably the highest amount of numbers from
  

22   many of the projects that we've seen in that area is
  

23   a little alarming for me.
  

24               I know that currently there's a traffic
  

25   issue that is going on there with the Tiger Grant
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 1   activity that's going on which is a repavement of all
  

 2   those roads, the Rutgers field.  There's traffic
  

 3   issues, you know, with the business corridor
  

 4   section and the CCPD's bad planning of traffic
  

 5   management.  That was something I recently addressed
  

 6   this week with the Chief at a community meeting.  And
  

 7   seeing that, you know, there's going to be increased
  

 8   traffic with the pick-up drop-off is another concern
  

 9   for me.
  

10               The stormwater issue that was something
  

11   that was big for me.  Those are things that I think
  

12   are important to the community.  You know, a lot of
  

13   us still live there.  Those are our main modes of
  

14   traffic in trying to get out.  And so, are there any
  

15   other board members have comments on those things?  I
  

16   know those things are a top priority for me.
  

17               MS. MOORE:  This is a courtesy review.
  

18               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Yeah, I get
  

19   it.
  

20               MR. MARTIN:  The nature of a courtesy
  

21   review is, we can't force you to do anything.  But
  

22   Dena's comment about hopefully that you'll take the
  

23   record into consideration, I think, is a valid one.
  

24   That said, I think I have to reiterate with what the
  

25   Councilwoman said.  The stormwater issue on the site,
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 1   they don't want to be contributing to the flooding in
  

 2   the neighborhood if you can put the water back in the
  

 3   river before it gets into the neighborhood, it would
  

 4   be something worth doing at this point while you're
  

 5   about to redesign the whole spot.
  

 6               MR. SHEEHAN:  How would you do that, Mr.
  

 7   Martin?  Where would the outfall go?  We can't DEP --
  

 8   we couldn't get DEP to approve the outfall on Pearl
  

 9   Street without an act of God; the new one on Pearl
  

10   Street without an act of God.  Otherwise, there's no
  

11   direct connections to the Cooper Street outfall.
  

12               MR. MARTIN:  I don't have the Utility
  

13   Plan in front of me.  I have had in my previous life,
  

14   some experience getting outfall permits from DEP.
  

15   That said, the way I did it when it was time for me
  

16   to do it is, I sat down with the waterfront
  

17   development people and said, here's the issue.
  

18               The stormwater says we should put the
  

19   stormwater -- good stormwater that's not going be
  

20   adding fullables and settleables like this would be,
  

21   back into the receiving streams as fast as possible.
  

22   Give us a way to put it into the receiving stream and
  

23   let them solve the problem for you.
  

24               MR. SHEEHAN:  We have to go for a
  

25   waterfront development permit, so we're going to have
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 1   those conversations.
  

 2               MR. MARTIN:  And so when you have that
  

 3   waterfront development and if they say no, then
  

 4   you're SLO.  But by the same token if they say, hmmm,
  

 5   let's look at how we can do this, there's
  

 6   opportunities here.
  

 7               When you're going to invest capital in an
  

 8   area and you're going to do this, it may be a less
  

 9   costly alternative than having to  manage flow back
  

10   into a combined system at tidal levels.  You know,
  

11   it's one thing when you're designing in the middle of
  

12   hilltops somewhere and you've got 50 feet before you
  

13   hit the receiving stream vertically.  Here you're
  

14   four-foot a drop maybe at high tide.
  

15               MR. SHEEHAN:  I can't disagree with you
  

16   that it's -- not putting stuff back into combined
  

17   system is preferable -- if it's practical.  So, I
  

18   can't argue with that.  But there are also 100
  

19   million dollars worth of projects that are --
  

20               MR. MARTIN:  Oh, yeah.
  

21               MR. SHEEHAN: -- taking place now to
  

22   improve all that area.
  

23               MR. MARTIN:  This boggles my mind,
  

24   I won't lie, the very nature of this.  And I've sat
  

25   at these planning board meetings and listened to this
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 1   and I thought, oh well, they're taking the stormwater
  

 2   off into the river because it was always thought
  

 3   separation and where it was possible was the way to
  

 4   go.  And to hear that we've done all this development
  

 5   without separation in the area that was ideal for
  

 6   separation, just boggles my mind.
  

 7               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  And I wasn't
  

 8   here prior to any of those developments and I can
  

 9   only speak moving forward.
  

10               MR. MARTIN:  Is Liberty separated?
  

11               MS. SHEEHAN:  Yes, Liberty is separated
  

12   on the waterfront, Mr. Martin.
  

13               MR. MARTIN:  Some of it is, Joe?
  

14               MR. RADAY:  Yes.  All of it is.
  

15               MR. SHEEHAN:  All of it is, yes.
  

16               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Is there a
  

17   way to match one of theirs?
  

18               MS. MOORE:  They're private roads.
  

19               MR. MARTIN:  They're private roads but
  

20   this is now where we get into where DEP's authority
  

21   and the waterfront development permit entity comes
  

22   into play.  And if DEP and the waterfront development
  

23   permit entity says, oh, by the way County Improvement
  

24   Authority, we want you to go through one of these
  

25   private connections that are already there and that
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 1   we already approved, then can make that permit
  

 2   condition happen.
  

 3               We as the City can't force it.  Or we
  

 4   could have at one point but we can't right now.
  

 5   But clearly, DEP can.  And clearly you have to broach
  

 6   it to them.  And, you know, the last time I did an
  

 7   outfall permit, god knows it was when John Weinhart
  

 8   was still at Coastal Zone so that's 30 years ago.
  

 9   But we did the permit because we planned with them in
  

10   advance.  We actually got the permit.  I came up in
  

11   the morning, dropped it off, hung out with water
  

12   until lunchtime, came downstairs and picked up the
  

13   permit and took it back for the original waterfront
  

14   development permits.
  

15               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Honestly,
  

16   you'll be doing a disservice to your own project in
  

17   addition to the burden that's going to be on the
  

18   community.  So, I think it's something that
  

19   definitely should be addressed.
  

20               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Anybody else?  If not,
  

21   then the public.
  

22               MR. SARACCO:  Yes.
  

23               MR. EINGORN:  You've already been sworn
  

24   in.
  

25               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Just state your name.
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 1               MR. SARACCO:  Ben Saracco, 407 N. 2nd
  

 2   Street.  I know it's late but this is like a very
  

 3   important issue to me.  We've been reaching out for
  

 4   this project for the past year for updates.  We were
  

 5   able to get one community meeting to get feedback
  

 6   about this project that's using 100 percent public
  

 7   money in developing on one of the most
  

 8   valuable vacant pieces of property in the City.
  

 9               This is a huge resource that the City is
  

10   donating to Rutgers to use for this purpose that
  

11   could be used for another use to provide jobs, to
  

12   provide tax income to help revitalize the City.  That
  

13   being said, if it's going to be run by a public park
  

14   in this City, it needs to have meaningful public
  

15   access and that doesn't mean calling ahead a couple
  

16   of weeks of time to get your community group in
  

17   there.  This doesn't mean, you know -- maybe we have
  

18   a summer camp with a certain group and let kids in
  

19   there.  If there's a little league in the City, if
  

20   there's anybody walking down the street that's a kid
  

21   in one of these neighborhoods, needs to be able to
  

22   walk through the gates.
  

23               If you walk by Drexel University; if you
  

24   walk by Temple University which are universities in
  

25   urban areas in this area, their gates don't have a
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 1   padlock around them.  If you walk by Rutgers'
  

 2   existing fields right now, they're community fields.
  

 3   There's pad locks around them.  There's a telephone
  

 4   number that doesn't work.  They received a letter
  

 5   from the NJDEP Green Acres office that they were in
  

 6   violation last year and they've made almost no
  

 7   changes.  They have a simple little website that was
  

 8   put up.  All of the existing issues the vast majority
  

 9   still exists.  It's a slap in the face to residents.
  

10   And I hate to be up here because Rutgers is my
  

11   neighbor.
  

12               I have many friends that work there;
  

13   staff that I get along with; great students that I
  

14   live next to.  But on this issue, we have reached out
  

15   every single month for a year and can't get these
  

16   people to show up to a community meeting, Cooper
  

17   Grant Neighborhood Association, Concerns Citizens of
  

18   North Camden, other places.  Where else in this
  

19   region or in this world are you going to have a
  

20   public university getting public land with 100
  

21   percent public money and not have to meet with the
  

22   community and provide access.  This would be run by
  

23   the County Park System.  It blows my mind.
  

24               This zip code was just listed as the most
  

25   unhealthy zip code along with 08103 in the entire
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 1   state.  The amount of health disparities; kids that
  

 2   don't have access to great high quality athletic
  

 3   facilities like these.  And the fact that they can
  

 4   just get away with not guaranteeing policies to
  

 5   guarantee public access, it just -- I don't
  

 6   understand it.  It's not Camden Rising at all.
  

 7               So, I'm asking you.  I don't know if you
  

 8   can table this.  If there's anything that you can do
  

 9   to mandate them to sign a Communities Benefit
  

10   Agreement.  We're not asking for a million things in
  

11   the world.  We just want routine open hours.  So if
  

12   there's a kid walking by or anyone, anyone from any
  

13   part of the neighborhood that goes down here, they
  

14   can walk on the field.  We should be able to share
  

15   the space.
  

16               On this agenda, it's listed as Rutgers
  

17   Field.  Why did Rutgers buy this land?  Is this
  

18   Rutgers' pilot payment; their payment on lieu of
  

19   taxes going to increase that they're getting this
  

20   hugely valuable piece property in the City?  What's
  

21   the answer to that?  We don't know because they won't
  

22   meet with the public.  It's unbelievable.  It's
  

23   extremely frustrating.  We only knew about this for a
  

24   few days.  There's plenty more residents besides me
  

25   that feel very passionate about this issue.  We care
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 1   about our City.  And I'm just hoping that there's
  

 2   some type of mechanism that can give residents a say
  

 3   in this process.
  

 4               Rutgers has just stoned-wall us.  Before
  

 5   the CCMUA was involved in this and Cooper's Ferry
  

 6   Partnership, they dropped out.  I don't know the
  

 7   reason for that.  But, you know, Rutgers said when we
  

 8   had the one meeting with them over a year ago where
  

 9   we gave them a long list of questions and reasonable
  

10   questions about policies and procedures for this,
  

11   they never got back to us.  We shouldn't have to
  

12   spend hours and hours and hours as residents to ask
  

13   for something that would just be common place in any
  

14   other community and it's not fair.  That's it.
  

15               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Thank you.
  

16               MS. FRANZINI:  Jessica Franzini, 800
  

17   Galindez Court, Camden, New Jersey.  I would like to
  

18   echo and support what Ben said.  This is public land.
  

19   It's mostly public-funded.  I understand from a quick
  

20   conversation that I just had with Jim that it's about
  

21   50 percent public funded at least.  Today I was in a
  

22   community meeting with Cooper's Ferry and Camden
  

23   County with a state-funded Department of
  

24   Transportation-funded project for North 7th Street
  

25   and it's concept development.  And it's bringing
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 1   residents together to talk what they want to see for
  

 2   repaving and re-doing North 7th Street.
  

 3               We're talking about completely changing
  

 4   the use out here from what it used to be.  So, the
  

 5   parking, the fact that there was not going to be a
  

 6   Traffic Impact Study, I think is like absolutely
  

 7   unacceptable and I understand that this is a courtesy
  

 8   review.  So, please consider this a courtesy
  

 9   pleading; that that is not acceptable here in
  

10   Camden.  I mean, we were out and chatted with the
  

11   Chief on Monday and we heard the chief explaining
  

12   that there's 10,000 people driving through downtown
  

13   Camden on a regular basis now to where they have to
  

14   have police officers out operating the lights just to
  

15   get people through.
  

16               So we already know that these traffic
  

17   signals in that part of town don't talk to each other
  

18   and then we're going to put this in without having
  

19   any kind of traffic impact assessment.  And I think
  

20   that's unacceptable.  Most importantly, I just want
  

21   to speak to that.  There hasn't been that public
  

22   involvement component and a few people left today and
  

23   gave me this three-page packet; apparently requests
  

24   that were made and concerns that were made to both
  

25   Camden County and Rutgers over a year ago.
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 1               And so, I would just please ask that you
  

 2   circle back with Cooper Grant Neighborhood
  

 3   Association, Concern Citizens of North Camden and any
  

 4   other groups that have reached out to you on behalf
  

 5   of the County as a lead in this project.  It's very
  

 6   important to take into consideration the safety and
  

 7   impact and access for the neighborhood, especially
  

 8   learning from the previous project and that a gated
  

 9   and locked field is not a community accessible space
  

10   especially when it's funded with public dollars.
  

11               Also, when it comes to combined system, I
  

12   just want to say, it's easy -- when you think about,
  

13   you know -- I think it's easy to kind of look at this
  

14   and say, oh, you know, we're tapping into the
  

15   combined system cause maybe that's how it's always
  

16   been done or that's how we -- that's an easier way to
  

17   do it.  But I've worked in the City for ten years and
  

18   previously in the environmental field.
  

19               And since 2011, I've been trying to
  

20   address combined sewer issues in Camden by
  

21   retrofitting current development or working to bring
  

22   infrastructure into new development.  And I've seen
  

23   people who have backups of combined sewer in their
  

24   basements and in their parks and streets.  And it
  

25   just goes above and beyond here.  You're getting half
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 1   of the project funded from public dollars.  Can't you
  

 2   figure out an innovative out-of-the-box way to not
  

 3   impact an already overburdened system?
  

 4               I don't know the time frame of the
  

 5   project.  Would love to know more about what's going
  

 6   on with that.  And also, I just found it
  

 7   disappointing to hear the Planning Board Engineer
  

 8   reading off best practices and recommended measures
  

 9   and just, no, we're not doing that or maybe we'll do
  

10   that or will consider that with even something as
  

11   simple as --
  

12               MS. MOORE:  It's a courtesy review,
  

13   ma'am.
  

14               MS. FRANZINI:  Of course it is.  And
  

15   I don't want to take up too much time.
  

16               MS. MOORE:  I just want to let you know,
  

17   We have no -- we're the City and they're an entity
  

18   that is a County entity.  We can't make them do
  

19   anything.
  

20               MS. FRANZINI:  Right.  Of course.
  

21               MS. MOORE:  So, the fact that they're --
  

22   they pretty much let us know what they will do and
  

23   they've worked -- they've gotten better with working
  

24   with us on these.
  

25               MS. FRANZINI:  That's good.
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 1               MR. SHEEHAN:  Most of the things.
  

 2               MS. MOORE:  Most of the things.
  

 3               MS. FRANZINI:  Yeah.  I mean, things like
  

 4   trash receptacles, trees, I mean, these are small
  

 5   low-cost things and they make a difference for the
  

 6   people that live in the City.  Thank you.
  

 7               MR. LEX:  If I may just real quick.
  

 8               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  You can but you have
  

 9   to stand here.
  

10               MR. LEX:  Just real quick just to address
  

11   this.  What I didn't mention today and I did reach
  

12   out to John to talk about this.  So, what we had to
  

13   do in the first step of getting through this process
  

14   was go to the Planning Board.  We had to go to the
  

15   Planning Board.  They kicked it off.  You're shaking
  

16   your head.  But here's the issue that we had is, we
  

17   finalized our design.  We have a community access.
  

18   By our MOU with -- the County's MOU with Rutgers, it
  

19   requires that there be a Community Access Development
  

20   Agreement.  So that has to be finalized.  So, that
  

21   hasn't even been started yet.
  

22               MS. FRANZINI:  Well, --
  

23               MR. LEX:  So, we're in the process of
  

24   putting that together.  And I apologize for not going
  

25   to the Cooper Grant meeting on Monday.  I was sick.
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 1   I will tell you, the Improvement Authority has been
  

 2   with this project for less than six months.  I've
  

 3   already tried to do the best I can.
  

 4               MS. FRANZINI:  Okay.
  

 5               MR. EINGORN:  You got to address the
  

 6   Board.  If you want to have a private conversation --
  

 7               MR. LEX:  I apologize.
  

 8               MR. EINGORN: -- you can talk to them
  

 9   after the meeting.
  

10               MR. LEX:  I completely understand the
  

11   sense of frustration the community has with this.
  

12   The problem where we were about three months ago is
  

13   that we exceeded a lot of budget expectations.  So,
  

14   we had to bring it back down.  To meet with anyone at
  

15   the community was -- we didn't have anything set.
  

16   So, we have a project that's set now.  We know we
  

17   have to work with the Community Access Agreement.  We
  

18   know it has to be done.  It's just right now trying
  

19   to figure how that gets balanced is where we need to
  

20   be.
  

21               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Yeah.  And I
  

22   thank everyone for their testimony today.  But, you
  

23   know, that was also something I wanted to bring up.
  

24   Thanks for bringing up like the trash receptacles.
  

25   That's really important.  You know, I'm engaged with
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 1   the park system.  I represent this Ward.  And, so,
  

 2   there's a lot things that I'd like to see
  

 3   incorporated that would be very beneficial learning
  

 4   from past experiences personal and
  

 5   organizational-wise.
  

 6               So, I know that this is a courtesy
  

 7   review.  But I know that you also have an obligation
  

 8   as a government entity to provide the best quality of
  

 9   service possible for the community and residents.
  

10   So, I just want to make sure that we all come
  

11   together to the table to make sure that comes to
  

12   fruition because it is really important.
  

13               MR. LEX:  I think and I'll leave you with
  

14   this.  I think that the key thing here is, it's a
  

15   community asset.  So, the idea here is that now
  

16   there's going to be a running track; there's going to
  

17   be some athletic fields that are used for the
  

18   community is what is the main purpose of this
  

19   project.
  

20               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  And we have
  

21   to address security as well.
  

22               MR. LEX:  Absolutely.  So there's the
  

23   security element of it; there's the athletic portion
  

24   of it.  We're all trying to get to that same thing.
  

25   I just think, you know, to the point where it could
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 1   have been communicated a little bit differently;
  

 2   always understood.  But, again, this was our first
  

 3   step to get this out.
  

 4               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Because we
  

 5   currently have security issues now --
  

 6               MR. LEX:  Without a doubt.
  

 7               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  -- with the
  

 8   community and with the fields currently present and
  

 9   all that.
  

10               MR. LEX:  The Improvement Authority has
  

11   owned the baseball stadium since 2015 so we
  

12   understand what that's like down there.
  

13               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  You got a lot
  

14   of work to do.
  

15               MR. LEX:  Yep.
  

16               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  If there's no more
  

17   discussions, your review is complete?
  

18               MR. SHEEHAN:  Yes.  Thank you.
  

19               MR. MARTIN:  Mr. Chairman, I would like
  

20   to move the Planning Board forward a copy of the
  

21   transcript of this portion of the hearing to the
  

22   County Improvement Authority for their
  

23   consideration.
  

24               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  And also to Rutgers I
  

25   also recommend that it goes to them, so that they
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 1   understand that the public is definitely concerned
  

 2   about their behavior in reference to how they handle
  

 3   their projects.
  

 4               MR. SHEEHAN:  Okay.
  

 5               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  With that said, thank
  

 6   you very much.  I need a motion to carry it to next
  

 7   month, Linden Waterfront, LLC Certificate of
  

 8   Appropriateness.  And Pablo and Arin Reyes
  

 9   Certificate of Appropriateness.
  

10               MR. MARTIN:  No moved, Mr. Chairman.
  

11               DIRECTOR WALKER:  Second.
  

12               CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  Roll call.
  

13               MS. MILLER:  Fred Martin.
  

14               MR. MARTIN:  Yes.
  

15               MS. MILLER:  Jose DeJesus.
  

16               CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  Yes.
  

17               MS. MILLER:  Ulysses Baker.
  

18               MR. BAKER:  Yes.
  

19               MS. MILLER:  Councilwoman Reyes-Morton.
  

20               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Yes.
  

21               MS. MILLER:  Director Walker.
  

22               DIRECTOR WALKER:  Yes.
  

23               MS. MILLER:  Erin Crean.
  

24               MS. CREAN:  Abstain.
  

25               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Now, reading of the
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 1   following Adoption of Resolutions in January 2020,
  

 2   Planning Board Attorney Dembo, Brown & Burns, LLP;
  

 3   Planning Board Conflict Attorney, Eric Bernstein &
  

 4   Associates LLC; Planning Board Engineer, Remington &
  

 5   Vernick Engineers; Planning Board Conflict Engineer,
  

 6   Alaimo Group Consulting Engineers.
  

 7               Reorganization:  Election of Chairman,
  

 8   Jose DeJesus: Election of Vice-Chairman, Frederick H.
  

 9   Martin, Jr.; Election of Secretary, Angela Miller;
  

10   Appointment of Planning Board Attorney, Dembo, Brown
  

11   & Burns; Appointment of Conflict Attorney, Eric
  

12   Bernstein & Associates, LLC; Appointment of Board
  

13   Engineer, Remington & Vernick Engineers; Appointment
  

14   of Conflict Engineer for Planning Board, The Alaimo
  

15   Group; Review and Approval of the Planning Board
  

16   Meeting Dates of 2020.  And Final Site Plan 617
  

17   Broadway, LLC, 613-617 Broadway.
  

18               CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  Motion please.
  

19               MR. MARTIN:  I so move.  I move to adopt
  

20   the Resolutions and actions of the Board in the
  

21   January meeting.
  

22               MR. BAKER:  Second.
  

23               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  Roll call.
  

24               MS. MILLER:  Fred Martin.
  

25               MR. MARTIN:  Yes.
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 1               MS. MILLER:  Jose DeJesus.
  

 2               CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  Yes.
  

 3               MS. MILLER:  Ulysses Baker.
  

 4               MR. BAKER:  Yes.
  

 5               MS. MILLER:  Councilwoman Reyes-Morton.
  

 6               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Yes.
  

 7               MS. MILLER:  Director Walker.
  

 8               DIRECTOR WALKER:  Yes.
  

 9               MS. MILLER:  Erin Crean.
  

10               MS. CREAN:  Abstain.
  

11               MS. MILLER:  Thank you.  Motion carried
  

12   to approve.
  

13               CHAIRMAN DeJESUS:  We need a motion to
  

14   adjourn.
  

15               MR. MARTIN:  I so move.
  

16               MR. BAKER:  Second.
  

17               CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  Roll call.
  

18               MS. MILLER:  Fred Martin.
  

19               MR. MARTIN:  Yes.
  

20               MS. MILLER:  Jose DeJesus.
  

21               CHAIRMAN DEJESUS:  Yes.
  

22               MS. MILLER:  Ulysses Baker.
  

23               MR. BAKER:  Yes.
  

24               MS. MILLER:  Councilwoman Reyes-Morton.
  

25               COUNCILWOMAN REYES-MORTON:  Yes.



204

  

 1               MS. MILLER:  Director Walker.
  

 2               DIRECTOR WALKER:  Yes.
  

 3               MS. MILLER:  Erin Crean.
  

 4               MS. CREAN:  Yes.
  

 5               MS. MILLER:  Motion carried to approve.
  

 6   Thank you and have a good night.
  

 7                         - - -
  

 8          (**Meeting concluded at 9:50 p.m.**)
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 1                     CERTIFICATION
  

 2
  

 3
  

 4         I HEREBY CERTIFY that I am a Certified Court
  

 5   Reporter and Notary Public.
  

 6         I FURTHER CERTIFY that the witness was sworn
  

 7   to testify to the truth.
  

 8         I FURTHER CERTIFY that the foregoing is, to
  

 9   the best of my ability, a true and accurate
  

10   transcript of the testimony taken stenographically by
  

11   me at the time, place, and date hereinbefore set
  

12   forth.
  

13         I FURTHER CERTIFY that I am neither a relative,
  

14   employee, attorney or counsel to any of the
  

15   parties to the action, nor a relative or employee of
  

16   such attorney or counsel and that I am not
  

17   financially interested in the action.
  

18
                _______________________

19                  Regine A. Ervin, CCR
                Certified Court Reporter

20                 License #30XI000222200
  

21
  

22         (The foregoing certification of this transcript
  

23   does not apply to any reproduction of the same by any
  

24   means, unless under the direction, control and/or
  

25   supervision of the certifying reporter.)
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